651 Commerce Drive
¥’ A puBLIC ABENCY Roseville, CA 95678

NC' A phone (916) 781-3636

Jy N
/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: November 29, 2018, NCPA Commission Meeting

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 9:33 am at NCPA’s Roseville Office, 651 Commerce
Drive, Roseville California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance
and are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the October 25, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff and seconded by Mark Chandler to approve the
Minutes of the October 25, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried unanimously on
a voice vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Frith asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the

Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

Bob Lingl, Lompoc, read the story for this month’s 50" Anniversary commemorative pin that was
provided to the Commission. This month’s pin highlighted innovation and collaboration in an ever
changing electricity market.

General Manager Randy Howard reported:

~ Gave an update on NCPA’s Support and Shared Services Agreements and provided a copy of
the monthly status report.

— NCPA co-hosted a luncheon with Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) and
California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA) to thank the lobbying and legislative staff for
their efforts during the last legislative session.

- Working with SCPPA on a joint a $1 Billion Broad Energy Efficiency investment. After discussion
with SCPPA staff, this item was deferred to the January 2019 Commission meeting for approval.

- Mailing Holiday cards this year. The cover represents the December 50" Anniversary Pin.



— Mailing Holiday cards this year. The cover represents the December 50" Anniversary Pin.

- Participated on a public power panel at the California Society of Municipal Analysts (CSMA)
that focused on discussing issues impacting California with regards to the wildfire mitigation
and planning.

— Visited the hydroelectric facility last week and received an overview and tour of the rewind
project. Overall, project is going well.

4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Frith reported the Committee met twice since the last Commission meeting. The
Committee met on November 5 under a Special Agenda to discuss the Performance Evaluation of
the General Manager and General Counsel in closed session. No reportable action was taken on
both items. The Committee also met that morning and heard reports from the General Manager and
General Counsel. The Committee met in closed session to discuss four closed session items, and
took action in open session on items 43, 44, 45, and 46 on today’s agenda. The Committee
recommended Commission approval of all items.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 12-20, 22, and 28 on today’s
Agenda. The Committee did establish a quorum, and recommended Commission approval. The
Committee also discussed items 25 and 26 on today’s agenda. The Committee did not have a
quorum for those two items, but did recommend Commission approval. The Committee also
discussed and heard a report on the Hydroelectric Rewind Project.

6. Finance Committee

Committee Chair David Hagele reported the Committee met once since the last Commission meeting.
The Committee heard a report from PFM on the current condition of the financial markets, NCPA'’s debt
portfolio and discussed the Letter of Credit with the Bank of Montreal that is scheduled to terminate in
September. The Committee heard a report from NCPA’s General Counsel on a proposal received for
Bond, Disclosure and Tax Counsel, which is item 30 on today’s agenda.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee met once under a Special Agenda
since the last Commission meeting. The Committee discussed item 37 on today’s agenda in closed
sessoin. The Committee did not establish a quorum, but did recommend Commission approval.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Mark Chandler reported the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee reviewed and discussed the 2019 strategic goals and initiatives for the
Legislative and Regulatory Program. The Committee also heard a report on state and federal
legislative issues, as well as recommended Commission approval of a multi-task agreement to
provide EM&V and Technical Advisory services, which is item 23 on today’s agenda.

An outline of upcoming Agency events was provided: Capitol Day is scheduled on February 4, 2019;
NCPA's Strategic Issues Conference (SIC) is scheduled for January 15-17, 2019, at the Kimpton
Sawyer Hotel in Sacramento; and the 2019 NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference is scheduled
for April 28-May 2 in Washington, D.C.

The next Committee meeting is scheduled on February 20 at NCPA'’s office in Roseville.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
November 29, 2018



9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Kirsten Schreder, Redding, thanked the NCPA team for the money raised to help support those
impacted by the Carr Fire. As well, she provided an update on the incoming and outgoing Council
Members.

Bob Lingl, Lompoc, express his deep appreciation and thanked everyone for their support over the
past several years. At this time, a new Lompoc Commissioner has not been appointed. Brad Wilke
was selected as the new Ultility Director and his first day is set for January 19, 2019.

10. CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

No items were pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion. Due to a conflict of interest on one of
the consent items, Commissioner Jerry Serventi (Alameda) stepped out of the meeting for the roll call
vote. Alternate Commissioner Nico Procos represented Alameda.

Motion: A motion was made by Bob Lingl and seconded by Greg Scharff to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of ltems 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, and 27 .
The motion carried by a majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted
below for each item. San Francisco BART, Gridley, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Months Ended October 31, 2018 — approval by all members.
11. Treasurer’s Report for the Months Ended October 31, 2018 — accept by all members.

12. Resolution 18-88, Thermal Engineering International (USA), Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services. Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement with Thermal Engineering International (USA), Inc. for engineering
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by
SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

13. Resolution 18-90, Well Analysis Corporation, Inc., dba WELACO, Inc. — Five year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement for Well Related Services. Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task General Services Agreement with Well Analysis Corporation, Inc., dba WELACO, Inc. for well
related services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members
Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
November 29, 2018



the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.
Port of Oakland abstained.

14. Resolution 18-91, AECOM Technical Services, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement for Injection Well Related Consulting Services. Applicable to
the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
First Amendment to Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with AECOM Technical Services,
Inc., for injection well related consulting services, with any non-substantial changes recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall increase the not exceed amount from
$100,000 to $500,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be used
out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

15. Resolution 18-92, Wagner Mechanical, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for General T&M Maintenance Services. Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Wagner Mechanical, Inc., for general T&M maintenance services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

16. Resolution 18-93, Nor-Cal Controls ES, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year Muiti-Task
Professional Services Agreement for Control Systems Support Services. Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Nor-Cal Controls ES, Inc., for
control systems support services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall increase the not to exceed amount from $350,000 to
$800,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $800,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

17. Resolution 18-94, Bay Valve Service & Engineering, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Valve Related Services. Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Bay Valve Service & Engineering, Inc. for valve related testing and
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
("SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
November 29, 2018



18.

19.

20.

21.

Resolution 18-95, Reliability Management Group - First Amendment to Two Year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement for Miscellaneous Consulting Services. Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to the Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Reliability Management Group for
miscellaneous consulting services related to warehouse operations and inventory management, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall increase the not to exceed amount from $100,000 to $500,000 and make this agreement
available for use at any facilities owned or operated by NCPA, its Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 18-96, Capuano Engineering Company — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement for Assisting in Development of New or Production Well Workovers, Interpretation
of Well Analysis Reports and Supervision During Drilling Operations. Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Generation Facilities — adopt resolution by all members authorizing
the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
Capuano Engineering Company for assisting in development of new or production well workovers,
interpretation of well analysis reports, and supervision during drilling operations, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland, Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Resolution 18-97, Westgate Petroleum Company, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year
Agreement for the Purchase of Equipment, Materials and Supplies for Delivery of Fuel and
Other Miscellaneous Petroleum Products. Applicable to the following project: NCPA
Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Agreement for the Purchase of Equipment, Materials
and Supplies with Westgate Petroleum Company, Inc., for delivery of fuel and other miscellaneous
petroleum products, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall increase the not to exceed amount from $1,350,000 to $2,350,000, for
use at the Geyser's Geothermal Plant Facility.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,350,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Resolution 18-98, Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc. — Public Works Agreement for CT1 Fire System
Upgrade. Applicable to the following projects: CT1 Alameda and CT1 Lodi Facilities — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Public
Works Agreement with Bay Cities Pyrotector, Inc., for CT1 fire system upgrade services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $328,684.47, for use at the NCPA CT1 Alameda and CT1 Lodi facilities.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $328,684.47 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
November 29, 2018



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Resolution 18-99, Hibbard Inshore, LLC General Services Agreement for a Remotely Operated
Vehicle Inspection of the Collierville Power Tunnel. Applicable to the following project: NCPA
Hydroelectric Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a General Services Agreement and to issue Purchase Orders to Hibbard
Inshore, LLC., for remote operated vehicle inspection of the Collierville power tunnel, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $400,000 for use at the NCPA Hydroelectric Facility

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the project is anticipated to be $296,381, but it is recommended that
an approximately 35% contingency be included in the authorization in consideration of unknowns
such as the actual condition of the tunnel and the potential for interference from items such as
abandoned construction cables. This project was included in the current fiscal year budget, with
$250,000 directly allocated for this purpose. The FY19 budget also includes $170,000 for dam and
structure maintenance. Cost allocation will be based on project participation percentages.

Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Resolution 18-104, Approval of Three Multi-Task Agreements to provide EM&V and Technical
Advisory Services — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into three separate multi-task agreements to provide EM&V and Technical
Advisory Services to NCPA, NCPA Members, as well as members of the Southern California Public
Power Authority, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, with: 1) ADM Associates, in an amount not-to-exceed $800,000; 2) Cadmus Group
LLC, in an amount not-to-exceed $800,000; and 3) Energy and Resources Solution, in an amount
not-to-exceed $800,000.

Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact to NCPA. The total not-to-exceed cost of the three agreements is
$2,400,000 (or $800,000 for each agreement), an amount that is not included in the current fiscal
year budget. Funds will be made available by each NCPA and SCPPA member that requests
services from any of the three vendors, on a pass-through basis, in conjunction with the NCPA
Shared Services Agreement.

Resolution 18-110, Review and Approve Investment Policy Guidelines and Delegate
Investment Duties to the Treasurer-Controller — adopt resolution by all members adopting the
following: annual review of NCPA'’s Investment Policy No. 200-100 and a recommendation of no
changes to the current policy; confirming delegation to the Treasurer-Controller the authority to
invest, or to reinvest funds of the Agency, or to sell or exchange securities so purchased; and
Treasurer-Controller assumes full responsibility for investment transactions until the authority is
revoked or expires, and shall make a report each month of those transactions to the Commission.
Fiscal Impact: There is no direct dollar impact to this proposed policy. The resolution approves the
Agency policy surrounding investments and delegates authority to the Treasurer-Controller for the
investment activities of the Agency.

Resolution 18-111, FY2018 Annual Billing Settlements — adopt resolution by all members
approving the FY2017-2018 Annual Billing Settlements.

Fiscal Impact: Upon approval by Agency Commission the amount of $4,122,701 will be distributed
to participants. NCPA member refund amounts will be deposited into their respective General
Operating Reserve accounts, and non-members will either receive a debit or credit miscellaneous
billing in early December with payment due by the end of December. Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg,
Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, Santa Clara, and Ukiah directed that their proportionate refunds totaling
$2,851,910 for the Hydro and Geo projects be deposited into the Hydro Capital Development
($1,052,176) and Geo Maintenance ($1,799,734) Reserves and used to fund the McKay’s Reservoir
Clean Out and Well Replacement/Workover Projects, respectively.

Resolution 18-112, Approval of Major Insurance Renewals for the Policy Year of 2019 — adopt

resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager to negotiate and bind property damage,

liability and workers’ compensation coverages amounts as presented (or better) and a not-to-exceed
proposed premiums of approximately $2,420,178.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

November 29, 2018



27.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the policy year 2019 insurance programs is about $3,009,930 or
3.08% below calendar year 2019 budget (half of FY2018 and half of FY2019 budget) of $3,105,664
for the underlined programs.

Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property — note and file report by all Members for the disposal of two
24V DC Isolators and two Sulzer Turbine Speed Indicators.
Fiscal Impact: This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

28.

29.

30.

Resolution 18-100, P-Site Well Workovers Project; Applicable to the following projects: NCPA
Geothermal Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the Geothermal P-Site Well
Workovers Project and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids,
enter into agreements, and issue purchase orders for the Project in accordance with NCPA
Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to
exceed project cost of $9 Million (subject to approval of $3 Million in the FY2020 budget to complete
the proposed work for all four wells).

Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the proposed workover project for all four wells is not to exceed
$9,000,000. This project was included in the current fiscal year budget in the amount of $6 Million for
work on two wells. As noted, the additional $3 Million for the Project will be included in the proposed
FY2020 Budget.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave a presentation on the P-Site well work at the
Geothermal facility. Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks discussed the FY18 settlements
refunds and how the refunds will be dispersed among the Members.

Motion: A motion was made by Bob Lingl and seconded by Jerry Serventi authorizing the
Geothermal P-Site Well Workovers Project and delegating authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, enter into agreements, and issue purchase orders for the Project in
accordance with NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the
Commission, for a total not to exceed project cost of $9 Million (subject to approval of $3 Million in
the FY2020 budget to complete the proposed work for all four wells). The motion carried by a
unanimous roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent. Port of Oakland, Redding
and Shasta Lake abstained.

ITEM 29 WAS PULLED AND DEFERRED TO THE JANUARY 17, 2019 COMMISSION MEETING.

Resolution 18-105, Bond, Disclosure and Special Tax Counsel Services - Approve the
Selection of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP and Nixon Peabody LLP to Provide Bond,
Disclosure, and Special Tax Counsel Services and Authorize the General Manager to Execute
Agreements for these Specialized Services — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into enabling Legal Services Agreements with Norton
Rose Fulbright US LLP and Nixon Peabody LLP to provide Bond, Disclosure, and Special Tax
Counsel services as requested, each agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over a five
(9) year term, with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel

Fiscal Impact. The costs for bond, disclosure and tax counsel services are dependent on the
Agency’s authorization, issuance and sale of bonds and related activities. These services are
typically included as costs of issuance funded with bond proceeds and are not included as part of the
approved annual budget. According to the NCPA Variable Rate Debt and Interest Rate Management
Policy, a target of 5% net present value (NPV) savings is desired before considering a bond
refunding. The 5% NPV savings is net of costs of issuance, including bond, disclosure and tax
counsel legal services.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 7
November 29, 2018



31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt provided a presentation on the Bond, Disclosure and Special Tax
Counsel Services.

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff and seconded by Mark Chandler authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into enabling Legal Services Agreements with Norton
Rose Fulbright US LLP and Nixon Peabody LLP to provide Bond, Disclosure, and Special Tax
Counsel services as requested, each agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over a
five (5) year term, with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote of those members present.
San Francisco BART, Gridley, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-86, Approval of Resolution Commending Bob Lingl — adopt resolution by all
members commending Bob Lingl.

Chair Frith read the resolution expressing appreciation for Bob’s dedication to NCPA and thanked
him for his years of service on the Commission and Executive Committee.

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’'Neill and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution
18-86, Commending Bob Lingl. The motion carried by a majority on a voice vote of those members
present. San Francisco BART, Gridley, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-87, Approval of Resolution Commending John Roukema — adopt resolution by all
members commending John Roukema.

Resolution 18-113, Approval of Resolution Commending Bonnie Gore — adopt resolution by all
members commending Bonnie Gore.

Resolution 18-114, Approval of Resolution Commending Dan Kenney — adopt resolution by all
members commending Dan Kenney.

Resolution 18-115, Approval of Resolution Commending Patrick Kolstad — adopt resolution by
all members commending Patrick Kolstad.

Motion: One motion was made by Bob Lingl and seconded by Teresa O'Neill to adopt resolution 18-
87 Commending John Roukema, resolution 18-113, Commending Bonnie Gore, resolution 18-114
Commending Dan Kenney, and resolution 18-115 Commending Patrick Kolstad. The motion carried
by a majority on a voice vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

CLOSED SESSION

Non-essential Members and NCPA staff left the meeting for Closed Session item 36, 37 and 38
discussion.

In compliance with NCPA’s Bylaws Section 4(d)(ii), all attendees, except the appointed Commissioner
and essential NCPA staff, left the meeting for Closed Session items 39, 40 and 41 discussion.

36.

37.

Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

b

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation — pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision
(d) of Government Code section 54956.9: One (1) case.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

November 29, 2018



38. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to California Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): One (1) case: Pacific Gas and Electric Company’s (U 39 G) 2019 Gas
Transmission and Storage Rate Case, Application of Pacific Gas and Electric Company Proposing
Cost of Service and Rates for Gas Transmission and Storage Services for the Period 2019 — 2021,
California Public Utilities Commission Application 17-11-009 (filed November 17, 2017).

39. Conference with Labor Negotiators and Performance Evaluation — pursuant to Government
Code section 54957.6: Agency representatives: NCPA Executive Committee Members, Assistant
General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks and Human Resources Manager Vicki Cichocki;
and Government Code section 54957: Performance Evaluation: Unrepresented Public
Employee: Two (2) categories: General Manager and General Counsel.

40. Conference with Labor Negotiators — pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency
representatives: General Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human Resources Manager Vicki
Cichocki. Employee organization: IBEW 1245 (Geothermal and Combustion Turbines).

41. Conference with Labor Negotiators — pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6: Agency
representatives: General Manager Randy S. Howard, Assistant General Manager Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks, and Human Resources Manager Vicki
Cichocki. Employee organization: Hydroelectric Employees Association (HEA).

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable action was
taken on Closed Session items 36, 38, 39, 40, and 41.

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated reportable action was taken on

Closed Session item 37 to direct staff to negotiate a change order by way of the terms set forth by the
Commission.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

42. Resolution 18-101, Pacific Gas and Electric Natural Gas Negotiated Rate Contract Extension —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to negotiate and
execute an extension of the gas transportation rate contract between NCPA and Pacific Gas and
Electric Company, to remain in effect until the end of the current Gas Transportation Rate Case.
Fiscal Impact: The reduced rate allows LEC to be more competitive in the market. This allows for a
higher capacity factor and increased margins.

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer provided an update on the extension of the gas transportation
rate contract between NCPA and Pacific Gas and Electric Company.

Motion: A motion was made Greg Scharff and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt the resolution
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to negotiate and execute an extension of the gas
transportation rate contract between NCPA and Pacific Gas and Electric Company, to remain in
effect until the end of the current Gas Transportation Rate Case. Motion carried by majority on a roll
call vote of those members present.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 9
November 29, 2018



43.

44,

45.

46.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-106, Approval of Third Amendment to Employment Agreement with Randy S.
Howard General Manager — adopt resolution by all members approving the Third Amendment to the
Employment Agreement between NCPA and Randy S. Howard; authorize the Chair of the
Commission to execute the Third Amendment to the Employment Agreement; and approve the
General Manager's Performance Goals for 2019.

Fiscal Impact. Funds are available in the Executive Services Salaries and Benefits account, and
there is no material change to the current fiscal year budget.

Motion: A motion was made by Bob Lingl and seconded by Basil Wong to adopt resolution approving
the Third Amendment to the Employment Agreement between NCPA and Randy S. Howard which
provides a 4% salary increase effective on December 23, 2018; authorize the Chair of the
Commission to execute the Third Amendment to the Employment Agreement; and approve the
General Manager’s Performance Goals for 2019. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of
those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-107, Approval of Second Amendment to Employment Agreement with Jane E.
Luckhardt General Counsel — adopt resolution by all members approving the Second Amendment
to the Employment Agreement between NCPA and Jane E. Luckhardt; authorize the Chair of the
Commission to execute the Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement; and approve the
General Counsel's Performance Goals for 2019.

Fiscal Impact. Funds are available in the Executive Services — Legal Salaries and Benefits account;
there is no material change to the current fiscal year budget.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Jerry Serventi to adopt resolution
approving the Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement between NCPA and Jane E.
Luckhardt which provides a 3.5% salary increase effective on December 23, 2018; authorize the
Chair of the Commission to execute the Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement; and
approve the General Counsel’s Performance Goals for 2019. Motion carried by majority on a roll call
vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-108, IBEW Local 1245 Memorandum of Understanding — adopt resolution by all
members approving the proposed labor package for IBEW Local 1245 employees for the period of
December 23, 2018 through December 22, 2021, which was bargained in good faith based on the
direction provided to management's negotiating representatives, and authorize the General Manager
to make the required modifications in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to implement the
economic and non-economic agreed terms and conditions.

Motion: A motion was made by Bob Lingl and seconded by Greg Scharff to adopt resolution
approving the proposed labor package for the IBEW Local 1245 employees for the period of
December 23, 2018, through December 22, 2021, which was bargained in good faith based on the
direction provided to management’s negotiating representatives, and authorizes the General
Manager to make the required modifications in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to
implement the economic and non-economic agreed terms and conditions. Motion carried by majority
on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Resolution 18-109, Hydroelectric Employees Association Memorandum of Understanding —
adopt resolution by all members approving the proposed labor package for the Hydroelectric
Employees Association (HEA) employees for the period of December 23, 2018 through December
22, 2021, which was bargained in good faith based on the direction provided to management'’s
negotiating representatives, and authorize the General Manager to make the required modifications
in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to implement the economic and non-economic agreed

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 10
November 29, 2018



terms and conditions. Motion carried by majority on a roll call vote of those members present.
San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Truckee Donner, and Ukiah were absent.

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff and seconded by Basil Wong to adopt resolution
approving the proposed labor package for the Hydroelectric Employees Association (HEA) for the
period of December 23, 2018, through December 22, 2021, which was bargained in good faith based
on the direction provided to management’s negotiating representatives, and authorizes the General
Manager to make the required modifications in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to
implement the economic and non-economic agreed terms and conditions.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The November 29, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 12:33 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 11

November 29, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of November 29, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA
2 - BIGGS )(Cr’ ks
3 - GRIDLEY
4 - HEALDSBURG @/
= |
5 - LODI Ak s CRporSLr
6 - LOMPOC Bl o
¢ </

= B T
7- PALO ALTO /V\/L,-/”"

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND /2)4 | Wong

_,.

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC e I, w{zwé/ 5;»7;(*

10 - REDDING W /f,qﬁ_w_

11 - ROSEVILLE T\[i{/\ Ad CQ/'/OQ

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

13 - SANTA CLARA Tlowsn Ol
14 - Shasta Lake 7;,@5 7;2644,4

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of November 29, 2018

Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the

public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
/r7/// ////jé//// Jett Vs
éﬁﬁ.m—c / ; Z/&'ﬂvyﬁoz
My Beiohm Resnwlbe
Mo " et AMO
Sres T lafpern Shonate Lats
Dovad Randh [P (s
17 chae | Breozo PsprEC
/ra/\vt Zimme N (PA
Mogty Hawles NOM
Leon pee
(TA N/ f AV :\\mzw NWF’ .
\ O l*()( ﬂ&»’-kc\\"‘\
L2 //xrﬂ/o/’ Cody
fZag o2 f“l?-c «u\ % (995 <
Lawdy Npusad Nepp

LN Mg
~ %

0005




%CPA CONSENT CALENDAR

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: November 29, 2018

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # \D to # &ﬁ‘}/

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

# //
ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS:)V “@\\(\{\’ \m s QA/

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda \J

BART J e

Biggs N

Gridley ' N

Healdsburg N

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto AN N

Port of Oakland .\ \S W\ ), \CI-Q—\

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake G — 22—

N
4
Redding \C\ N0, l\ s \f\;
7l

Truckee Donner »

Ukiah >

Plumas-Sierra \{

(“\\/M

Ca\'yLA/ Pa

Assistant Secretary to the Commission




Topic:

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

RESOLUTION 18-100

<
@]
o
m

r] e 1T

ABSTAIN

AKX

ABSENT
X

X
. &

Passed and adopted this 29'" day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

/<> Z M ATTEST: ( t'(\\'\é PW

ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

CARY A. PADGETT—

Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: RESOLUTION 18-101

<
S
rm

ABSTAIN ABSENT

X

Alameda
BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner ><
Ukiah X

Passed and adopted this 29t day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

et pge] e ¢

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADG‘ETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic:

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

RESOLUTION 18-105

<
o
=
m

TR

ABSTAIN

ABSENT

X

.
X

Passed and adopted this 29t day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

i g

ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

ATTEST: C,\R@\%\

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: RESOLUTION 18-106

<
(@]
=
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda P—
BART ___3(
Biggs
Gridley Y
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner —7(
Ukiah X
Passed and adopted this 29'" day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

aannnhasasiany

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT _
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic:

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

RESOLUTION 18-107

<
o]
3
m

anasnRasdniniy

ABSTAIN

ABSENT

el
e

Passed and adopted this 29t day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

KM i

ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

gy VYN

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary



Topic:

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

RESOLUTION 18-108

<
O
—
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT

Frrrr] el ¢

=
. i

Passed and adopted this 29t day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

j;;};,,_, /Zf ATTEST: mjt\

ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALLVOTE

Topic: RESOLUTION 18-109

S
=
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT

Alameda
BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner >(
Ukiah _ _ ﬁ_

Passed and adopted this 29t day of November 2018, by the above vote on roll call.

;Q;)ﬂ,\. / = ATTEST: Q&\%\

| Frrr

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



/

r ¥
A &
3 y

W 4 rusiic asEncy

"‘A:

Pei-ss
':‘?r : N
¥ f

PA

,»'ONORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT:

November 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\O

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth <5 (3 ()’ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

All Members Cityof Lodi [J

U City of Lompoc [1

San F'a"ci;‘;:i'za%’rg::; O City of Palo Alto [
City of Biggs [l City of Redding [1

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville []

O O

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o O

SR: 100:19




November 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
January 9, 2019

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the January 17, 2019 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is
a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman'’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited November 2018 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

L

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 100:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of November 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,208,739
3,135,667
2,548,448

559,567
12,093,826
27,290,900

$ 46,837,147




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018 42%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 960,997 $ 6,247,633 % 16,699,691 37%

Debt Service (Net) 2,929,735 14,648,677 35,156,824 42%
Annual Budget Cost 3,890,732 20,896,210 51,856,515 40%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 1,991,057 12,317,246 29,488,515 42%

Debt Service (Net) 411,408 2,057,040 4,936,896 42%
Annual Budget Cost 2,402,465 14,374,286 34,425,411 42%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 779,031 2,999,864 6,605,701 45%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 63,135 722,267 977,410 74% (a)

Other Plant Cost 158,576 904,338 2,048,734 44%

Debt Service (Net) 476,392 2,381,962 5,716,708 42%
Annual Budget Cost 698,103 4,008,567 8,742,852 46%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 6,140,104 22,619,724 33,092,116 68% (b)

Other Plant Cost 1,768,539 9,916,215 24,544,632 40%

Debt Service (Net) 2,173,321 10,866,605 26,079,852 42%
Annual Budget Cost 10,081,964 43,402,544 83,716,600 52%
Member Resources - Energy 5,035,204 27,022,524 64,448,814 42%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 353,521 2,033,612 3,098,278 66% (c)
Western Resources 1,583,377 7,790,904 31,349,618 25%
Market Power Purchases 2,304,434 10,244,292 15,539,033 66% (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 32,409,726 130,661,804 273,858,269 48% (e)
Net GHG Obligations 535,385 1,150,485 1,122,972 102%  (f)

60,073,942 264,585,092 574,764,063 46%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 434,182 1,985,096 3,662,271 54% (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 7,020,413 41,387,785 104,569,875 40%
Ancillary Services 468,763 3,510,596 3,040,303 115% (h)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) 4,830,387 (483,361) 1,649,274 -31% (i)
12,753,745 46,400,116 112,821,723 41%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 110,570 826,702 2,023,068 41%
Regulatory Representation 53,573 235,379 886,616 27%
Western Representation 59,934 250,662 848,160 30%
Member Services 14,033 125,682 438,389 29%
Judicial Action 102,895 257,895 625,000 41%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2018 42%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 496,167 2,376,738 6,107,416 39%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 186,978 997,842 2,775,167 36%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 17,766 108,272 438,813 25%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 56,888 333,544 1,134,623 29%
Green Power Project 22 123 2,964 4%
Gas Purchase Program 4,859 25,713 77,781 33%
Market Purchase Project 6,083 34,887 112,014 31%
Energy Risk Management 11,803 56,829 259,585 22%
Settlements 34,109 221,678 941,392 24%
Integrated Systems Support 2,193 47,128 272,850 17%
Participant Pass Through Costs 223,480 484,569 1,619,170 30%
Support Services 122,168 519,923 - N/A
1,503,521 6,903,566 18,563,008 37%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 74,331,208 317,888,774 706,148,794 a5%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 13,828,288 73,163,573 100,456,289 73% )
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 4,110,014 19,425,595 28,186,777 69% (k)
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 2,473,990 12,160,651 14,720,326 83% (k)
Western Resource Energy Sales 975,768 12,464,657 23,182,775 54% (k)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 20,579,750 82,804,660 131,328,609 63% 0]
Angcillary Services Sales 406,740 2,699,949 4,409,129 61%  (m)
Transmission Sales 9,198 45,990 110,376 42%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 1,632,260 8,284,373 37,414,086 22%
44,016,008 211,049,448 339,808,367 62%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 30,315,200 $ 106,839,326 $ 366,340,427 29%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 267% of budgeted MWhs at 11/30/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 104% of budgeted MWhs at 11/30/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation at CT1, CT2, and LEC. See notes (a) and (b).

(d) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY 19 budget including certain
NextEra and Sheli deals.

(e) Increase due to higher than budgeted market prices.

(f) Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for
Alameda and the City of Lodi.

(9) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b).
(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b).

(i) The budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, imbalance revenues, neutrality allocations,
congestion offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(i) Variance due to higher than anticipated ISO energy sales and higher market prices for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.
(k) Increase due to higher market prices caused by California wildfires.
() The load aggregation energy sales variance is due to unbudgeted sales related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Clean Energy.

(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a) and (b) and corresponding increase in ancillary services costs.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
November 30,
2018 2017
ASSETS (in thousands)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,275 $ 20,395
Investments 45,228 57,126
Accounts receivable
Participants - 2,231
Other 129 183
Interest receivable 416 173
Inventory and supplies 9,746 9,835
Prepaid expenses 760 317
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 81,554 90,260
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 53,438 57,670
Investments 166,674 165,027
Interest receivable 732 603
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 220,844 223,300
ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service 1,505,094 1,503,491
Less: accumulated depreciation (986,131) (955,617)
518,963 547,874
Construction work-in-progress 182 151
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 519,145 548,025
OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets 228,554 234,646
Unused vendor credits - 24
Preliminary survey and investigation costs 165 -
Investment in associated company 265 -
TOTAL ASSETS 1,050,527 1,096,255
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt 37,927 43,611
Pension deferrals 19,200 13,506
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 57,127 57,117

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 1,107,654 § 1,153,372




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
November 30,
2018 2017
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 19,659 §$ 28,675
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 50 -
Member advances 1,138 993
Operating reserves 21,553 20,845
Current portion of long-term debt 41,950 41,870
Accrued interest payable 16,874 18,418
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 101,224 110,801
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 76,002 64,589
Operating reserves and other deposits 147,113 145,276
Interest rate swap liability 11,818 15,433
Long-term debt, net 663,768 705,322
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 898,701 930,620
TOTAL LIABILITIES 999,925 1,041,421
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 69,334 71,950
Pension and OPEB deferrals 3,195 4,460
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 72,529 76,410
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (49,674) (51,288)
Restricted 50,482 45,660
Unrestricted 34,392 41,169
TOTAL NET POSITION 35,200 35,541

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,107,654 $ 1,153,372




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
Five Months Ended November 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 159,963 § 143,463
Other Third-Party 125,553 104,965
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 285,516 248,428
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 129,173 107,312
Operations 43,229 31,379
Transmission 71,565 62,215
Depreciation 12,906 12,904
Maintenance 9,396 9,186
Administrative and general 8,176 6,958
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 274,445 229,954
NET OPERATING REVENUES 11,071 18,474
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense (16,375) (18,112)
Interest income 5,341 2,955
Other 2,786 2,100
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES (8,248) (13,057)
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (2,594) (1,599)
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS (3,097) (2,337)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (2,868) 1,481
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 38,068 34,060

NET POSITION, Period ended $ 35200 § 35,541




UOHEWIqUIOD) Ul PITBUILI

SFOUNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ANRNIHAFId ANV SLISSVY TY.LOL

SEYMIOSHY A0 SMOTILNO ATAHId TVLOL

S[ELIOJOp UOISUSY

193 JO Suipunyal uo 1509 SSAIXY
SHOYNOSTY JO SMOTILNO ATIIFTATA

SLASSV TVIOL

PalRIDOSSE Ul AUl

¥S9°LOL' 191 § 0Lp91 [ $ - §  9s8'6Ty § I¢L §  L85TE $  S06FSE § 8,788
LTILS 00Z°61 5 - - 2007 # 98 Pov €€ $85°1
002761 00Z°61 E - ] 5 - - - .
LTE'LE - = = 7 200T % 98 poY e $86°1
LTS°0S0°T [4%4731 0LY91 SOv°€T = vS8'LTY 1€L 1WLTE 11y 1Z¢E £69'98
§9T S92 - - 3 = " - - -
91 - 91 - - - : - -
4% 144 T6L°19 - - : 6LY YT - SEL'G 68T €EL (vL)
SYI'61S 05LT 95€ - = YBEIEE 7661 1L8°S1 T0L°8T1L 38E°EE
81 2 - B - 81 - s - *
£96°815 0SL°T 95¢€ - g 20T°9¢€ ¥66°'T 1£L5°61 T0L'8T1 88E'EE
(1£1°986) (661°¢) (vt} - [CIVAl (rv9°L8) (855%€) (18Z°6%) (912°992) (250°LES)
$60°50S 1 6¥6°S 96L = 9€L’L op8‘CTy T65°9€ 758%9 816'v6€ SHPOLS
¥8°0TT 088°0L & £91°8T - 6L8°0Y - €15°E 1L6'8Y YEY'RT
TEL €LT - - : 651 - [ 191 [$4
¥L9°991 €28°1$ - $$8°TT - 819'8T : 1Z0°c 8b'9E 0s1vT
8EP'ES ¥80°61 # £1€'s - wWo'Tl - 8Ly 79€T1 651
bSsTI8 S£5°9 6061 (Z9LY) = T11°97 (€9z'1) 76T 67701 TI9°ST
- [Z4XCll 606°S1 (88671 - TT6'ET 0£9T) 8LTT £PE6 0£5°0T
09L 8yl 9 - - 9 1 I 9T s
LG - - = - 114 Sov'l 59 6L0°T 605V
114 85T - 8S1 - - - - - -
621 09 - 89 - b - - [ -
8TT'SH 8TT'Sy - - - = - 2 -
SLT'ST $91°5T $ e § - $ - § €L s 1 $ 1 $ - $ 1
pauiquio) ADUITY SIIAISS UOISSISUeL | auQ ON 13U ARIRUY 3uQ) ‘ON sanoe DLD3[30IPAH [ewRYI03D)
B[40 JOqUISIA 7§ Bmod UOQISSIUSURI Y, pog 1D rende)
PRIBIDOSSY paseyaing sjdnmpy

SHOMNOSTA NOISSTNSNVIL % ONILVIINTD

8107 ‘0€ JoquidsoN

1 pue Asains Areun d

ot

syosse Alorensoy
SLASSY ¥IHLO

INVTd ORILOFTd TVIOL
ssaifoid-ur-310m uonONIISU0)

uoneasdop paje[nLNoIe $83]

201A195 Ul Jueld oL
INVTd ORLLOFTH

SIFSSV Q410MMLSTd TYLOL

9[qeAI2021 15343U]

SIUOUWIISIAU]

sjudjeAinbs yses pue yse)
SLASSY AdLITMLSTI

SLESSV INTRIND TV10L
1swieiBod soyio pue AsusBy wox sng

sasuadxa predaig
sayddns pue K10waAu]
3[qBAI203] 1S3II]

e te]

spuedoired
S[qeAI90a] STUNOODY
SIUSWIISIAU]
sjuajeamba yses pue yse)

SLASSV INTIIND

SI1IASSVY

(pannwo s,000)

SNOILVIOJIO0D 4AMOd dALVIDOSSY ANV
AINIADV YEMOd VINYOAITVI NUTHLION

NOILLISOd LAN 40 INFWALVLS ONINIFNOD

NOLLVINYOANI TVIONVNIA YdHLO



$S9LOT’T $ ol 0LY91 $ sove [ § 9s8°6Tr 7 L8STE §  S06PSE 8788
00T's¢ 6LTT 795°L (pL121) . 95E 1 L79) [ vIv'L 968°S1
T6EHE 8L7T LTL'L [C/ANAN] 2 768°TH 2z9) £9¢€T TIg6 1291
78t'05 I (s9D) - : £r1°6l - +I0°E 8€5°1T 1569
(rL9'6t) - - - - (6L9°LD) - (£88'y) (9er'eD) (9L9°€)
67STL S6£°9 61€ z 782°0F 651°T 126 601Y [l
S61°€ S61°€ - - - - ] = : =
PEE'69 00Z°¢ 6l¢ - - 782'0p 651°C 126 6017 pre 8l
$T6°666 8vLTS1 6858 6L5°SE - 8ITSLE (108) [7A%T3 [£ 8E0HS
10L'868 188°9%1 W8 STE']T - L98'TEE - $96'ST 156°61E 0Ly OF
89L'€99 - - - oSt - $96'$T £55°98C 001°0T
81811 - E 2 - - > - 818°11 -
£11°LbL 6L8°0L we's STE]T - LILL 2 - 085°LL 0LE0T
700'9L 200'9L - s - - - - - i
yzz'1ol L98'S LbE vST'L 3 1SE°Tk (108) L0TS 1E4°LT 8951
pL89L - - - - 61401 - 661 TEL'S vz
0s6°'1Y = - . - 08H 11 - S61°t 08112 $60°S
£58'1T - - n - 8¢TP! (108) €1s 05T £€E°L
8€1°1 - LbE - - - - . - 16L
0s s - : o oy . - ol -
65961 $  198's - § vSTL $ - $ ¥SI'9 ] C $ 65T 4
pauiquo) Aouady SIS ISSH 1L ISST L 11U AUy U ON saniey OLIIOS[ROIPAH euraylo09n)
B0 Toquiy % Jamog poy 12 fende)
PRIBIDOSSY paseyoung ajdumy
SADUNOSTY NOISSINSNV UL @ ONILVAINAD
8107 ‘0€ 12quIdA0N

NOILLISOd 19N ANV S304N0SHY 10
SMOTANI AY¥FJHd STLLITEVIT TVIOL
NOILISOd 18N TV.LOL
peloIsaIu}
paioLnsay
s1ess® [eNdED UI JUSWISIAUL JON
NOILLISOd LaN

SADANOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATNYAIAA TYIOL
$[EL0JOP GdO PUE BOISUS]
sypass KiorenSay

SHOUNOSTY JO SMOTINI ATIIIHA
SALLITIEVIT TYLOL

STILITIEVIT INTRIND-NON TVLOL

19U 1q2p tud}-Suog

Aupiqey dems 21e1 159503u]

susodap 110 pue saassal Junriadg

Aunqer] 94O pue uosuad 19N
SHILITHEVIT LNTTINO-NON

STILITIAVIT LNFYAND TV.LOL

9|qeAed 1S2191U1 PAIDDY
193p wial-Suo] Jo uoniod waLmy
saasesal SuneradQ
SIJUBADPE JOQUIS]A
UOTIOLISUOD JOf PAISLIISAI - d]qeArd SUONUSIAI pUR STUN0ODY
sasuadxa ponroge pue a|qeded sjunoddy
SALLIUEVIT LNIIIND

SHILITIAVI'T

(paywo 5,000)
SNOLLVHOJYOD YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AONADV HAMOd VINHOAITVD NYAHLION

NOILISOd LIN 40 INTIWHILVLS DNINITFNOOD

NOLLVINYOANI TVIONVNIA YIHLO



UOTRUIQUIOT) Ul PATRUIIE 4

00T°s€ § 6LT°T $ T9S°L $ WLz [ §  9SEwI $ (L29) [ $ pivL $ 968Gt $ papus pousd ‘NOILISOd LN
890'8€ L£8 L6L9 9608 - e 9z9) 60t L8€°L vT6'LL 1eak jo Suiuuidag ‘NOILISOd LIN
(898°7) Tl S9L (0L2°00) - ZI1L (1) S8 LT TL6'E NOILISOd LAN NI (SVHIOEQ) ASYTIONI
(260°¢) (696°1) (ozv) (evL) E = 6 o1 (s87) 61T SINVJIDILYYd OL SANNITY
(r6s0) - - ¢ - 069 - (€L8) (esv'D) (856) SINNOWY FTEVIIAQOTY TANLNA
(8v'8) 078°C 32 vL9 - 999°¢) I 10€ (90L8) S8 SANNIATE (STSNHIXH) ONILYYHd0 NON TVIOL
98LT 15T - 9 - P19 - LS8 - - 100
IPE'S 695°C [32 019 - 898 I 9 LL9 605 awoout 15a193U]
(sLe'ot) = - E - (8v1°9) - (0z9) (€8£6) (v a5uadxa 153191]

SANNTATY (SASNTIXH) ONILVYHI0 NON

1L0°11 165 syl (1oz'0z) : 880°¢1 (66) L¥9 1yo1 9TrY SANNIATY ONLLVYEEIO LIN
Sty YLT (zg1) vT6'L PT°L61 - 3 Sv0'e 8EST 695°01 1L8°C1 SASNAIXH ONLLVYEJO TV.LOL
z = V53] - - AR 13 [ 301 ¥9z) «Iou ‘saseyoind (safes) Auedwoosowy
oLI'8 (ree) 096'C - - 9¢6°1 89T 08T 6221 LZ8°1 [e20u33 pUE SATBHISIUILPY
96£°6 7 44 - ; 6LY°1 9Eb°l ¥$T TTTT £86°€ QOUBUAUIEY
90671 421 (44 - . 0609 08 816 066°€ #r9°l uoneaideq
$9¢°1L - T v79°0L - £vb [xa] 9 (7T 0ot UOISSIWSURI],
[raasd . ST6' v€0°T * 959°9T 0L8 LS6 yTs't €979 suopeiadQ
£L1°6T1 = - £85°PT1 = 81L°T [Xx4 43 6921 8¢ 1amod paseyding
SASNEIXH ONLLVITdO
915768 60 2L0'6 0v0°LLT = LTSTES 96T S81°e 0p0°1Z L6T 8L SHNNHATY ONLLY¥IIO TVIOL
£55°521 : (Lg) Shy 6 ® H0'eh 69T°1 L8Y'1 16T°€1 1S0°LL Aued-pryL YO
£96'651 $  60p § 6016 $  s6s'LTl $ - §  9stol § LL91 $ 8691 $ 6vLL $ orel $ swedonreg
SANNFATI ONILY ¥ddO
pauIquo) AUty SIDIAISS UOISSIWSURL], UOISSTUSURL], 191ua)) ARIRUH JuQ ON sanoey DLJ39[30IpAH [BULIBYI030)
Yo 1RqUIRIN % Jomog 1pog 10 [ende)
pareoossy paseyoing adnny

SHOMNOSHYE NOISSINSNVYL % ONLLVEANTD
8107 ‘0€ AWIAON PIPUF SHIUOIA ALT Y3 104

(pantwo 5,000)
SNOILVIOJA0D 4IMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AINIDV YAMOd VINJOLI'TVI NUAHLAON

NOLLISOd LAN NI SAONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAONTATH 40 INFIWILVLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVINHOANI TVIONVNIA HHHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
November 30, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount
CURRENT $ 95,840
PAST DUE:

1-30 Merced Irrigation District Power Mgt Service Fee - Oct'18 33,313 *
31-60
61-90
91-120
Over 120 Days
PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 129,153

* Denotes items paid/applied after November 30, 2018.

AR FY 2019Nov Rpt 2018



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of November 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,208,739
3,135,667
2,548,448

559,567
12,093,826
27,290,900

$ 46,837,147




Al A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended November 30, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworthg-})\_j& METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members CityofLodi O

Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc []
San Franci;;;ig?(r:;:; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC

City of Biggs [ City of Redding [J

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [J

City of Healdsburg [1 City of SantaClara [

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0o o o o o

SR: 102:19



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended November 30, 2018
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.
BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $3,146,009 of which approximately $24,246 was applicable to
Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $499,521 to Debt Service and $2,622,242 to Operations and
other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA'’s investment portfolio totaled $287,417,450 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $284,008,778.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.017% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.045%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $169,586,000. November maturities totaled $34 million and monthly receipts totaled
$36 million. During the month $32 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills increased 5 basis points (from 2.34%
to 2.39%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 4 basis points (from 2.66% to 2.70%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of November 30, 2018 are
in compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

[

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment
SR: 102:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

NOVEMBER 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS S

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

Northern California Power Agency

November 30, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
$ 820,049 $ 96,987,444 $ 97,807,493 33.66%
$ 900,893 $ - $ 900,893 0.31%
$ 901,300 $ 4,107,737 $ 5,009,037 1.72%
$ 499,521 $ 35,264,573 $ 35,764,094 12.31%
$ 24,246 $ 151,057,696 $ 151,081,942 52.00%
$ 3,146,009 $ 287,417,450 $ 290,563,459 100.00%
$ 284,008,778

NOTE B - The 10/31/18 total portfolio book value included General Electric (GE) bonds totaling $1,233,100 with
maturity date 1/09/2023. Between 10/2/18 and 11/2/18, S&P Global Ratings (S&P), Moody’s, and Fitch each
downgraded their credit ratings of GE below the Agency’s minimum credit quality level. The Agency sold the bonds

on 11/23/18.



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
November 30, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS _(DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 33,738,994 181,442 § 13,591,420 $ (24,642,718) $ (2,913,982) $ (19,895,023) $ 60,133
Special Deposits 2,197,158 21 . (12,880,773) - 10,683,681 87
Construction - 12,423 1,529,000 - (1,669,648) - (128,225)
Debt Service - 1,160 7,067,000 - (15,883,578) 9,304,037 488,619
Special & Reserve - 296,846 11,544,163 - (11,728,052) (92,695) 20,262
$ 35936,152 491,892 $ 33,731,583 §$ (37,523,491) $ (32,195,260) $ - $ 440,876

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

November 30, 2018
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 2,913,982 $ (13,591,420) $ 11,581 $ - $ - $ (10,665,857)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction 1,669,648 (1,529,000) (120) - - 140,528
Debt Service 15,883,578 (7,067,000) 47,366 - - 8,863,944
Special & Reserve 11,728,052 (11,544,163) (5,460) (142,722) - 35,707
$ 32,195,260 $ (33,731,583) $ 53,367 $  (142,722) § - (1,625,678)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Dis¢/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale 89,355
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ (1,536,323)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

November 30, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED ’ 2.017% 2.045%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.987% 2.108%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.255% 2.429%
Capital Facilities 2.290% 2.302%
Hydroelectric 2.036% 2.160%
Lodi Energy Center 1.593% 1.339%
\
INTEREST RATES
% | .
KEY INTEREST RATES 2.25 %
200 —g =5
PRIOR ]gg =] —
CURRENT YEAR 1 gg
e
Fed Fds (Overnight) 2.20% 1.16% 8%(5) s e e s e
T-Bills (90da.) 2.39% 1.30% : w A S o "
Agency Disc (90da.) 2.35% 1.28% b Aug Sep Ot Rov
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.70% 1.62%
. [} . -
?ﬁfl‘;:zs]() 3|scr()lyr.) ::2:2 : gg‘;: —— T-Bills (90 days) ~~#- FED FUNDS
yr. ' ’ et T-Bills (1 yr) e T-Notes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
November 30,2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 4519 $ 23,872 $6,590 $ 1,263 $ 7,497 $ 117,230 $ 2,000 162,971 56.42%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - - 48,710 - 48,710 16.86%
US Bank Trust Money Market 12,101 - - - - - - 12,101 4.19%
Commercial Paper 1,723 - - - - - - 1,723 0.60%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 43,122 - - - - - - 43,122 14.93%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5,014 - - - - - - 5,014 1.74%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 12,721 - - - - - - 12,721 4.40%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note 78 338 212 177 48 146 - 999 0.35%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.51%
Total Dollars $ 79,277 $24,220 $6,802 $1,440 $7,545 $167,586 $2,000 288,870 100.00%
Total Percents 27.44% 8.38% 2.35% 0.50% 2.62% 58.01% 0.70% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we gy:LL 810Z/20/Z4
95€'e6Y ¥559Z 8u€0/9V80 06E'VaY 980'€ S95'L £20Z/SLE0  08Z'T6Y 8LOZLZIE0  0SLT 000'00S 208N | kemetjeH aiuysyieg
6.8'06% £1992 ¥o13e2TVYZ S0Py yoz'e 955°L €T0T/90/E0  G/8'68Y 8LOZ/THIO0 0082 000'005 208N 3 ede esea( uyor
26v'986 8992 SUVOLEZOE O0L1'ZL6 890°C 1651 £20Z/LO/E0  0SV'986 8L0Z/S0/B0  92LT 000000t 008N tetodi0D IGON UoXX3]
602687 95592 GHEXE8E89  029'Z8Y vsL'e 1851 £Z0T/SLIZ0  0LO'88Y 8LOZ/NTIED  SZ9T 000'00S 208N ‘dioD epeI0
99€'98Y £099C SNOL088Z8 SVS'I8Y vov'e €25t £20Z/L0/Z0  SBS'VaY 8LOZISLISG  0SL°T 000'005 208N dros9 Ausdoid uowrs
¥29'9/6 Sv99T G1319€268 008'S96 siee 205"t £20Z/LLLO0 09716 8L0Z/E0/80 001 000'000°t oo08n #pa1D JOjoN ejokoL
196'76E 1992 90v09Z8Z6 9L8'06E sel'e piv'L zeoeivlicl  TSS'YeE 8L02/E0/80  008'C 000'00% 208N ‘Ul BSIA
z98'/8Y 55592 9avr9/99) G6L'LLY 800°€ sov'L 2202/50/2L 0928y 8LOZ/LZE0  SSET 000'00S 208N ‘di0g ucsrayD
v92'68Y 71992 LYOMGO9Z0  §26'Z8Y 51 oyl 7Z0Z/OLLL 05588y 8LOZ/ZLIS0 009 000'00S 208N UBUI4 BPUOH Li2ouaWy
88087 z1992 YNEEZ0L60 SEQ'BLY v20€ 62t'L 220Z/0Si0L  08LZ8Y 8L0Z/2LI90  00ZT 000'00S 208N ‘00 Bureog
8gL'o8Y 91992 ZOVOLZ0L9 09'6LY vrLE viv'L 720Z/SLI0L  08Y'veY 8L0Z/2H90  SLET 000'00S o08n ‘00 9L8IT FBISN
£€2'2ZL'L 5259¢ LOOEES/E0  168'680'L 6282 1521 2Z0Z/LLIS0  996'1ZL'L 8L0Z/L00  00£T L8€°eTL'L 208n au| ejddy
661'68Y 15592 ziasvveLl szi'esy 262 syl 720212050 §00'28Y 8L0Z/LZIE0  0STT 000°005 208N au| 09isded
rLEvEY 10992 8IVAQEZ.8 GEL'0BY siee 212 Z202/\00  S8E'EHY 8L0T/SLIS0 096 000'005 208N spejuawy AL
£05°'246 11992 vao0oLeLh 085'LL6 786C 88L'L 2202/50/S0  OYL'9L6 810Z/0z/60  0SZT 000°000'% 208N uosuyor g uosuyor
§81°226 £1992 ZAQ8LIZY. 029'9L6 090°€ €9L°} 7202/90/20  012'G16 8L0Z/02/I60  00ET 000°'000'L 208N lquies g 1e100id
000202 £0v9Z ZEAVOVELE 8ZE'96L 00z'T z51L 2Z02/92/L0  000'Z0T L10Z/I0SL0 002 000'20Z 208n VY UBOT BWOH [esopa
¥15'666 51902 8VHA6.588 0Z6',66 810°¢ 8L0't LZ02/PLIB0  08Y'666 8102/12/60  000°€ 000°'000't 208N fuedwod e
826'196 69992 §OEAMG99Z0  022'556 6vLe €10} 1202/60/60  0ZZ'656 8107/02/60  00.'L 0006'000°t 208N UBUIS BPUOH UBOLBWY
000°005'€ S8£9Z VHAVOPELE OVL'ZLE'E 005"+ 966 1202/€T/80  000'00S°E oL0Z/ETLL  00S'L 000'005'S o08n W UEOT] SWOH fesepad
9£9'809'Z S99z GYSHISELE £60°225°T 0zg'L 896 1202/92/0  YBLLLIZ 21L02/82/80 0L 000'209'C 208N Wpai) uLed feseped
000°000't 82992 9vVOSIVELE 0EL'666 0662 or6 L202/82/90  000°000°} 8107/82/90  00ST 000'000°L 208N WA UBO BWOH (81023
Lol'68y 21992 gxaLeoLLL SY9'ser 858°Z 516 LZ0Z/0/90  OEL'Z8Y 810Z/ZL/90  0S6'L 000'00S 208N oul Jezlid
857'L16 02992 OMYOrLESy 0£2'G96 616 006 LZ0Z/6L/IS0  096'896 8L0Z/02/60  00L'L 000°000'L 208N dio j8
865'06Y 85592 5199208 GLL'S8Y 98T 258 LZ0Z/L0/p0  008'/8Y 8LOZ/LZIEO0 000 000005 oo8n ‘auf jode@ awoH
000'000°€ 9592 9LOSOVELE 006'9L6'T 085 6v8 1202/62/20  000'000'E 8L0Z/6ZIE0  0ES'T 000'000°€ 208N YN UBOT BWoH [B4opa
viv'e86 29992 £Q88G/ZLL  089'0.6 696 0z8 1202/82/c0  0Z0°Z86 8L0z/0Z/60  00ZT 000'000°4 208N ou] sWwaysAg 0081
ore'r8L'T S5€92 08d8YOELE SYZ'269'T L) 082 LZ0Z/6L/L0  809'€8LT 9L0z/6W0 00V L 000'58L'2 o08n eg Ue0] BWOH [eJaped
958°26Y 92992 zzZ13zTVPT OLV'68Y 150°€ 692 L20zZ/20/0  $6L'Z6Y 8LOZ/VTIE0  0SET 000'00S 208€n 0 jeude) aiseq uyor
18€'186 v299Z IvITrLLEE 0Z0°LL6 8v8'T Sy 0Z0T/GLITL  085'6L6 8L02/02/60  006'% 000'000'L 208n ou] ‘HeWIBM
0/9'€86'7 999z IWMLEVOSLE YOL'Y/8'Y oYL 65 0Z0TILML0  €LE'066'F 2102/82/80  009'F 000'5.6'% 208N eg UB0T BWOH [213pad
£01'666 89902 SVH0SS69E  OVE'L66 86T 125 0Z0Z/LLIS0  086'866 810Z/0Z/60  S/8T 000'000'L 208N SOIWBUAG [eJSUSD
$22'500'7 1£292 LOQV3LELE OVB'ES6'E ost'L osl 6L0C/0E/50  09L'OV0'Y GL0Z/60/90  0GL'L 000°000'% 208N VN UBOT] BUWOH [eJepad
000°0L SLEOE GLEOESAS 00001 0500 8 6L0Z/20/L0  000'0L 810Z//0/0L 0500 000°04 asn ueg sn
296269’} 95002 9500LSAS 296'£69'L 0580 L 796'269'L 110¢/v2/80 0680 796'169'L asn sued sn
670028 05002 0S00LSAS 6v0'028 1000 ) 6v0'028 €L0Z/0S/90 1000 610'028 asn yueg Sn
010'908'} 1004 YLOOLSAS 0L0'908°L 2000 L 010'908'L €L0Z/LO/L0 2000 010'908'} 208N ojlfeD Jo yueg uown
62L'S10'S 02002 0/00LSAS 6LL'€L0'S 0l£T L 61L'€10'G 8L0Z/6LIOL  OLET 611'€L0'G dIND wh Jessy eruoped
090°508'G1 00002 0000ZSAS 090'G08'SL 151 L 090'508'Sh €LOZ/L0IL0  LSLT 090'508'GL Eal wisany| fousby (2207
000'52 LoL0L LOLOZSAS 000'SZ 0821 L 000'5Z yLOZ/9Z/LL 0L} 000'sZ asn VN Hueg sn
anjep buifues #3uaunsanu| dISnD  anjepaen PIBIA Rumen ajeq 221d aljeq ajey anfep pajels ueIpojsny / a3snaL Janss)
EHMM oysfkeg  Aunew paseyaing aseyand sas3u)
* Bunesedo
8102/0€/1 1
e B PR M R
uoday sJainseal]

} abed

Aouaby Jomod ejuiojijed uIsyuonN

VdONL/



we giiLL 8L0Z/L0fZL

$81'L05'Z v599Z 9ZNSOVELE SZO'E8Y'T 6£0°C LEL'L £202/82/80  0ST'LOST 8L0z/8z/80  0S0°E 000'005'Z 208N WA U0 awoH [erepa4
958'96Y 92992 €HQL80LL. SOV'ZBY osLe 259k £202/5L/90  0S5'96Y 8L0Z/ZZi0  000°€ 000'005 208N ouj Jezlid
199'€09'T £5992 BANSOVELE 9€2'G6S'T Love 159't £202/5L/90  006'€09'C 8L0Z/LLIB0  0SLT 000'009'C o08n JW Ue0} SWoH {eIepad
£10'666'L 62992 DINSOVELE  0Z€'/86'L oog'e 959'L €20Z/vL/I90  000'666'L 8L02/€Z//0  000°€ 000°000'Z 008n N UBOT BLIOH {B9PR:
000°000°} 22997 LINSOPELE 078'866 glee 959t £Z02/¥L/S0  000°000°L 8L0T/WLI90 0042 000'000'4 208n N UBOT BUIOH |BJIapaS
Se8'58Y 1£99Z 900,08828 505'08Y ger'e £v9'L €202/10/80  STL'¥8Y 8LOZVTIL0  0SLT 000°005 208n dnoig Ausdoig uowis
000'005'2 0992 LNISOVELE  5LO'96Y'T gze'e G€9'L €20T/veis0  000°00S°Z 8LOCIVTIS0  0SLT 000'005'Z oo8n N UBOT BWOH [eJope
595'z8Y 16592 1OV90L¥59  GLL'LLY 80L'€ zL9'L £20Z/L0/S0  0SE'08Y 8L02/60/50  0SZT 000°005 o08n au] N
88L'98t 12992 IMEZLELLE 509’18y 164€ 285'L £20ZIL0M0  08LV8Y 8L0Z/ZT/90 0052 000'00S 208N JnIeS [82JEd PAIUN
50" L6V 96592 84€0/9Y80 06E'veY sel'e 595t €202/SLIE0 08206 8L02/60/50 05T 000'00% 208N { kemeyeH aayseg
525'c6l 66592 SUVOLEZOE 550'98Y 550 155"k £20Z/L0/E0  0,9'T6F BLOZ/60/S0  9TLT 000005 208N 1e10d103 IGOW UoXx3
618'88y 2992 L3GYGIZLL  SYP'ESY oL 055'k £202/82/20  959'/8Y 8L02/22/90  009°C 000'005 208N ou| sweysAs 03sty
L6'LES 86592 14.d€€T68  B8T'0SS e0z'e 105"} £20Z/0ML0  Y6Z'9ES 8L02/60/50  S29T 000'095 208N WpaiD Jojoy elokoL
650'¢67 52992 ZWYOPL8Sy GEL'98Y 0.0 sl Zzoe/sLEL  00E'TBY 8L02/22/90  002°T 000'005 208N dio0 18y
8LT'L¥T z£992 90v09Z826 09Z'vT %60°¢ viv'L zZ0TWLTL  GL6'OVE 8LOZWT/IL0 008 000052 208N Ul BSIA
PRAR- £1992 Savaooyy. SSL'6Lh 19L'e 8l 220z/5L60  S0L'E8Y 8L0ZWOM0  OLET 000°008 o08n abe10)s atand
6156 z1592 9989/0/E7 509'68Y 816°C 8.2} Z20Z/L0/90  06T'v6Y 8LOZWOWO  S29T 000'005 208N "ou} jodaQ ewioH
£99'/6Y 12592 83VAQEZ/8 GEL'OBY ooL's 0ne' 2202/L0/70 0026V 8L0Z/E0/W0 0SB 000'005 208N spejuawy a1
6€.'88Y 0£992 90Ade9Ysz  0E6'Esy gsl'e 68L'L 7Z0Z/V0/IE0  0Z6'28Y 8L0ZWTI/0  0SY'T 000'00S 208N Jhuedwod Aeusiq iem
LLo'eel 1592 LvESLEYES 09E'L8Y 86.C 694’} A A AN A S s 1 8L0ZWOM0  SIET 000005 208N ‘di10D osolN
v80'68Y 02592 69V490V90 092'Z8% 000°€ 88 1202/€0/50  SOL'98Y 810Z/E0/M0  0S0Z 000°'00§ o08n 00 LIS AN JO Sjueg
§¥0'052 11192 GSNOZEELE  §20°05L 08¢ 059 0Z0Z/LLIE0  S¥O'0SL 8L0z/LZIL  SL8T 000°052 208N g Ue0T BWOH (e1ope-
000'2¥8°L 15892 6ELEDSELE  ¥B6'66L L 0s€’L 509 0202/82/L0  000'Lp8'L 9L0z/82/L0  0SE'L 000'2t8'L 208N By feuoneN [eiepe
05G'28€'L £200L £Z00LSAS 095'/8€'L 2000 L 055'£8¢°L €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 055°/8€'L 208N oyieD Jo yueg uon
8v9'220'e 22002 Z200/SAS 8v9'1.0'S 50T ! 8v9'220' SLOZINOILO 54T 8v9'220'S AV wiseAu| Aouaby (8007
juno29y Buouejeg vdoS
l6e've $ 16£'ve $ 2512 2 26€'vE $ 5LT L6E'vE $ abesaAy pue jejol pund
1687 SY00L SYOOLSAS 26€'7E 2512 L 26€'7E £LOZ/LOILO  I5HT 26€'E wiseAu} fousby [e207)
100y uoldny OHO ddiN
2908’0l $ 226'20L'68  $ 22T £v9 £86'68¢°0L § 7902 Lel'goL'oL  $ abrIaAY pue [ejoL pund
000'005'+ 71292 BEIMICELE GLO'/6Y'L 65€°E 89.'L €20T/P0/0L  000'00S'L 8L0z/LZLL  OYEE 0000051 208n wpaid wie [esepss
9.v'6v6 zL99T 90a8I665 09E'0V6 ze L £202/80/80  0SE'LV6 8L02/02/60  000°Z 000°'000°} o08n ‘d10D YosoolN
000'000°L 9v99z LANHLES0E 082'986 668'C 969'L £202/¥2120  000°000'L 8L0Z/0/80  0OY'E 000'000°L 208N ueg sn
£28'209 51992 1Zv998.2y SOV'/6Y 9ez'e 929’} £202/54I50  §2L'E0S BLOZ/ZLIG0  SLEE 000°00S 208N fuedwo) AeysieH
9z1'L0g 20992 ZOVHO0YS0 06.°96% shr'e 609'% £202/92/¥0  G9Z'L0S 8LOZ/SLISO  00S'€ 000005 208n 00 UOJIBIN AN J0 ueg
Sv8'esy 11992 IMEZLELLE  S09'L8Y 80€'e z85'L £20Z/L0/V0  OTL'E8Y 8L0Z/l2/60  00S°T 000'005 208N OINISS [e0sBd PaIUN
160°68Y 00992 IMEZILELLE  S09'L8Y A z85'L £202/L00_ GTT'Esy 8L0Z/GLISO  00ST 000005 208N I8 [e0sed PaYUN
anjen buihues #Jusunsanu| dISND  anjep Joxe PIStA Rungen 3jeq 201d ajeq ajey anjep pajels UeIpoISND [ 23JSNAL Janss|
Anbg 03 sAeg Aunyepn paseyaing aseyaing 1sa4au|
puog
BupesadQ
8102/0¢/L 1
SILACY B NI WS Rhadn i S /.
podey sJainsealt VdON./

Z ofied

Kouaby Jamod eiuiojijes wayLoN



gcs'ove'esl $

we gyt 810Z/L07Z1
*6T0Z/t/0T uo 3)qejied 9244 STL9Zi# JUIWSBAY|
*610Z/v/0T uo 3|qejied 8243 PTL9Z4# Judwiisanuj Apapenb ajqejjed JWTHA S8E9ZH JUBUNSINU|
8102/92/2T Suiess Appanienb ajqejjed JWTHS 8£992i# JUBWIISAAU) Apapenb ajqeyied VIAINS 89€9zZ# JUBUISAAY]
0zZ02/ST/9 uo 3\qejed JWTHS £599Z# JUBWIISAAL] Apsuenb ajqeje) YIAINA LSEITH WBWISIAUY
€202/€2/9 uo algeyed asn 9t99Z# uUBISIAY] awnAue a|qe||ed 244 9SE9Z# JUBWISAUL
Apayenb ajqeyjed JNTHA 62992# udWISAAY| awnAue ajqe|(ed a1H4 SSEQTH JUBWISIAUY
6T/62/€ nun 3|qejed JNTHA 79594 uBUISAIAY] awpAue ajqejed a1H4 PSEITH JUDWISAAY|
Apayienb asjqejie) JWTHA £0T9Zi JUIWISIAYL swnAue ajqejjed 2234 SEEITH JUBWISIAU|
Apayienb ajqe)ied JWTHA 20t9z# WaWs3AUL Apapenb ajqeyjed VIAINA TEEITH JUBUNSIAUY

SLOZ/OS/LL 4O SE [ewnor 192N [[BM 24} WoJ) S991d PIg JO SJUBWIRIE}S UBIPOISND /23JSNIL Wo) S30Ud U Paseq si anjeA Jdpel Juaund

‘poyjawW Joexa Uk 3sh SIAYJ0 [je ‘poyjaw ajeuwnxosdde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SUUOW 9 UBY) SS3] UM SJUALLYSIAU|
‘sadAj |fe usamjaq uosiedwos Joj siseq e apiaoid o) Jeak Aep G9¢ B U0 paseq UMOYS S| Aune 0 PIBIA juajeainbz puog,

'¢6L°€90'99L $ 80L°C §SL §90°62£'89L $ 1861 ovb'o68'891 $ :$TV.LOL GNVHD

809'909°0L § cev'z8L'e9  $ L z89 g6e'ss9’'0L § 9zL'L 819'829'0L abe1aAY pue [ejo) pung
000'000°F SLI9T 6£3r3ccLE  0GY'866 68€°€ 892t £20Z/V0/0L  000'000°L 8LOZILZ/LL  OVEE 000°000°} o08n WpauD U |esepe
8/1's8y £8992 IMEZLELLE  S09'18Y svee z85't €Z0TILOMO  GEL'EBY 8L02/92/v0 0052 000°00S 008N Jnag 1801ed Pepun
v12'06¥ 91592 8490/9v80 06 V8Y £vZe 595'} £20Z/SLIE0 0Z6'88Y 8L0Z/9TW0  0SLT 000°005 208N | kemeuieH anysiiog
76681 18592 048d500v.  SETV8Y szze evsL £20Z/LT/C0  0GE'S8Y 8L0Z/9ZW0 002 000'005 208N ou| Jlexeld
€26'88Y 6259C SHEX68E89 0T9'Z8Y g6L€ 185°) £20T/5L/E0  0SE'/8Y 8L0Z/I9TI0  S29T 000'00S 208N diog 0RO
028'z6Y §2592 £3vH00¥90 0./€'98Y seee 0zs't £20Z/62/L0  06L'L6Y 8L0Z/9ZW0  0S6'C 000'00S 208n 0D Uolia AN 40 ued
vSg'eey 8592 90v09Z8Z6 025’88y syle yIv'L zeozwLick  009'Z6Y 8102/9Z/70  008'C 000°00S 208N U} BSIA
992'00S 08592 YXO8VYELL GEL'SEY £80°€ vee'l 2T0ZILLIL0  OLE'00S 8L0Z/9T/W0  00L'E 000°00$ 208N "auj oQlsded
168'8L9'¢ 19Y92 69D6LEELE  LEB'OLY'E 09t 1821 ZZ0ZIOLISO  09G'VES'E /1L02/132/80  STLT 000°625'€ 208N eg ueoT awoH [esepad
S6v'LZ0'Y 2892 LOOEEB/E0 €ZL'168'E 62€T 1524 ZT0T/LLIS0  BES'0ZO0'Y 8L0Z/LORO0  00ET Z5v's20'y 208n "ouj ajddy
120'v6Y 28592 83IVAQEZ/8 GEL'06Y Geee yIkA ZZ0TI0M0  0S6'T6Y 8L0Z/9TH0  0S6T 000'005 208N apenuawy gl
128'z6¢ 8592 LVE8LEYES 888'68E 26T 6911 Z20Z/TLE0  08YLGE 8L0Z/9ZH0  GIET 000°00F 208N “d103) yosomiN
000'29% z0v9z ZEAVOVELE  88'ESH 00T z5LL Zz0z/92/L0  000'29% 210Z/0ENL0  00TT 000'297 oo08n N B0 BWOH [esapad
000'629'0L S££92 GHAO3EELE PrL'ELEOL 069'L 16 1202/20/90  000°6Z9'0L 9L02/70/00  069'L 000'629'0L oo8n ypai) e [eispad
000'00€"L 89€92 EMEEDVELE  L6T'EST'L 0054 606 1202/82/50  000'00E'L 9L0z/0e/R0 00S'L 000'00€"'t 208N By [euoyeN [eleped
000°Z94'S z€€92 SINEDGELE TLE'066'Y 5z9'L 906 LZ0T/STIS0  000'Z9L'S 9L02/52/50  §TY'L 000'Z94'S 208N Biw feuoneN [esepad
zzTLLLLL ¥5€9Z 08dSVOELE £0L'0SE'LL LivL 08z LZ0e/6LL0  OvL'pLLLE oLOZ/ELIL0  O0F'L 000'022°LL 208N eg UBOT BWOH [E19pa
1962827 95€9Z LdNDIEELE 126'6SLY £op'L 08 120z/6LL0  GLL'08TY 9L0z/02/L0  OPY'L 000's82'Y 208N WpalD uue d jelepad
981°266'7 ovzeT TAZOOSELE  LZL'EE6'Y o'l 09 6L0Z/9Z/LL  POE'LVO'S SL02/82/80  0SL'L 000'Z86'7 208N By [eucneN esepad
0 15002 LS00LSAS 0 0000 3 0 €L02/40/0 0000 o asn Hueg sn
v99'259'G 61002 6L00LSAS Y99'799'G 2000 L ¥99°299'S €L0Z/L0/0  Z000 ¥99°259's o08n ojile 10 sjueg uolun
zes'0er'eL 20002 0000LSAS TES'OEV'EL 51T L zes'oev'el €L0Z/L0/Z0 ISV zes'osyel B wiseAu| fousby [eao
aAlasay BupesadQ [esousn

az'eleLz ¢ lee‘gel’Lz $ §28'C ££2L i87'662°22 $ oLr'e 861792z § abeiany pue jejo] pung
622'666'L 8/992 SIMSOPELE  086°666'L 186°¢ 0924 £202/92/60 _ 002'666'L 810Z/92/60 _ 000'€ 000°000'C o08n YN U0 SWOH [eJeped
anjep Buifired #Juaunsaau| dISND  aneA JoueN PIRIA Rumepn °eq aald ajeq ajey anfep pajels uelpojsny / da)SnIL Janss|

Amnb3 oysheq  Aumen paseyaing d ysasul
puog

Juno29y Buiouejeg vdoS

¢ abed

8L0zZ/0¢C/LL
uodey sJainseal
Aouaby Jamod eluioijed uloyuon

N R38R Y Rl B

VSN



we JpiLL 8L0z/L02L

000'052 zle0e YZ0IDL00Z0 825'8YT 200 £00't LZ0Z/0S/80  000'0SZ 8LOZ/0E/80  000°€ 000’052 208N ueg Ay
000'000'2 69£9Z SMEEDOELE  OVL'8Z6'L 006'L 606 1202/82/50  000'000'T 9L0Z/0E/80  005'L 000'000'2 208N BN [euOlieN feseped
v0OE'96Y 12292 SNAL9EZ68 G8L'GeY oz o8 LZ0ZIELIVD  0OE'96Y 8LOZ/OE/LL  0S62 000°008 208N 1peID Jojo ejoka)
805'€6 92292 LAOMG99Z0  06/'Z6Y soze 08 LZ02/2LZ0  005'S6Y 8LOZ/OE/LL 0§89 000°005 208N UeUI4 BPUOH UBOLBWY
05€'k €004 PEO0LSAS 0SE'L 2000 L 0s€’t £LOZ/LO/L0 2000 0se'l 208N oft[eD 40 ueg uown
950'600'C 12002 IZ00LSAS 950'600'Z 512 L 950'600°C SLOZ/LOIL0  ISLT 950'600'Z 4V wjsenuj Aousby (007
aAlasay Buuoissiuwosag 039

000'005°L $ 000‘00s't  $ 2000 i 000'005°L  § 2000 000005t $ abesany pue [ejo) pund
000°005°L 51002 SLOD/SAS 000'005'L 2000 L 000°005'L €L0Z/L0/0  TO00 000°005'} o08n ojeD 4o yueg uolun
amesay |e19adg [ewayjoen

895'2LZ $ 218'222 $ (244 1z 999°LL2 1602 000°€2Z $ abeiaay pue [ejog pund
£68'cG 0292 ViEV88SELE V68'ES 6522 ze 610Z/20/L0  ¥BL'ES 8L0z/6z/0L  0ZTT 000'vS 1asn By feuoneN (elepad
SLE'YS 12292 SDDYELTLE 6L6'YS €812 sz 8L0Z/L2lL  L06'PS 8L0z/LTILL  BPLT 000'6S 1asn finseail 's'N
9L6'vs 28992 SDDYELZLE 6L6'YS €51 9z 8L0Z/LzZL  LLL'YS 8L0Z/LLIOL  SLLT 000'5§ 1asn kinseest s
026'vS 15992 SO096LZLE 6LE'YS 650'C 9z 8L0Z//2EL  9£9'vS 8L0Z/LE/B0  LLOT 000's§ 1asn Ainseas| ‘SN
26'eS G£99Z SDDY6LZLE 1LZ6'ES £66'L 9z 810Z/L2EL  ¥95'ES 8LOZ/LEIO  6VE'L 000'vS 1asn Ainseasj 's'n
9J1A138 192Q V910Z 009

89l § ce0'als  § ez e £89'719 4 000’89 $ abesaay pue [ejo) pund
252'zzt €092 Vi8VeSSELE  8GL'TTL 6522 ze 6L0Z/ZOM0  205'22L 8L0z/62/0L  0ZZT 000'€ZL 1asn BYW leuoneN [eiopas
162'22 18992 VSavreEEle  £15°Z2L 1922 ze 610Z/20/L0  9LY'TZL 8L0Z/LLI0L  022T 000°€ZL 18sn eg UBOT SWOH [e1apa4
992'€Z4 95992 VGavreEEls  605'€TL 0.1z ze 6L0Z/20/L0  Z60'ETL 8L0ZNEMOD  STLT 000721 18sn eg Ueo sWoH [eJspey
vLL'EZL £99z VGavrEEELE  60S'EZL 9602 ze 6L0Z/20/L0  906°TTL 8L0Z/1€/L0  0S0'T 000'vZL 1gsn B4 UBOT BWOH [BIopa4
£61'€2L 0z.92 V/BNGBEELE YOB'ETL [T 4 8L0z/8T/el  g9L'eTt 810z//T/LL  O€TT 000'vZL 1asn eg UB0 LOH [eJepos
9IIMI9S 149Q VZ 102 009

sog'ezl't  § 19874y $ 1z [T 189691t § 691 000'9L't  $ abeiany pue [ejo} pund
8£5'€ET 20292 VIEVE8SELE 6£5'EET 652 ze 6L02/20/L0  Z90'EET 8L0Z/62/I0L  0TTT 000'v€Z lasn BIW feuoneN [eJeped
y€9'seT 08992 VGEVYBEELE  G90'SET 192 ze 610Z/Z0/L0  6/8'VET 8L0Z/LLI0L  022T 000'9€T 1asn eg UeOT BWOH [eJepeS
955°VET 55992 VeaVPEEELE 690'VET oLe z€ 6L0Z/Z0NL0  0BZ'EET 8L0Z/LE/MO0  STLT 000'6€2 1asn eg UBOT SWOH [BIapa4
046'€Z £€99Z VGaVYSEELE  §90'GEZ 9607 ze 6L0Z/0IL0  LLE'EET 8L0Z/LE/0 080T 000'952 1asn eg Ueo] SWOH [elepad
209'7EZ 61292 V/8NGSEELE 629'VET 5922 1z 810Z/82ZL  BYS'VET 8L0z//TLL  0S2T 000'6€Z 1asn eg U0 SUIOH [BlopaS
onjep Buikued #usunsaau| diSND  enfepIamen PIRIA Runjey ateq 20ud steq orey anjep paiels UBIPOISND [ 931SNIL Janss|

Anb3 o} sheq Ayunyey paseyaind aseyaind Jsas0pu|
puog
92JAI9S 19oQ [euLIdy1099
8102/0¢S/L 1

| abed

Hodoy s ainseal]

KousBy 1amod elulojijes uloyHoN

¥ s TR e UK

VdON. /



we zpiLL 8L0ZILORZL
"6102/t/0T uo 2|qeyje) 8344 9T/9Z#udunsanu| Apauenbajqeied  JWTH4  bObIZH JUSUNSIAU)
ﬂﬂON\wN\Nﬂ M:_tﬂﬁm >—._Uu._N=U. dqejied JNTHS 6£99Z# JUDUSIAU| >_._Ou._u=U 3jqejed VIAING 69£9Z# JUBWISDAUL
T20Z/£2/L BunJels awizhue ajqejed 8244 bY99ZHIUBUNSAAU| Apayrenb ajgejied VAN EEE9ZH JUSWISAAL)

810Z/0S/LL 3O S [ewnof 19a11S JIBM U3 woj sooud pig 10 SJUBWR)elS URIpojSnY [291SNUL Woly saoud uo paseq si anjep jaxep uaLnd

"pOYaW JOBXA UE aSN SIAYI0 [je ‘poyyaw ajeunxosdde ue asn Ajunjeur 0} SYIUOW g UBY] SS3| UJM SJUBLUIS3AUJ
-sadA} |je usamjaq uosuedwod 105 siseq e apiaocid o} seak Aep gog e Uo paseq umoys si Ayunjely o} plaIA juajeainb3 puog,

oco‘z6€'2z  $ '099°60L°2Z $ 6Zv'T Lol ele'goc’sz $ ssce a9 $ :STVLOL ANVYED

Wwi'e9sL $ ze'els'E  $ 1E£9'L 8.8 211695 § 629'L ooo'ols’L  $ abesaAy pue [ejol pund
000'215°} £€E9Z GINEOOELE  GPG'9a'L SZoL 906 1202/52/50  000'LLS'L 9102/52/50  §29'L 000°21L5'L 18sn Bi [euoneN [esepad
0521 £6992 84296/2L6 ¥ELLL (4 £LE 6L0Z/0LIOL  VLL'LL 8LO0Z/ZLIOL  VEET 000'ZL asn finseas} ‘SN
166°0F [AR:1er4 €3d96/2L6 €660 ¥65L S 81L0T/90/2L  £0¥'OF 8LOZ/ICOAO  G5G°L 000"ty asn Ainseas} ‘SN
JUNOJDY YSA VZ10Z 09D

igeelg’e  § 96eZ8v'e  § 66v'L 892 syi'esr's  $ oov'L ooo'sls’s  $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pund
£€€'605'2 16192 SINQV3LELE PLB'E8Y'T 0gs'L s0e 6L0Z/20/0L  6£8'E8Y'T SL02/2/e0 0STL 000'515'Z 14sn WA UB0T BUWOH (BJepad
Z60'6€ 26992 YINDO6/ZL6  9SY'6€ £eeT 10z 6102/02/90  6.€£'6E 8LOZ/ILL0L  €L2T 000°0F asn Aunseait ‘SN
62.'806 82292 LOAvILELE 9EE'E06 ySE'L 08t 6L0Z/0E/S0  988'0C6 GL0Z/20/90  0SL'L 000206 18asn } UBOT BWOH feJepad
128'sS 9£592 8dd96.CL6 061G 28t 19 6L0Z/LENO  LYO'SS 8102//2/120 €28} 000'9S asn fuinseas] 's'N
300V 9AJ9S9Y 9JIAIBS 1gaQ 039

889°052'8L  § ose‘ovs'st $ 6882 oselL LE0'kvL8L  § 6592 197188l § abesaay pue |ejo) pung
GEE'666'L 7992 vINF3EELE OFL'S00T 5GP T4 4 SZOZ/ETILO  00E'666'L 8L02/2/0  0SY'E 000°000'2 208n Hpa1D wie (eepad
000°000°} 9L.92 6€3r3EELE  0S1'866 6£S°E 89L'L £202/¥0/0L  000'000°L gLoz/LE/LL  ove'e 000°000'L 008n Wpass e [elapady
622'666'L 6/992 SIMSOVELE  086'666'L 186€ 09L'L £202/92/60  00Z'666'} 810Z/9z/60  000°€ 000°000'2 208N HA UEOT BWOH [eJapad
000'052 r1e0e VPESDZLELL ELE'LVT L0g€ W't £202/20/60 000052 8102//0/60  00£'€ 000052 208N VN Nueamd
000'052 60€0€ VEdO18/262 0SC'9vE €0Z°€ eeL'l £20Z/0£/80  000'0SZ 8102/0€/80  00TE 000°052 o08n VSN dueqaus
000'000'2 £2992 L3NSOYELE 089°266'L glee 969'L £202/vL/90 000000 8L0Z/WLI90 00T 000°000°2 o08n WA UBOT BWOH (2J3pad
282’6V 87592 9HVHZEBYY 099'V8Y orLe 8¢s'L £202/90/20  0Z8'9%Y 8L0Z/GLIEG 000 000005 208N O 1PaD WAl
086'L¥L 67592 £3VHO0¥90 65562 622°€ 0zs'L €2Z02/62/L0  0LO'OV. 8LOZ/SLIE0  0S6'C 000052 208N 00 Uojla AN Jo sueg
ove'LbL 05592 814322P¥Z OVS'9Z.L voL'e 815l €2021Z0  8PL'BEL 8L02/GL/E0  008C 000°052 208N 0 lende) aseaQ uyor
clg'Les 15592 YMOdBIVSZ EVSBLL y00'€ Lov'L zeoz/Lofel  085'8TL 8L0Z/GLED  0SET 000052 ooan Auedwod Asusiq 1em
000'052 £1E0E VSWIELOVST SLLve %Le SLE'L 2202/90/60 000052 810z/90/60  0SL'€ 000'05¢ 008n Yueg JeAodsiQ
000°052 0L€0€ VEAVDEOLEE S68'OFT 150 69€°L ZZOZ/LE/B0  000'0ST 8L0Z/LE/RD  0SO'E 000052 2080 Jueg yuoN jeal
000'052 L1€0¢ VO1.1£9/6V6 8YL'OFZ vSLE 89€e'tL 2TOT/0E/80  000'0ST 8102/0/80  OSL'E 000052 o08n ueg obley siiopm
9€'098 66192 LDOLERLE0 ZLP'2E8 62T 16T 220Z/LLIG0  ZLL'098 102062 Q0ET 11Z'198 o08n “aut ayddy
000'L¥6 yOvaz ZOAVOVELE L/S'PLE 00z 6L 2202/92/L0  000°L¥6 LLOZ/OENO 002 000'L¥6 208N A UBOT BWOH (B8P
1zz'ees £6592 0ATHESEB9  £9€'82/ £0L'E yOL‘L L202/60/2L _ 0SP'SEL 8L0Z/SLIE0 0S5 000052 008N YN Jjueg ONd
anjep Builued # JUaUNSAAU) diSND  anjeA el PIRIA Runjen ajeq 2oud ajeq ajey anjen pajeIs uelpojsny / adsnIL 1onssj

Ambg o3 sheq Aumen paseyaing aseyaind 1sa40)u;
»puog
aAlasay Bujuolssiuuodaqg 099
8L0Z/0¢/LL

Z abed

IR SRS e L Foash B3N

VdON'

poday sainseal)
Aoueby jomod eluiojijed WOYMLON



Apayienb ajqejed

VINNS

we gyiLl

810Z/L012L

8SE9TH JUBWISIAUY
8L0Z/OE/LL 3O S [BWINOF J32J1S HEM 2Uj Wwioly s214d Pig S0 SJUBLIAJEIS UBIPOISNY /29)SNL L WoLy S3oud Uo paseq si anjeA el JuaLing

‘poyIBwW JOBXa UE ash SIBUI0 je ‘poyiaw ajewxoidde ue asn Ajanjew 0} SYUOW § UBY) SSI| YIM SJULIISIAU|
-sad£} j|e usamiaq uosuedwiod Joj siseq e apiaoxd 03 Jeak Aep go¢ e uo paseq umoys s| AJLINJeN 0} PIBIA juajeainb3 puog,

8lL'ser'e  $ peolv'e $ zoez 128 osv'ser'e ¢ 06cc 000's0S't  $ 'SIYLOL ANVEO
€£9'28%°F § 126695t ¢ 682°C 1801 ££0°065'L  $ 6leZ 000°285‘L § abelany pue fej0) pung
zee' Pyl S¥85T zaqvazsie vel'ely't ove'T 6eL'L TTOZIEMLG  OEP LYl TLOZIELZD  SLET 000'ery' L asn WA UBOT BUWOH [esapad
000'LL 8G€9Z 16SEOYELE  200'89 0£5'L 0.6 L202/82/L0  000°'LL 9L02/82/0  0ES') 000'LL asn Bi [euonen |esepad
6vZ'se 16992 84496/216 TOT'GE SLFT €1e 6L0Z/0L/0L  ThL'SE 8LOT/ILLIOL  16ET 000'9¢ asn finseait ‘s
266'9€ 1592 £3d96.2L6 €66'0E ¥65'L [ 8L02/90/2L  L9y'9E 8LOZIEO/LO  ¥SS'L 000°2& asn funseasl 'sN
oA18S9Y 9AS }qaq -oed de)
spsole’L  $ ozv'oLe’l  § A% 4 29 16£'506°L  $ 9922 oo0‘sl6’l  $ abesaAy pue fejo pund
riz'8Ly 19992 VGHEYBEELE  060'8LY oLze 29 6LOT/LO/Z0  §9G'GLY 8L0Z/LE/80  09L'C 00008y 1asn N UBOT SWOH (2J8pa4
6LL'LLY 80292 LHEP8EELE  ¥BO0'LLY GzeT 29 610Z/10/20  8LL'OLY gL0z/6Z/0L 0822 000'6L% 1asn eg ueo sWoH (esepad
20L'8L% 98992 LHEYBEELE  060'8LY 1€€T 4] 6102/L0/20  €£L'9LY 810z/LLOL  08ZT 000087 18sn g Ueo] SWOH |essped
SOL'LLY 52/92 VEOPBEELE oL LY 18T 19 BLOC/LE/NO  1BE'ILY 8L0Z/LeIL  SEET 00062 18sn g UEOT BWOH |esepady
anjep buiiueg # JuauNsaAu| dISND  3njeA e PIRIA Aunen B 20ud 2)eq aey anjeA pajels uejpoysny / 2ajsnaL sanss|
Anbg o} sheq funey paseyoing aseyaing 1sas93u)
Jpuog
aopueg 192 senioed dep
81L02/0¢/1 )

| obed

uodey sJainseal]
Aouaby 1amod eluIOf R UISYHON

ShAL 7 udl 2d YTl P hede a0l

VdON



we zpiLL

8Loz/L0ZL

¥96'620°L 78992 VGAVPEEELE TLE'LZ0'L 1922 ze 6L0Z/20/L0  00L'220'L 8LOZ/LLIOL 0222 000°2€0°} 18sn eg UBOT SWOH [e1apad
Sv0'een’t 65992 VGaVYBEELE 006'020'L oL ze 6L02/20/L0  vey'l20'L 8LOZ/LE/B0  S2L'T 000'€0°} 18sn eg UBOT SWOH [BIBpaS
TLLPED'L 1£902 VGaVYEEELE 968'LEC'L 9602 ze 6L0Z/Z0/L0  9G8'9Z0°L 8LOZ/LE/LO0  0S0T 000'9€0'} 18asn eg UB07 BWOH |eJapa
v22'0£0°} £z.92 V.8NSBEELE 69E'080'L 592C 1z gL0z/8z/eL  8LO'0E0'L 8L0z/LT/LL  0ETE 000'Z€0°L 14sn eg UBOT SWOH [e)apad
991M198 199Q V81L0Z OIPAH

8zz'LLe'e  § 6£2'096'8  $ ez 1e Zel'ece's  $ 6912 000°886'8  $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pung
8sv'L6L"} 50292 VIEVEESELE YOr'L6L L 652 ze 6102/20/L0  S08'/8L°L 8102/62/0L  022T 000's62'L 14asn BIN [euoheN [elepad
o9Gr'T6L') £8992 VGaVYBEELE 988'88.°L k=T ze 6L02/20/L0  TLV'I8L'L 8102/.L0L  0TTT Qo0'96L'+ 18sn eg UeoT SWoH |elapa
965'86L"} 85992 VGBVYEEELE T98'PEL'L o/ ze 6L02/20/L0  018'98L'L 810T/LE/B0  STL'T 000'208'+ 1asn eg Ueo 8WoH [eJape4
SL2'66L'L 9e992 VGaAVYSEELE 858'G6L'L 90T ze 6102/20/L0  980°/8L°L 8L0Z/LE/L0  0S0T 000'€08'} 18sn eq UeoT auWoH |eiepey
£00°68L°L zei9T v.9NGSEELE 69L'68L'L 5922 1z 8L02/8z2L  655'88L'L 8L0zZ/LeiL L 0S2T 000°Z62'L 1asn 6 UBOT SWOH |Bl8pad
291198 192 0JpAH

gLy § cov'eoL'y  $ 8L9°L 8L svi'ozLy  § 60L'L 000'0ZLY $ abesaAy pue |ejol pund
£60'029'} 81197 Ldap8ESLE  850°0L9°t wEre gLl 6102//2/1S0  8v9'699°L 8102/l 08€T 000'€89't asn eg Uo7 BWoH |esepad
y¥9'LEV'T 00goT JONJEELE  SPE'EEY'T 090'L 5 6102/Z2/L0  LOS'0SP'T 910z/20/20  0STL 000'2£v'C asn IpaI) wued [ejepad
saiy|1oed [eniu] oipAH

659vZ9°LL  $ £06'6lS'LL $ 2557 108 190°2V9°LL  § 20r'e 268°€22°LL abesaAy pue [ejoy punj
000'005"t 10.92 GYAIVOELE 095'L0S'L 052°€ €81 €20Z/6LI0L  000°005'L 8L02/6L/0L  0STE 000°005'4 oo8n g UeoT SWOH |eiepad
000'000°t 05992 IANSOVELE 02566 6v2'E 0/9°L €202/82/90  000°000°L 8102/80/80  0SZ'E 000'000°} oo8an A UeoT] SWoH [esepad
6zy'syL’L 6v99¢2 SrIIVOELE LbZ'SEl'L vrie 559'L €202/SH90  SLL'SPL'L 8L0Z/80/80  0S0'€ 000054} 208N eg Ue0 SWOH elopad
¥90'0ES 2699¢ 00309LYEL  ZLL'BLS $86C ZL9'L £202/L0/G0  099'8CS 8102/60/80 Q0L 000'055 ooan 00 anllowed-a1ebjo)
80€'98Y 0299z IMEZLELLE  S09'I8Y z8le z85'L £202/L0//0  006'v8Y 810Z/SL/90  00ST 000005 oo8an JIBS [821ed PAIIN
GE9'96Y yvsoz YMEEZ0L60 SPL'6SY 116 155'L £Z0Z/L0/E0  0L0°06% 8LOZILIE0  008C 000°005 08N ‘00 Burwog
£5€°06Y S¥592 SYGX68E89  029'Z8Y 1zLe 1€5°) £202/5L20  GLL'esy 8LOZWLED  SZ9T 000'00S 208N ‘dioD apel0
L1206y 61992 §1319€268 006'28Y glze z05°L €20Z/LLL0  00L'68Y 8LOZ/EL/E0  00LZ 000'005 208N Wpa1) Jojo ejofo L
L0E'S6Y L¥S9T 90v09z8z6 02588y 150°€ viv'L zeoeviel  OLY'ver 8L0Z/WL/E0  008C 000005 208N U BSIA
9z0'88Y 9rsoc gavaoory. SSL'6.7 150°€ y8e't ZT0CISL60  0LL°G8F 8LOTWLIED  OLET 000005 o08an sbesols otjand
168'avS L5907 LOHHBSLLE  LPO'ZVS z8Le 00Z'h TTOTISLIED  L09'OYS 8L0Z/01/80 000 000055 oo08an Aueg sn
155'16¥ 12992 LIVOLEZOE STLY8Y 6T 1611 TT0T/90/E0  OSE'06Y 8102/SL/90  L6€T 000005 208N 1e50dI0Q IO UoXX3
926'687 81992 SOVNOEELD GLE'ssy vLEE L) TZ0TISLIL0  OzZY'ssy 8LOZIELI0  SZ9T 000005 o08n nit g Bunjueg youeig
000'000'2 ove9z GHAEO9ELE 08E'696'L 05€'L vBE 6L0C/0S/ZL  000'000°C 9L0z/08/00  0SE'L 0000002 o08n GBI jeuonieN esepad
620'9 LE00.L LE00LSAS 6209 2000 L 620'9 €102/L0/L0 2000 620'9 ooan ojfleD 4o yueg uoun
£98'296'9 82004 8T00LSAS £98'/96'9 51T ! £98'/96°9 €10Z/10/120  /SLT £98'296'9 Fial unsenu| kousby 12007
enjep Bukues #juawysanu] dISND  anjep jaxen PISIA Kumen areq T ajeq ajey anjeA pajels uBipoISN) / 231SNIL Jonss|

Anb3 0} sAeq fumey poseyaung aseydingd Jsasau
puog
0lpAH oAlasay “Aa(Q jended
810zZ/0¢/LL

| abed

uoday sJainseal]

Aouaby Jomod eluloyijed uldayuoN

ST Y A et

VdON



we Jpiii 8Lo0z/L02L

L£9'08 96992 LXd96.2L6 §L9'05 8/2¢C A 6102/82/€0 680G 8L0Z/LLI0L  §22T 000°LS asn Ainseait 's'Nt
VHSsa z10z o1pAH

0 $ 0 $ R 0 $ R 0 $ abesaAy pue |ejo) puns
0 1906. L906.SAS O 0r00 L o £L0Z/L0/L0  OV00 0 asn jueg SN
83uenss| 40 3809 Z10Z 04pAH

000005k  $ 000'005°L $ 2000 L 0o00'005‘L  $ 2000 000°005°L § abeiaAy pue jejoL pung
000°00S'L 91002 9L00/SAS 000°005'L 2000 L 000°005't £1L0Z/L0/L0 2000 000°005 'L 208N ojiled 4o sueg uolun
0 £0002 0000.SAS 0 21€0 3 0 £L0Z/L0IL0  L£0 0 4Iv1 wsanuy Aouaby (€207
anosay |ervadg oipAH

g9c'60L  $ 122689 $ €08'}L 656 loz'oll  $ 88l 000’0l  $ abeJaAy pue jejol pund
205'069 FA'T4 EVEBOPELE ¥16'0L9 08L'L 286 1LZ02/60/80  L6E'L69 L102/82P0 G.8°L 000°689 asn N UBOT SUWOH [esepad
£98'8) 56992 LXd96/2L6 /588t 8/2¢ UL 6L02/82/0  0L8'8L 8LOZ/LLIOL  S2TT 00061 asn AnsealL "s'n
JUN022Y ajeqey vz 10z oIPAH

£06'vZ8's  $ 962'0zL's $ 069°L 265 vLILPE'S  $ for: N 000'gL8's  $ abetaAy pue [ejol pung
SLL'PES'S £v29Z 62633€ELE  TOL'EV'S 089} zL9 0202/70/80  28L'OVS'S SL0z/8e/80  0SL'L 000'825'S asn Wpa1D uLie |esepsd
0z5'10t 76992 V.dHVEEELE 89 LOL 8052 [4%4 6L02Z/L0/0  90Z'LOL 810Z/2LI0L  OPF'Z 000'€0L asn g B0 SUWOH |e1apad
€0e'/€L 1592 9OENXEELE LGE'GEL 00¥'L [4%4 610Z/10/0 1092l L102/821L0  GLEY 000'sEL asn g UB0T WOH |eJepad
506°'LS 1€592 GSMBZ8TLE  60L'LS Sh6'L [A¥4 6L02/0E/90  08L'LS 8L0z/Lerty  Se9'h 00028 asn fnseall "s'n
V0L0Z AIS9Y 931AI9S 1q9Q 0IpAH

vie‘oss  $ veL'o08s  $ 0ze e 198826 $ 89LC 000789  § abesany pue [ejo) pund
SLLELL 20292 v18v88GELE GLL'ELL 652 4 6L0Z/20/L0  £FS'ELL 8L0z/6ZI0L  0ZTT 000'FLL 1asn BIN feuoneN |esepa4
€LLpLL 58992 VSEVYSEELE  PPSPLL 192z z€ 6102/20/L0  ¥SY'PLL 8L0Z/LLI0L  0ZTT 000'GLL 1asn eq Ueo aWoH [esopay
892221 09992 vSavressLe €15'22L oL’z 43 61L0Z/Z0/L0  00L'ZZL 8LOZ/LEMRD  STLT 000°€2L 1gsn g UBOT SWOH (BIopad
06L7LL 8€99Z VGEVFBEELE FHSPLL 9602 ze 610Z/20/L0  G8B'ELL 8LOZ/LEILD  0S0T 000°GLL L8asn g UBO] SWOH [eJopas
808'vLL yTI92 V/8NGSEELE 8LE'VLL 59Z°Z 1z 8L0z/8zlzL  6LL'WLL 810z/Le/LL  0£TT 000'GLL 18sn eg ueo 8WoH (eJepad
221M98 1980 88102 0IPAH

09g'96L's  $ opo'0sL's $ 1z'z £ g9z'8EL's  § 691 000'99L’'s  § abesoay pue fejo) pung
$96'820'} 90292 v1EV88GELE  696'820') 652 43 6102/20/L0  198'920'L 8L0z/6z/I0L 0222 000'LE0’} 18sn By [euoneN (esepe
anjep Buikues # Jusw)saAU| dISND  anjeA Jaxen PIaIA Aumen B 30ud 2jeq aey anjep pajeis ueipoisng / dd)sniyL Janss)

Amnb3 0} sheg Aunjew paseyaind aseyaind Jsasvul
«puog
991A198 1920 V810Z 04pAH
8102/0¢/LL

Z obed

uoday sJainseal)

Aouaby Jamod ejulojijed UIdyuoN

Rt F3 81 vel W betbaa

VdON



0z0Z/6T/0T 1aun 3|qeye) THd
220T/ST/2 Uo 3|qeyied asn
8102/82/2T uo 3|qe|jed JWTHA
6T0Z/€ET/9 uo 3jqe|e) 91H4
Apapenb ajqejjed VN

Apausenb ajqeje) VINNA

we 2pipL

TOL9TH JudUISAAU]
TS992# Juswisanu]
059924 Judwisanul
6199Z# JuBWIS3AU|
6SEIT# WLWISAAU]
OvEGTi JudIISAAU|

8L0Z/L0TL

8L0Z/OT/LL 4O SE [eWINO[ 19918 [{BAR 243 Wouj Sa91d pIq JO SJUBIIAIEIS URIPOISNY jaastu L Wwody saoud uo paseq S| anjeA Jaxe Juaund

"pOYIAL JIBX3 LB ISN SIOYJO [je ‘pojawl ajewxoadde ue asn Ajunjew 03 SYjUoW g uey) Ssaj UM SjusluIsaAu)
-sadA} | UsaM}aq uosLRAWOD 1o} SiSeq & apiaoid 0] Jeak Aep ggg e UO paseq umoys st ARInjely o} PISIA JuajeAlnbl puog,

sve'sel'sy $ 009°LiY'8Y  $ [:]%4 18y 160'g52'8y  § e zes'vze'sy $ 1§ IVL0L ANVID
4: 10 1K spL'ivZ'y  $ orez 00LL roLie’y  $ 9geZ 000°6LEY  $ abesony pue [ejoL pung
Gvv'Lz6'e 25852 zaavaeLe  Lyo'vos'e 08€'Z 8eL'L CZOZ/ELL0  TET'9TB'E ZL0zZ/80/20  SIET 000'826'€ asn N UBOT] SWOH |elepad
00076 65€9C L6SEOYELE  LEO'0B 085t 0.6 120Z/8Z//0  000'¥6 9L0Z/82/L0  0ES'L 000'v6 asn By feuonen tesepad
¥66'SvL 6€59C oXe8e8TLe  0TZ'vhL 1sze 208 L202/54/20  TB6'SKL 8L0zZ/L2/20  0STT 000'ovL asn Ansealy 's'n
ZiLi'oot 29T 6ZG33¢ELE  LHT'86 089'L 219 0202/v0/80 _ BZE'00L GL02/82/80  0SL°L 000°00L asn Upes) ule [esspag
anjep bulued #juaunsaau) dISND  anjeA Jouen PIBIA Kunjen ajeq 3Ud ajeg aey anjep pajejs UE|pO)SND / 3dYSNAL Jonssj
Amnbz o} sheq Aunew paseyaing aseyaind 1sas)u|
puog
VySd 2102 04pAH
8102/0¢/L 1L

¢ abed

uoday s,Jainsealt
KouobBy Jomod elulojijen LIayLoN

¥ M Y ¥ ke

VdSN



we gL sLoz/iLoct

Sv8'v8 8E59T SSMEZeTLE  §T5'v8 Gve'L 1334 6102/0€/90 Lr9'v8 8102/.2/20 gzo'L 000'58 asn Ainseail 's'n
892'L8 86992 90D96.ZL6 SO0Z'Le LLee 14} 6102/52iv0 Lv0'L8 8Loc/LLioL viee 00028 asn Ainseail s
888'0€ $S0084 S006.SAS 888°0E 0090 3 8889 €1L02/1L0/L0 0090 888°9€ asn sniueg sn

pung ¥sa 0102 L# enss| 937

ez § 000’8tz § £20Z z sT'sve $ 0£0C ooo'svtz  $ abelaAy pue [ejoL pung

2.6'192 Y992 €/UGBEELE  000'8VT 20T c 810z/e0/gL zsTve 810¢/1€/40 0e0e 000'8¥Z lasn g Ueo SWoH [esspad

pund sa v.i0zZ #enss| 031

ezloll'e  § sos'oLl’s  § 756'0 l 0sg'ILL'e § 2z6'0 sog'9Ll'e  § abeJaAY pue [ejoL puny
126'10L 2Zre9z €/UGBEELE  000'20L 2.0 z 8L0Z/S0/2L 250269 8LOZ/LE/L0 080T 000'202 lasn eg ueo SWoH (eJepa
808'7LY'T z106L ZI0BLSAS 808'VLY'T 009°0 L 808'VLY'Z SLOZ/LO/L0 0090 808'VLY'Z asn Isnu vueg SN

pundg sa 90102 g# anss| 9371

sTV'6LST  $ 022'6.5C  $ 801 L cie'eLsc  § $90°L 0zz'8l8T  $ 3DeIoAY pue fejof pund
$06°2€8 Ly99z €/MG8EELE  000'8E8 20T 4 8L0Z/IE0/CL  €60°Z€8 8L0Z/LE/L0  0£0T 000'8€8 1asn g UBOT BWOH |e1apad
0zT'LrL'L 11062 LL0BLSAS 0ZZ'ive'L 0090 3 0zz'LrL'L €L02/10/20  009°0 0zT'LpL'L asn 1sniy xueg sn

pung sq V0102 ¢# @nss] 931

gLl'esy's  $ 18z'98b's  $ 1£6°0 3 066°5LY'9  $ 2260 182'98%'9  $ abelaAy pue [ejos pund
SE8'65Y'L 0¥992 €/MGBEELE  000'09P'L 2L0e 4 8L0z/e0/cL 60.'6vb'L 8L0Z/LEILO 0eocT 000°09¥'L igasn eg ueo sWoH |esepad
182'920°G 0062 PO06.SAS 182'920'S 0090 b 182'920'S €102/L0/20 0090 182'920'G asn st ueg sn

punj sQ 90102 L3# anss| 937

s9s'ZSL'y  § 205°2Z5LY 150°L 3 we'shl'y  § 9c0'L 20525ty § abeJaAy pue (ejo) pund
168041 6£99¢ €/UGEEELE  000'LL2'L 2.0 z 8LOZ/COZL  LPO'ZIT'L 8LOZNEIL0 080T 000°L22'L 1asn eg UBOT SWOH [eioped
905'188'C €006 £006/SAS 905°188'C 009'0 L 905'188'2 €LOZ/L0/L0 0090 905°188'Z asn JsnuL ueg sn

pund @ v010Z L#onss| 031

y9z'cL $ vozies $ 51T l vaz'el $ 512 voz'eL $ abeiaAy pue [ejo) pung
v9C'eL 9700. O00LSAS ¥9Z'SL 1GLC 3 vyozZ'eL €102/L0/L0 812 (A7 wjseauf Aousby eoo]
anjep Buifuegy # Jusunsaau) diSNO  anjep jaxey PISIA Aunyen 2jeq adud s1ed ajey anjeA patels ueipoisng / assniL Janssy
Ainb3 oysheq  Aumen paseyaing aseyaing P T
spuog

100y uondNy OHO D371
810z/0¢/LL
AIRALT m MY s T G 3K
Hoday s ainseal} <nmuz ;

Kouaby Jomod eluIojED UIBYLION
| abed



8L0Z/OS/LL  JO SE [BUINOT 12318 {leM 3y} Wwoy) sasud pig Jo sy

awinAue sjqeje) 4244

225

I/

we gpiLL aLoz/L02L

LEEITH JudulISaAU|
1 wouy seoud uo paseq s anjep Jaxely Juauny

‘POUIAW JOEXS UB 3SN SIAY}O || ‘poyiaw ajewixoidde ue asn Ajinjew o} SYUOW § URY} SSI| UM SJUSWISIAU]

‘sadAy e ] UOSL. 10y siseq e apiaosd 03 Jeak Aep gg¢ B U0 paseq umoys s Ajunjely 03 pjalA Juajeainb3 puog,
ool‘soz’or $ ‘9E0'vL L6 (441 734 sig'vreor $ £66°L sIy'zeo’or  $ :STVLOL ANVED

9pzeELL $ 6LV'SLLLL  $ vev'L []:14 seo‘cee’tl § 1591 ie'siell § alesaAy pue [ejo) pung
000°000°€ 323°74 rNEoeele OLE'fee'e Qoe'L 448 020Z/0£/90 000°000°€ 9102/0€/90 00g’L 000000 008N BN (euolieN esopad
85Y'vLO'E ovraT oDravocLe 689'/rG'€ 0SSt 255 020Z/50/90  ZG6'ELO'E LLOZ/OE/90  O¥S'L 000'6L9'¢ asn g UeoT aluoH [elopaly
T90'2€6'2 8vZ9T PYZOOSELE BES'6T6'T 0zz'L 08 6L0C/6LIZ0  Z¥L'866'C GL0Z/82/80  S.8'L 000'€£6'C o08n BN [eucseN [esopad
9eT' LY L¥00. L¥OOLSAS 9€T'Ly 2000 L [lraid €L0Z/8L/L0 2000 o€z Ly 208N ojlleQ Jo yueg uolin
G0L'€ZL't 2¥00L 1¥00/SAS S0L'€el'L 512 L soL'ezs't €L0ZIL0IO0  IS5LT gos'ees'L unseAu| AoueBy (eo0
9AIOSOY N ® O 031

z85'060° $ 19e'e80't  $ 4 4% 102 88E'0EL'L  $ oy Lre'eL0't $ abesaAy pue jejo) puny
2189'EV0°L 959z 9OENXEELE LOE'GED L oov'L [4%4 6L0Z/L0/0  802280'% 210218210 SlE 000'620'L asn eg Ueo alloH [ejapag
$6.'2Z 00/92 9o096LZI6 L1222 1122 grl 6L02/SZIP0  LEL'TT 8Loz/IMOL  PITT 000'eT asn funseai} 's'n
£Z6'VC G€59Z 8dd96.2ZL6 906'vC z8' 19 6LOZ/LENLO  TLS'VE 8L0Z/LCR0 €8l 000'52 asn Knseal] 's'n
118 €106/ €L0BLSAS LIE 0090 L 28 €L0Z/L0/20 0090 1€ asn Isnut yueg SN
Sava ¥sa g010¢ z# onss| 231

88€'8/2C7 $ vLo'zezz ¢ 1551 Lad] zoz'eze'z  $ 0gee ovi'ozzz  $ abeiaAy pue [ejoL pung
$69'€02'T [eiel <14 8€30LEELE GLETOL'T ovsL 656 0202/2L/30  9v1L'SSZ'T 2102/82/.0  §l€€ 000°s¥L'Z asn eg ueoT swoH felepag
029'9e 66992 90096.2L6  L¥9'9E LLze =128 6L02/G2P0  295'9€ 8LOZ/LLIOL  ¥LTT 000'2€ asn Ainsessl 'S'N
£88'/¢ €992 8dd96.2t6 858'LE [4i: 3% 19 6LOZ/LENLD  BVE'LE 810¢/Le20  €T8'L 000'8€ asn Ainseest 'g'n
ovL 90062 9006.SAS OF) 0090 1 avl €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 orl asn snit sueg sn
As9Y sqng S9va g0L0Z L#ss] 031

660'198°8  § €o0L'Z9s's ¢ Wwe 8901 ves'Lie's $ 698'L 888'cle’s  $ abelaay pue jejol pund
LEEOGL'Y £9¥9C 6906.EELE YIV'/86'E 038’k /821 2202/01190 90€'89L Y £102/82/80 gcLe 000°00L'¥ asn g Ueo sWoH (eiepsd
LoL'pL v5v9zZ 803valele L0€'evl 6691 686 120Z/2LI80  8¥9'OVL L10z/82120  SZVi 000051 asn JA UBOT SWOH (esopad
000'09€' 18692 /ZE93EELE  vOL'8TCY 659'} 906 LZ0Z/STIS0 00009y 9L0Z/80/30 099} 000'09E'Y asn paiD wie4 [esapay
anjep Bulued # Juawsaaug dISND  anjeA 1duen PIRIA Aumew ajeq e ajeq atey anjeA pajels uelpo3sny / 2ajsniL Janss|

anb3 o0} sfeq Aunjey paseyaing Uaind
spuog
pund ¥sd 0102 L# onss| 931
8102/0¢/L}

Z abed

Joday sJainseal)
Kouaby 1omod eiulojijen WwsyuoN

SLAUERISEL et ¥ hdToLn TN

VdON



7/

i
"4

W« rusuic agency

PA

/ /' NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT:

December 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

>

San Francisco Bay Area

City of Healdsburg

Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto

City of Biggs City of Redding

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o o 0o
O o o 0O o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth.—~ jki:'hMETHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 101:19



December 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
January 9, 2019

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the January 17, 2019 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is
a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited December 2018 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

XM@ -

DY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 101:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of December 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,519,988
3,662,949
189,932
535,627
8,600,332
34,150,084

$ 48,658,912




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 50%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,824,851 § 8,072,383 § 16,699,691 48%

Debt Service (Net) 2,929,735 17,578,413 35,156,824 50%
Annual Budget Cost 4,754,586 25,650,796 51,856,515 49%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,207,542 14,524,788 29,488,515 49%

Debt Service (Net) 411,408 2,468,448 4,936,896 50%
Annual Budget Cost 2,618,950 16,993,236 34,425,411 49%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 661,920 3,661,784 6,605,701 55% (a)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 74,964 797,230 977,410 82% (b)

Other Plant Cost 160,071 1,064,410 2,048,734 52%

Debt Service (Net) 476,392 2,858,354 5,716,708 50%
Annual Budget Cost 711,427 4,719,994 8,742,852 54%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 6,867,925 29,487,649 33,092,116 89% (c)

Other Plant Cost 1,706,985 11,623,199 24,544,632 47%

Debt Service (Net) 2,173,321 13,039,927 26,079,852 50%
Annual Budget Cost 10,748,231 54,160,775 83,716,600 65%
Member Resources - Energy 3,662,989 30,685,513 64,448,814 48%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 507,593 2,541,205 3,098,278 82% (d)
Western Resources 1,624,992 9,415,897 31,349,618 30%
Market Power Purchases 2,827,179 13,071,471 15,539,033 84% (e)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 34,819,511 165,481,315 273,858,269 60% (U]
Net GHG Obligations - 1,150,485 1,122,972 102%  (9)

62,937,378 327,522,471 574,764,063 57%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 459,141 2,444,237 3,662,271 67% (h)
Wheeling Access Charge 7,801,994 49,189,779 104,569,875 47%
Ancillary Services 617,417 4,128,013 3,040,303 136% (i)
Other 1ISO Charges/(Credits) 5,804,927 5,321,566 1,549,274 343% ()
14,683,479 61,083,595 112,821,723 54%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 166,474 993,176 2,023,068 49%
Regulatory Representation 32,224 267,603 886,616 30%
Western Representation 63,143 313,805 848,160 37%
Member Services 16,391 142,073 438,389 32%
Judicial Action 82,318 340,213 625,000 54% (k)

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 50%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 467,683 2,844,421 6,107,416 47%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 225,807 1,223,649 2,775,167 44%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 43,046 151,318 438,813 34%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 61,354 394,897 1,134,623 35%
Green Power Project 24 147 2,964 5%
Gas Purchase Program 4,654 30,367 77,781 39%
Market Purchase Project 6,213 41,101 112,014 37%
Energy Risk Management 13,371 70,200 259,585 27%
Settlements i 37,982 259,660 941,392 28%
Integrated Systems Support 1,391 48,520 272,850 18%
Participant Pass Through Costs 273,386 757,955 1,619,170 47%
Support Services 63,768 583,691 - N/A
1,559,229 8,462,796 18,563,008 46%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 79,180,086 397,068,862 706,148,794 56%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 15,745,545 88,909,118 100,456,289 89% [0)
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 2,351,970 21,777,565 28,186,777 77% (m)
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 4,122,762 16,283,413 14,720,326 111%  (m)
Western Resource Energy Sales 64,404 12,529,061 23,182,775 54% (m)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 25,085,007 107,889,667 131,328,609 82% (n)
Ancillary Services Sales 296,962 2,996,911 4,409,129 68% (0}
Transmission Sales 9,198 55,188 110,376 50%
Western Credits, Interest and Other income 2,171,554 10,455,927 37,414,086 28%
49,847,402 260,896,850 339,808,367 77%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 29,332,684 $ 136,172,012 § 366,340,427 37%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 118% of budgeted MWhs at 12/31/18. Fuel costs and CA 1SO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 266% of budgeted MWhs at 12/31/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a resuit of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 106% of budgeted MWhs at 12/31/18. Fuel costs and CA I1SO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation at CT1, CT2, and LEC. See notes (a) and (b).

(e) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY 19 budget including certain
NextEra and Shell deals.

(f) Increase due to higher than budgeted market prices.

(9) Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for
Alameda and the City of Lodi.

(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c).
(i) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c).

(i) The budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(k) Variance due to higher than anticipated legal costs related to privileged and confidential legal proceedings.
() Increase due to higher market prices caused by California wildfires.
(m) Variance due to higher than anticipated ISO energy sales and higher market prices for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.

(n) The load aggregation energy sales variance is due to unbudgeted sales related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Clean Energy.

(0) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c) and corresponding increase in ancillary services costs.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

December 31,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

21,554 $ 15,076
45,236 55,259
46 1

268 463

412 256
9,746 9,852
1,685 111
78,947 81,018
53,845 58,131
166,856 166,791
618 556
221,319 225,478
1,505,096 1,503,753
(988,695) (958,204)
516,401 545,549
182 151
516,583 545,700
229,553 234,931
; 24

165 -

265 -
1,046,832 1,087,151
37,138 45,204
19,200 13,506
56,338 58,710

1,103,170 § 1,145,861




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
December 31,
2018 2017
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 15,743 § 32,166
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 -
Member advances 1,213 1,068
Operating reserves 23,718 21,047
Current portion of long-term debt 41,950 42,205
Accrued interest payable 8,049 8,948
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 90,683 105,434
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 76,002 64,589
Operating reserves and other deposits 152,057 150,259
Interest rate swap liability 13,326 15,930
Long-term debt, net 663,561 707,272
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 904,946 938,050
TOTAL LIABILITIES 995,629 1,043,484
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 69,650 72,276
Pension and OPEB deferrals 3,195 4,460
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 72,845 76,736
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (53,441) (54,826)
Restricted 54,781 52,350
Unrestricted 33,356 28,117
TOTAL NET POSITION 34,696 25,641

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,103,170 $ 1,145,861




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Six Months Ended December 31,

2018 2017
(in thousands)
208,276 $ 175,304
147,952 117,371
356,228 292,675
153,928 126,468
54,023 38,292
90,381 72,744
15,470 15,491
11,443 10,886
10,526 8,889
335,771 272,770
20,457 19,905
(21,017) (21,971)
5,763 3,269
3,453 2,428
(11,801) (16,274)
(1,594) (1,314)
(10,434) (10,736)
(3,372) (8,419)
38,068 34,060
34,696 $ 25,641




OLI'E01'T §  06£¢€91 LIEYI § 96ETC = $ 88L'bIY LL8'T 619Z€ LLTSSE § 90768
8EE'9S 00261 - - - 9L6'1 - L€8 ObLTE S8S°1
00Z°61 002761 - & - - - - - -
SEI'LE = = z E 9L6°1 L€8 obLTE S86°1
7€8°950°1 06111 LIEYL 96£°TT 5 TITeTy LL81 78L'1€ LEVTTE 129°L8
$9T $97 - - = 2 = -

S8 - 91 - - - - Z s d
£66°62T 16L°19 - - < LI9VT 195°6 S9EVEL (182)
£85°91S TTLT 8 - - 991'SEE 8L6'L 98€°St 806'LT1 SLOEE
781 E - < z 781 - - - -
10¥'91§ LT (143 - = ¥86'VEE 8L6°1 98€°S1 806°LT1 SLOEE
(569°886) (LzTe) (8v) 3 (oeL°L) (79338) (Lsre) (99%°6%) {o10°L92) (TLeLes)
960°505°1 6v6°S 96L - 9EL'L 98'eTY 755°9¢ 75809 816V6€ LYYOLS
61€°17C (A - £/7'8C = 86v°TE = 966°€ 6E1°€S 610°6T
819 8€T - - - €L - 91 €91 8zl
958991 £25°1S - £€9°97 - 660°TT - L86'T [19°LE €009
SP8°eS £99°7C - 019°1 = 9ze'ol * £66 $9E'St 8887
LY6°8L 8867 v08°E1 (Ly8's) E 1£6°6T (ton) 6€8°C ST0L 80£9T
- (8L0°€9) YOLET (€619) 5 9pS'LT {LosT) 961°T oP6'S 9zEIT
$89°1 8101 9 - - 00T - - - 9%
L6 - - * 'z SOF°L Tv9 6L0°1 605y
(412 2t - 86 - - - = = -

897 6 - 8YT - - - . - 1

9 o = - + z - = - -

9€T st 9ET'S¥ b2 : - - - - E =
vSsIT $ &HIT vE $ # $ v 1 I - § 1

paulquio) Aousty SIJMAIS UOISSIWSURL], uQ ON 121U3)) ARIUg U0 "ON saniIvey DLII3[0IPAH [eULIaYI02D)
Y0 JaquIspy 29 1emogd UOISSIUSURL] po] 10 [ende)
PareId0ssy paseyoing aydnny
SHIANOSTI NOISSTASNY YL % ONILVIANTD
8T0T ‘T€ 13quaddQ

UONPUIGUIO)) Ut POTRUII

SAANOSTY 40 SMOTALNO ATAIHATA ANV SLASSY TVIOL

SHOYNOSTY 40 SMOTALNO ANNITIFA TV.IOL
S[eLI3JOP UOISUR]
1gep JO Surpuryal uo 1500 §SI0XY
SHOMNOSTY 40 SMOTILA0 ATHEFIAA

SLASSY TVIOL

i

0 PITRIDOSSE Ul 1
1500 uoNeSNsaAul pue AAINS ArBURUIRIY
sjesse KiojenSay
SLASSY YIHLO

LNV OILOFTA TVLOL
s501501d-UI-}40M UOHONIISUOD)

uonenaidap paremwnL $597
2o1ases wt Jueyd oures[g
LNV1d ORLOTTH

SLASSV QdLONLSTY TVIOL
9]qBAISIA 1SAITUL
SJUSUWISIAUL
sjuaeainbs yseo pue yse)
SLASSV QILOTYLSTH

SLASSY LNTIIND TV.LOL
LswrerSoid 1ayio pue Aousfy wox ang
sosuadxs predaig
sanddns pue Arouaaug
9]qBAII09 1SIISU]

BYI0

sjuedionreq
3[qBAIS31 SJUNOIDY
SIUUISIAUT
Sjua[eAInba yseo pue yse)

SLESSY LNTYIND

S1ISSV

(pantwo 5,000)

SNOILVIOJdYOD ¥HMO0d TALVIDOSSY ANV
AIDNIDV ¥HMOd VINJOII'TVI NIHHLION

NOILLISOd LEN JO0 INFWALV.LS ONINIFINOD

NOILVIARIOANI TVIDNVNIA HHHLO



0LL'E0T'L §  06£°€91 $ LIgYl $ 96£7C [ $ 881¥TH $ LLBL § 619T¢ $  LLISSE $ 90768 $ NOILISOd LN ANV S3dN0STd 40
SMOTANI TNEIAd ‘SALITEVITIVIOL

969'vE L08°1 1££°S (753 = S8y°LL 191 viv Sv6'y LTyl NOILLISOd L3N TVIOL
95€'€E 908°1 96b°S (yzL'6) - 151°91 £91 917 8¥8°S 9€€Tl PILISIIUN
18L'7S 1 (s91) = rL6'61 % 69£°¢ 10€'%T 10g°L PIIOLISTY
(vr'es) - - - - (ov9'sD) 2 (($x49] (v0z's0) (99¢'%) stasse [ended uf JUsUISAAUL 13N
NOILISOd LAN
SY8'TL 6559 9i€ - - 9v1°0F £71°T S16 780 789'81 SAUNOSTA 40 SMOTINI AIITIAA TV.LOL
s61°¢ S61°¢ - - . - - - - = S[ELI9JOP HJO PUe UOISUaJ
059°69 POE'E [:1¢ - - orIoy [34%4 S16 ¥80t 78981 supaid Komnday

SFYNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ANYAIAA

629°566 $T0°5S1 0L9'8 oz1ze = 155799¢ [332] 06C°1€ 8Y19p< £57°9S SALLITIEVIT TVIOL
976706 yTr 051 8vT'8 ThE'ST - 658°TEE - 156'ST 197°81€ 199°0p SALLITIEVIT LNEEND-NON TY.LOL
195°€99 - . - = (440113 . 156'ST 80€°987 001°0Z 19U 1q9p WR)-5u0]
9z€'€l - - - - - - - 9TE'EL : Aupqey desms o3 153s930]
LSO'TST T YL 8vT'8 TYE'8T J AT - - L9L'81 19§°0T susodap 1ay10 pue saAesal FunesndQ
200°9L 200°9L - - - - * - - - Apqey G940 pue uoisuad 1BN
STLLITIEVIT LNEIEND-NON
£€89°06 009'% [443 8LLE - 869°€€ (ect) 6£€°S L89°LT T65°S1 SHILITEVIT INTIIND TY.LOL
6v0'8 - - - - LOT1 - LT9 LY6'S 89T a|qeded 1sa1sjut paniooy
056°1¥ - - - - 0811 g S61Y 081°1T §60°S 199p une)-uof Jo uorod ueLngy
81L°€T = - - - 091°%1 (ovt) [ats 05T SET'6 soatasal Suered(y
€1zl - (447 - - 2 % - - 6L S30URADE JOGUISI
ol - - - - - - - o1 - UONONIISUOD 10} PAjoLItsal - 9]qeArd SUOMUAIRI PUE SJUNODY
£PLST $ 009% $ - $ 8LL'€ $ - § 158%9 $ L § v $ 00¢ $ €T $ sasuadxa poruooe pue ajqeed sjunooay
SHLLITIEVIT LNTIND
SHLLITIEVIT
pauIquo) Aouaiy SIS ISST L ISSI 11 10U Anieugy 3w oN saijoRg SLI109[P0IPAH [eULIdY103D)
Etle] Toquo % 10M0g poT 10 [endes
pateroossy paseqoing apdujn

STANOSTI NOISSINSNVEL 3 ONILYIINID

8107 ‘1€ 12qUId3Qq
(payrwo s,000)
SNOILVYOJHO0) dIMO0d AALVIOOSSV ANV
AIDNTIV ¥IMOd VINHOII'TVI NITHLION

NOILLISOd LAN 40 INTWHLVLS ONINIGFINOD

NOILLVINHOANI TVIDONVNIA ¥IHLO



UOTBUIQUIOD) W PATRUNLIY 4

969°%€ §  L081 § 1E€S s (vzL's) $ - $ 8Ll $ 191 S viv S Sve'y § LTI $ papua pousd ‘NOLLISOd LAN
890°8¢€ L€8 L6L'9 9608 < rT'e (929) 60% L8EL YT6 1 1eak Jo SuuwiSeg ‘NOLLISOd LIN
(ZL£6) 0L6 (99v°1) (0z8'L1) | : eyl £6L S (Tpr'D) LVET NOILLISOd LAN NI (ISYTIOEQ) ISVIIONI
(rev'or) (€L07) (09z°¢) (9v0°T) - 65T 706 (o91) (op€77) (o1LT) SLNVdIDLLYVd OL SONNJIA
(b6S°1) - - - - 878 - (8v0°1) (L8 (866) SINNOWY TTEVYIAQOTY THNLNA
(108 11) 6€6C [ YL . L9¢%) 1 18¢€ (87811) LIt SANNIATY (SASNAEXH) ODNILVYHd0 NON TVIOL
£SY°¢ 85T - b9 - 080T - 0501 I : »Yo
€9L°s 189'C 49 099 2 ££6 I YL LLL £33 30Ut 15313U[
(L10°12) - - - - (08¢L) - (evL) (929°71) (392) asuadxa 1sa193uf

STANNAATY (STSNIIXH) ONILYHIdO NON

LSY 0T [l [ZZA1 (861°L1) - 12511 fo11) z€8 ]TITL 8EL°S STNNTATE ONILYHEO LAN
[LL7SEE 79¢ TL0%6 SSSOVT - £eE'6Y 998°¢ ¥16T £8€°€L 98791 SASNAIXH ONILYYEdO0 TV.LOL
- - (ze) - - 6l [ o€ 901 (s87) 410U ‘saseyound (sofes) Aued 1
97501 T6l 69€'€ » - 69%°T 144 €8¢ L'l 610T [e10UST PUE SANRNSIUIWPY
[a2an 2 LT Z - LYL'L 968°1 10€ 968°C 9.8y QUBUIUIRIA
oLY'St oLt 1$ - - 60€'L 96 011 ¥8LY 6561 uonenaidaq
18£°06 = T 9TT68 = ££5 91 9 65T €51 UOISSIUSUEL],
£20'%S - $59°s 45T - 8E1bE 900°L 780°'1 ¥90°T LES'L suonesdg
876'€S1 . - 88L°8Y1 - 800°€ (414 |7 TES'T L€ Jomod paseyoung
SASNAIXH ONILYIIIO
8TTOS€ 99% V80l £50°€2T E 5899 9SL°E 9bLE 115°s ¥T0Ze SANNIATE DNILYYELO TVIOL
756°LY1 . (9€) £19°S - e Sbel 88Y'1 978't1 YLO'LT Aureg-piy 1. 10O
9L7'807 $ 99% $ 0s8°01 $  yrbLot $ = $ zTIv'el $ ez $ 85TT $  $89°1 $ 056 $ swedpneg
STNNFATY ONILY YIdO
paulquo) fouady FERITNEN ISST 17 UoISSI L 12U ATsug 3uQ 'ON sanioe] JUIJ03[0IPAH [BULIRYI00)
Y10 1oquIsIY % 1oM0g poT 10 de)
PaIRIOOSSY pasegoing apdnny

SADYNOSTI NOISSINSNY UL 2 ONLLVIANTD
8107 ‘I€ 12quIad( papuq SYIUOIA XIS 34} 10

(papwio ,000)
SNOILVHOJY0D ¥IMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AJNADY YAMOd VINHOII'TVI NUAHLAON

NOLLISOd LAN NI SIONVHO ANV SASNAIXT ‘STANTATE 4O INAWIALV.LS ONINITFNOD

NOILVINYOANI TVIDONVNIA ¥HHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
December 31, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 314,285
PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 314,285

AR FY 2019Dec Rpt 2018



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of December 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,519,988
3,662,949
189,932
535,627
8,600,332
34,150,084

$ 48,658,912




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: January 17, 2019

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended December 31, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth W METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members CityofLodi O City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F '“"3‘;:5?;;:; O City of Palo Alto [1  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs (1 City of Redding [J Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [J City of Santa Clara [ Other O

SR: 103:19



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended December 31, 2018
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval by all members.
BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $11,743,883 of which approximately $102,668 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $7,768,545 to Debt Service and $3,872,670 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $275,766,716 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $273,748,038.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.104% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.134%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $175,889,000. December maturities totaled $39 million and monthly receipts totaled

$51 million. During the month $27 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills increased 4 basis points (from 2.39%
to 2.43%) and rates on one year T-Bills decreased 11 basis points (from 2.70% to 2.59%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of December 31, 2018 are
in compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical

environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

g

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment
SR: 103:19



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

Northern California Power Agency

December 31, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
$ 2,069,837 $ 92,100,637 $ 94,170,474 32.75%
$ 901,533 $ - $ 901,533 0.32%
$ 901,300 $ 4,110,807 $ 5,012,107 1.74%
$ 7,768,545 $ 23,473,999 $ 31,242,544 10.87%
$ 102,668 $ 156,081,273 $ 156,183,941 54.32%
$ 11,743,883 $ 275,766,716 $ 287,510,599 100.00%
$ 273,748,038




Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
December 31, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) (NOTE A) OPS/CONSTR (NOTE B) FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 49,666,410 $ 170,408 $ 15,893,337 $ (23,529,872) $ (11,040,119) $ (29,910,376) $ 1,249,788
Special Deposits 1,060,338 10 - (20,369,139) - 19,309,431 640
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service - 934 14,360,012 (10,424,672) (2,534,703) 5,867,453 7,269,024
Special & Reserve - 373,172 8,827,559 - (13,855,801) 4,733,492 78,422
$ 50,726,748 $ 544,524 $ 39,080,908 $ (54,323,683) $ (27,430,623) $ - $ 8,597,874

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

December 31, 2018
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 11,040,119 $ (15,893,337) $ 12,586 $ (46,175) $ - (4,886,807)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - 3,071 - - 3,071
Debt Service 2,534,703 (14,360,012) 34,736 - - (11,790,573)
Special & Reserve 13,855,801 (8,827,559) (4,664) - - 5,023,578
$ 27,430,623 $ (39,080,908) $ 45,729 $ (46,175) $ - (11,650,731)

Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on

Sale

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

446

(11,650,285)




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

December 31, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.104% 2.134%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2.033% 2.161%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.511% 2.686%
Capital Facilities 2.298% 2.310%
Hydroelectric 2.204% 2.246%
Lodi Energy Center 1.644% 1.319%
INTEREST RATES
3.25 -
575
KEY INTEREST RATES 238
PRIOR 125 p——
CURRENT YEAR ] %g
075 {— S
Fed Fds (Overnight) 2.40% 1.42% 050 1= St oL ey
T-Bills (90da.) 2.43% 1.42% 000 nvg | Sep | Ot Nov | Des
Agency Disc (90da.) 2.28% 1.38%
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.59% 1.76%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 2.36% 1.75% | :
T-Notes (3yr) 2'55% 2.00% ——t— T-Bills (90 days) -~#~-FED FUNDS
| et T-Bills (1 yr) el T-NoOtES (3 Yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
December 31, 2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 13,286 $ 8,971 $5,407 $ 1,263 $ 9,497 $ 123,533 $ 2,000 $ 163,957 58.88%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - - 48,710 - 48,710 17.49%
US Bank Trust Money Market 8,392 - - - - - - 8,392 3.01%
Commercial Paper 7,141 - - - - - - 7,141 2.57%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 37,421 - - - - - - 37,421 13.44%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5,024 - - - - - - 5,024 1.81%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 5,594 - - - - - - 5,594 2.01%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 189 319 - 48 146 - 702 0.25%
Certificates of Deposit 10 - - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.54%
Total Dollars $ 76,869 $9,160 $5,726 $1,263 $9,545 $173,889 $2,000 $ 278,452 100.00%
Total Percents 27.60% 3.29% 2.06% 0.45% 3.43% 62.45% 0.72% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



Northern California Power Agency

Page 1

NCPA Treasurer's Report
NDETHORG CAL I DN POTAR ABING
12/31/2018
Operating
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity ~ Daysto M“”_.M
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value  CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value
US Bank, N.A. usB 25,000 1.850  11/26/2014 25,000 1 1.850 25,000 SYS70101 70101 25,000
Local Agency Investm LAIF 10,573,269 2157 07/01/2013 10,573,269 1 2.157 10,573,269 SYS70000 70000 10,573,269
California Asset Mgm CMP 4,400 2550  10/19/2018 4,400 1 2,550 4,400 SYS70070 70070 4,400
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 1,657,646 0002  07/01/2013 1,657,646 1 0.002 1,657,646 SYS70014 70014 1,657,646
US Bank usB 2,069,837 0.001  06/30/2013 2,069,837 1 0.001 2,060,837 SYS70050 70050 2,069,837
US Bank usB 7,115,940 0.850  08/24/2017 7,115,940 1 0.850 7,115,940 SYS70056 70056 7,115,940
US Bank uss 10,000 0.050  10/07/2018 10,000  01/07/2019 6 0.050 10,000 SYS30315 30315 10,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 4,000,000 1750  06/09/2015 4,046,160  05/30/2019 149 1.450 3,987,320 3137EADG1 26231 4,004,806
General Dynamics UBOC 1,000,000 2875  09/20/2018 998,980  05/11/2020 496 2,937 1,000,690 369550BA5 26668 999,154
Federal Home Loan Ba UBOC 4,975,000 1600  08/28/2017 4,990,373  07/17/2020 563 1.490 4,900,276 3130ABTWS 26466 4,983,226
Walmart, Inc. uBOC 1,000,000 1900  09/20/2018 979,580  12/15/2020 714 2.848 984,310 931142EA7 26674 982,142
John Deere Capital C UBOC 500,000 2350  09/21/2018 492,195  01/08/2021 738 3.057 493,145 24422ETZ2 26676 493,139
Federal Home Loan Ba UBCC 2,785,000 1400  07/19/2016 2,783,608  01/19/2021 749 1411 2,718,884 3130A8P80 26356 2,784,366
Cisco Systems Inc. uBOC 1,000,000 2200  09/20/2018 982,020  02/28/2021 789 2.969 986,750 17275RBD3 26667 984,088
Federal Home Loan Mt uBCC 3,000,000 2530  03/29/2018 3,000,000  03/29/2021 818 2530 3,000,030 3134GSGT6 26564 3,000,000
Home Depot Inc. UBOC 500,000 2000  03/21/2018 487,800  04/01/2021 821 2.846 490,120 437076BL5 26658 490,934
Inte! Corp UBOC 1,000,000 1700 09/20/2018 968,960  05/19/2021 869 2919 971,800 458140AW0 26670 972,229
Pfizer Inc UBOC 500,000 1950  06/12/2018 487,130  06/03/2021 884 2,858 490,310 717081DX8 26617 489,521
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,000,000 2500  06/28/2018 1,000,000  06/28/2021 909 2,990 1,000,500 3134GSQA6 26628 1,000,000
Federal Farm Credit uBoC 2,602,000 1720  08/28/2017 2,611,784  07/26/2021 937 1.620 2,547,228 3133EHSRS 26465 2,608,427
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 3,500,000 1500  11/23/2016 3,500,000  08/23/2021 965 1.500 3,407,145 3134GAVH4 26385 3,500,000
American Honda Finan usoC 1,000,000 1700  09/20/2018 959,220 09/09/2021 082 3.149 961,360 (02665WBGS 26669 963,073
3M Company UBOC 1,000,000 3.000  09/21/2018 999,480  09/14/2021 987 3018 1,008,080 88579YBA8 26675 -999,528
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 202,000 2200  01/30/2017 202,000  01/26/2022 1,121 2.200 198,513 3134GAVO2 26403 202,000
Procter & Gamble UBOC 1,000,000 2300  09/20/2018 975,770 02/06/2022 1132 3.060 984,460 742718DY2 26673 977,783
Johnson & Johnson uBoC 1,000,000 2250  09/20/2018 976,140  03/03/2022 1,157 2.982 975,470 478160CD4 26671 978,079
TD Ameritrade uBcC 500,000 2950  05/15/2018 493385  04/01/2022 1,186 3315 494,635 87236YAES 26601 494,456
PepsiCo Inc. UBOC 500,000 2250 03/21/2018 487,005  05/02/2022 1,217 2924 487,070 713448DT2 26557 489,462
Apple Inc. uBOC 1,123,337 2300  02/01/2018 1,121,966 05/11/2022 1,226 2.329 1,006,298 037833CQ1 26525 1,122,259
NStar Electric Co. UBOC 500,000 2375  06/12/2018 484,480  10/15/2022 1,383 3.144 482,180 67021CAG2 26616 486,456
Boeing Co. UBOC 500,000 2200  06/12/2018 482,180  10/30/2022 1,308 3.074 482,300 097023BN4 26612 484,427
American Honda Finan UBOC 500,000 2600  06/12/2018 488560  11/16/2022 1,415 3.157 486,485 (02665WCA7 26614 480,979
Chevron Corp. UBOC 500,000 2355  03/21/2018 486760  12/05/2022 1,434 3.008 484,195 166764AB6 26556 488,114
Visa Inc. UBOC 400,000 2.800  08/03/2018 394552 12/14/2022 1,443 3.135 394,980 92826CACE 26647 395,065
Toyota Motor Credit UBOC 1,000,000 2700  08/03/2018 974760 011112023 1,471 3.315 971,320 89236TELS 26645 977,098
Simon Property Group UBOC 500,000 2750  05/15/2018 484585  02/01/2023 1,492 3.464 484,680 828807CN5 26603 486,639
Oracle Corp. uBOC 500,000 2625  03/21/2018 488,010  02/15/2023 1,506 3.154 487,655 68389XBR5 26556 489,913
Excxon Mobil Corporat UBOC 1,000,000 2726  08/03/2018 985450  03/01/2023 1,520 3.068 983,380 30231GAR3 26648 986,757
John Deere Capital C UBOC 500,000 20800  06/12/2018 489,875  03/06/2023 1,525 3.264 488,860 24422ETG4 26613 491,057
Berkshire Hathaway | uUBOC 500,000 2750 03/21/2018 492280  03/15/2023 1,534 3.086 490,840 084670BRS 26654 493,485
01/03/2019 1:33 pm



ANCPA

Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Page 2

LT A TR R PR R
12/31/2018
Operating
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity ~ Days to m“”ﬂ
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP investment # Carrying Value
United Parcel Servic UBOC 500,000 2.500 05/15/2018 483,225 04/01/2023 1,551 3.248 486,440 911312BK1 26600 485,384
United Parcel Servic UBOC 500,000 2.500 09/21/2018 483,120 04/01/2023 1,551 3.308 486,440 911312BK1 26677 484,156
Bank of NY Mellon Co uBOC 500,000 3.500 05/15/2018 501,265 04/28/2023 1,578 3.443 501,500 08406RAG2 26602 501,105
Hershey Company uBOC 500,000 3.375 06/12/2018 503,125 05/15/2023 1,595 3.236 503,285 427866AZ1 26615 502,774
US Bank UBOC 1,000,000 3.400 08/03/2018 1,000,000 0712412023 1,665 3.399 997,950 90331HNV1 26646 1,000,000
Microsoft Corp. uBoC 1,000,000 2.000 09/20/2018 947,350 08/08/2023 1,680 3172 961,460 594918BQ6 26672 950,375
Federal Farm Credit uBoC 1,500,000 3.340 11/21/2018 1,500,000 10/04/2023 1,737 3.339 1,506,720 3133EJE39 26714 1,600,000
Fund Total and Average $ 67,043,429 1.899 $ 66,668,215 658 2.068 $ 66,321,156 $ 66,667,548

MPP GHG Auction Acct

Local Agency Investm 34,397 2.157 07/01/2013 34,397 1 2157 34,397 SYS70045 70045 34,397

Fund Total and Average $ 34,397 2.157 $ 34,397 1 2.157 $ 34,397 $ 34,397

SCPA Balancing Account

Local Agency Investm LAIF 761,135 2157 07/01/2013 761,135 1 2.157 761,135 SYS70022 70022 761,135
Union Bank of Califo uUBOC 1,084 0.002 07/01/2013 1,084 1 0.002 1,084 SYS70023 70023 1,084
Federal Home Loan Ba uBOC 500,000 2.450 12/20/2018 493,773 06/21/2019 171 2515 494,170 313384HD4A 26733 494,181
Federal Home Loan Ba UBOC 750,000 2.875 11/27/2018 750,045 09/11/2020 619 2.870 753,968 313370USS 26717 750,043
Federal National Mtg UBOC 1,150,000 1.630 12/20/2018 1,128,369 10/30/2020 668 2672 1,130,462 3135GORM7 26734 1,128,724
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,000,000 3.000 12/18/2018 1,000,000 12/18/2020 717 3.000 1,001,030 3134GSF34 26729 1,000,000
Bank of NY Mellon Co UBOC 500,000 2.050 04/03/2018 486,105 05/03/2021 853 3.000 488,015 06406FAB9 26570 489,460
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,000,000 3.200 12/13/2018 1,000,000 12/13/2021 1,077 3.200 1,000,700 3134GSF59 26728 1,000,000
Microsoft Corp. UBCC 500,000 2375 04/04/2018 492,295 02/12/2022 1,138 2.798 493,940 594918BA1 26574 493,777
Walt Disney Company/ uBOC 500,000 2.450 07/24/2018 487,520 03/04/2022 1,158 3.186 489,450 25468PDQ6 26630 489,027
TD Ameritrade UBOC 500,000 2.950 04/03/2018 497,200 04/01/2022 1,186 3.100 494,635 87236YAES 26571 497,722
Home Depot Inc. uBOC 500,000 2625 04/04/2018 494,290 06/01/2022 1,247 2918 494,755 437076BG6 26572 495,308
Public Storage UBOC 500,000 2.370 04/04/2018 483,706 09/15/2022 1,353 3.161 482,900 74460DABS 26573 486,423
Visa Inc. UBOC 250,000 2.800 07/24/2018 246,975 12/14/2022 1,443 3.096 246,863 92826CACE 26632 247276
Intel Corp UBOC 500,000 2.700 06/22/2018 492,300 12/15/2022 1,444 3.070 492,485 458140AM2 26625 483,202
Toyota Motor Credit uBoC 550,000 2625 05/09/2018 536,294 01/10/2023 1,470 3.203 535,442 89233P7F7 26598 538,186
Cisco Systems Inc. UBOC 500,000 2.600 06/222018 487,655 02/28/2023 1,519 3.170 490,085 17275RBE1 26624 489,039
Exxon Mobil Corporat UBOC 500,000 2726 05/09/2018 492,670 03/01/2023 1,520 3.055 491,690 30231GAR3 26599 493,652
Berkshire Hathaway. | UBOC 500,000 2.750 06/09/2018 490,280 03/15/2023 1,534 3.185 490,840 084670BR8 26596 491,572
United Parcel Servic UBOC 500,000 2.500 06/22/2018 484,780 04/01/2023 1,551 3.191 486,440 911312BK1 26627 486,453
Nike Inc UBOC 500,000 2.250 05/00/2018 480,350 05/01/2023 1,581 3.108 483,755 654106AC7 26597 482,894
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 2,500,000 2.750 05/24/2018 2,500,000 05/24/2023 1,604 3.326 2,500,325 3134GSLU7 26604 2,500,000
Simon Property Group uBoC 500,000 2.750 07/24/2018 484,725 06/01/2023 1,612 3.438 484,520 828807DD6 26631 486,098
Federal Home Loan Mt uBOC 1,000,000 2.700 06/14/2018 1,000,000 06/14/2023 1,625 3316 1,000,260 3134GSNE1 26622 1,000,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 2,000,000 3.000 07/23/2018 1,999,000 06/14/2023 1,625 3.300 2,000,520 3134GSNK7 26629 1,999,090

01/03/2019 1:33 pm



Northern California Power Agency

Page 3

NCPA Treasurer's Report
J NLRTITRM LR ORI PRI AGENG
12/31/2018
SCPA Balancing Account
o Bond*
I Purch Pur Maturity Days to Equiv

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value
Federal Home Loan Mt uBOoC 2,600,000 2.750 08/17/2018 2,603,900 06/15/2023 1,626 3.467 2,608,970 3134GSMY8 26653 2,603,599
Pfizer Inc uBCC 500,000 3.000 06/22/2018 496,550 06/15/2023 1,628 3.150 497,865 717081DH3 26626 496,914
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 2,500,000 3.050 08/28/2018 2,501,250 08/28/2023 1,700 3.039 2,508,125 3134GSUZ6 26654 2,501,165
Federal Home Loan Mt uBOC 2,000,000 3.000 09/26/2018 1,999,200 09/26/2023 1,729 3.587 2,001,620 3134GSWLS 26678 1,999,242
Federal Home Loan Ba uUBOC 2,000,000 3.100 12/28/2018 2,000,000 12/28/2023 1,822 3.100 2,007,700 3130AFKR7 26736 2,000,000

Fund Total and Average $ 27,562,219 2.754 $ 27,371,450 1394 3.152 $ 27,413,749 $ 27,395,266
General Operating Reserve
Local Agency Investm LAIF 15,933,906 2.157 07/01/2013 15,933,906 1 2157 15,933,906 SYS70000 70002 15,933,906
California Asset Mgm CMP 5,019,871 2550 12/14/2018 5,019,871 1 2.580 5,019,871 SYS70071 70071 5,019,871
Union Bank of Califo uBOC 1,709,268 0.002 07/01/2013 1,709,268 1 0.002 1,709,268 SYS70019 70019 1,709,268
US Bank UsB 0 0.000 07/01/2013 0 1 0.000 0 SYS70051 70051 0
Federal National Mtg UBOC 4,982,000 1.750 08/28/2015 5,047,364 11/26/2019 329 1.430 4,941,895 3135G0ZY2 26246 4,995,903
Federal Farm Credit UBOC 4,285,000 1.440 07/20/2016 4,280,715 01/19/2021 749 1.463 4,190,644 3133EGMP7 26356 4,283,047
Federal Home Loan Ba UBOC 14,720,000 1.400 07/19/2016 11,714,140 01/19/2021 749 1.411 11,441,767 3130A8P80 26354 11,717,330
Federal National Mtg UBOC 5,162,000 1.625 05/25/2016 5,162,000 05/25/2021 875 1.625 5,034,757 3136G3NLS 26332 5,162,000
Federal National Mtg UBOC 1,300,000 1.500 08/30/2016 1,300,000 05/28/2021 878 1.500 1,264,783 3136G33W3 26368 1,300,000
Federal Farm Credit uBoC 10,629,000 1.690 06/02/2016 10,628,000 06/02/2021 883 1.690 10,411,743 3133EGDHS 26335 10,629,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UuBOC 467,000 2.200 01/30/2017 467,000 01/26/2022 1,121 2.200 458,940 3134GAV92 26402 467,000
Microsoft Corp. UBCC 400,000 2.375 04/26/2018 391,480 02/12/2022 1,138 2.972 395,152 594918BA1 26578 393,008
TD Ameritrade uUBOC 500,000 2.950 04/26/2018 492,950 04/01/2022 1,186 3.335 494,635 87236YAES 26582 494171
Apple Inc. uUBGCC 4,025,452 2.300 02/01/2018 4,020,538 05/11/2022 1.226 2.329 3,928,569 037833CQ1 26524 4,021,591
Federal Home Loan Ba UBOC 3,575,000 2125 08/28/2017 3,634,560 06/10/2022 1,256 1.760 3,514,440 313379069 26467 3,617,854
PepsiCo Inc. uBOC 500,000 3.100 04/26/2018 500,310 07/17/2022 1,293 3.083 500,205 713448CX4 26580 500,260
Visa Inc. UBOC 500,000 2.800 04/26/2018 492,600 12/14/2022 1,443 3.145 493,725 92826CAC6 26584 493,687
Bank of NY Mellon Co uBoC 500,000 2.950 04/26/2018 491,790 01/29/2023 1,489 3.325 492,130 0B406RAE7 26575 492,964
Oracle Corp. uBOC 500,000 2625 04/26/2018 487,350 02/15/2023 1,506 3.195 487,655 68389XBRS 26579 489,143
Praxair Inc usoC 500,000 2.700 04/26/2018 488,350 02/21/2023 1,512 3.225 490,055 T74005PBFO 26581 489,995
Berkshire Hathaway | UBOC 500,000 2750 04/26/2018 488,920 03/15/2023 1,534 3.243 490,840 084670BR8 26576 490,463
United Parcel Servic UBOC 500,000 2.500 04/26/2018 483,135 04/01/2023 1,561 3245 486,440 911312BK1 26583 485,463
Federal Farm Credit UBOC 1,000,000 3.340 11/21/12018 1,000,000 10/04/2023 1,737 3.339 1,004,480 3133EJE39 26715 1,000,000

Fund Total and Average $ 74,208,497 1.888 $ 74,235,247 627 1.879 $ 73,185,890 $ 74,185,924

GRAND TOTALS: $ 168,848,542 2.033 $ 168,309,309 764 2.161 $ 166,965,192, $ 168,283,135

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 366 day year to p a basis for p b all types.
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method.

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 12/31/2018

01/03/2019 1:33 pm



Investment #26332 FNMA Callable quarterly

Investment #26335 FFCB Callable anytime
Investment #26354 FHLB Callable anytime
Investment #26355 FHLB Callable anytime
Investment #26356 FFCB Callable anytime

Investment #26368 FNMA Callable quarterly
Investment #26385 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26402 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26403 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26564 FHLMC Callable until 3/29/19
Investment #26629 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26646 usB Callable on 6/23/2023
Investment #26653 FHLMC Callable on 6/15/2020
Investment #26678 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26714 FFCB Callable on 10/4/2019
Investment #26715 FFCB Callable on 10/4/2019
Investment #26728 FHLMC Callable quarterly
investment #26729 FHLMC Callable quarterly starting 6/18/2019
investment #26736 FHLB Callable on 12/28/2020



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Page 1

12/31/2018
Geothermal Debt Service
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv

Issuer Trustee / Custodi Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yietd Market Value  CUSIP In: Carrying Value
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 236,000 2.050 07/31/2018 233,917 01/02/2019 1 2.096 235,536 313384ABSA 26633 235,987
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 235,000 2125 08/31/2018 233,280 01/02/2019 1 2170 234,538 313384AB5A 26655 234,986
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 236,000 2220 10/17/2018 234,879 01/02/2019 1 2.261 235,536 313384ABSA 26680 235,985
Federal National Mtg USBT 234,000 2220 10/29/2018 233,062 01/02/2019 1 2.259 234,000 313588AB1A 26702 233,986

Fund Total and Average $ 941,000 2.154 $ 935,138 1 2.197 $ 939,610 $ 940,944
Geo 2012A Debt Service
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 124,000 2.050 07/31/2018 122,906 01/02/2019 1 2.096 123,756 313384AB5A 26634 123,993
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 124,000 2125 08/31/2018 123,092 01/02/2019 1 2.170 123,756 313384AB5A 26656 123,993
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 123,000 2220 10/17/2018 122,416 01/02/2019 1 2.261 122,758 313384AB5SA 26681 122,992
Federal National Mtg USBT 123,000 2.220 10/29/2018 122,507 01/02/2019 1 2.259 123,000 313588AB1A 26703 122,992

Fund Total and Average $ 494,000 2153 $ 490,921 1 2.197 $ 493,270 $ 493,970
Geo 2016A Debt Service
Federal National Mtg USBT 54,000 2220 10/29/2018 53,784 01/02/2019 1 2.259 54,000 313588AB1A 26704 £3,997

Fund Total and Average $ 54,000 2220 $ 53,784 1 2.260 $ 54,000 $ 53,997
Geothermal Special Reserve
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 0 0.002 07/01/2013 0 1 0.002 0 SYS70015 70015 0
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,500,000 3.000 12/18/2018 1,500,000 12/18/2020 717 3.000 1,601,545 3134GSF34 26730 1,500,000

Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 3.000 $ 1,500,000 717 3.000 $ 1,501,545 $ 1,500,000
Geo Decommissioning Reserve
Local Agency Investm LAIF 202,893 2.157 07/01/12013 202,893 1 2.157 202,893 SYS70027 70027 202,893
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 1,659 0.002 07/01/2013 1,659 1 0.002 1,658 SYS70034 70034 1,659
American Honda Finan uUBOC 500,000 2.650 11/30/2018 493,500 02/12/2021 773 3.265 494,370 02665WCD1 26726 493,754
Toyota Motor Credit UBOC 500,000 2.950 11/30/2018 496,300 04/13/2021 833 3.276 500,076 89236TEUS 26727 496,434
Federal National Mtg UBOC 2,000,000 1.500 08/30/2016 2,000,000 05/28/2021 878 1.500 1,945,820 3136G33W3 26369 2,000,000
Ally Bank UBCC 250,000 3.000 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2021 972 3.002 248,983 02007GEQ2A 30312 250,000
PNC Bank NA UBOC 750,000 2.550 03/15/2018 735,450 12/09/2021 1,073 3.103 731,693 69353REY0D 26553 738,546
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,000,000 3.150 12/20/2018 1,000,000 12/20/2021 1,084 3.150 1,001,180 3134GSH40 26735 1,000,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 941,000 2.200 01/30/2017 941,000 01/26/2022 1121 2.200 924,758 3134GAV92 26404 941,000
Apple Inc. uBOC 861,211 2.300 11/29/2017 860,117 05/11/2022 1,226 2.329 840,482 037833CQ1 26499 860,385
Wells Fargo Bank UBOC 250,000 3.150 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2022 1,337 3.154 246,693 949763TLOA 30311 250,000

01/03/2019 1:33 pm



Page 2
Northern California Power Agency

/ 'NCPA Treasurer's Report
BT GEPY TR AN ES AR
12/31/2018
Geo Decommissioning Reserve
L Bond*
Interest P F Maturity ~ Daysto Equiv

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP 1 # Carrying Value
Great North Bank UBOC 250,000 3.050 08/31/2018 250,000  08/31/2022 1,338 3.051 247,245 39103QAF3A 30310 250,000
Discover Bank uBoC 250,000 3.150 09/06/2018 250,000  09/06/2022 1,344 3.152 248,073 254673TMBA 30313 250,000
Walt Disney Company/ uBoC 750,000 2350  03/15/2018 728,580  12/01/2022 1,430 3.004 728,408 25468PCW4 26551 732,192
John Deere Capital C UBOC 750,000 2.800 03/15/2018 739,748 01/27/12023 1,487 3.104 734,460 24422ERTS 26550 741,421
Bank of NY Mellon Co UBOC 750,000 2.950 03/15/2018 740,610 01/29/2023 1,489 3.229 738,195 0B406RAE7 26549 742,141
IBM Credit LLC UBOC 500,000 3.000 03/15/2018 496,820 02/06/2023 1,497 3.140 490,420 44932HAHE 26548 497,336
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 2,000,000 2.700 06/14/2018 2,000,000 06/14/2023 1,625 3.316 2,000,520 3134GSNE1 26623 2,000,000
Enerbank USA uBOC 250,000 3.200 08/30/2018 250,000 08/30/2023 1,702 3.203 246,365 29278TCP3A 30309 250,000
Citibank NA UBOC 250,000 3.300 09/07/2018 250,000 09/07/2023 1,710 3.301 247,413 17312Q834A 30314 250,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 2,000,000 3.000 09/26/2018 1,999,200 09/26/2023 1,729 3.587 2,001,620 3134GSWLS 26679 1,999,242
Federal Farm Credit uBoC 1,000,000 3.340 11/21/2018 1,000,000 10/04/2023 1,737 3.339 1,004,480 3133EJE39 26716 1,000,000
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,000,000 3.500 12/18/2018 1,000,000 12/18/2023 1,812 3.500 1,001,660 3134GSF26 26732 1,000,000
Federal Farm Credit UBOC 2,000,000 3.450 07/27/12018 1,999,300 07/23/2025 2,395 3.455 2,022,520 3133EJUT4 26644 1,999,343

Fund Total and Average $ 19,006,763 2777 $ 18,935,177 1461 3.004 $ 18,849,885 $ 18,946,346
GEO Debt Service Reserve Acct
U.S. Treasury USB 56,000 1.823 02/27/2018 55,041 01/31/2019 30 1.872 55,897 912796PP8 26536 55,915
Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 907,000 1.750 06/02/2015 920,886 05/30/2019 149 1.354 904,125 3137EADG1 26228 908,439
U.S. Treasury uUsB 40,000 2273 10/17/2018 39,379 06/20/2019 170 2333 39,541 912796QM4 26692 39,571
Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 2,515,000 1.250 02/27/2015 2,483,839 10/02/2019 274 1.530 2,489,020 3137EADMS 26197 2,509,898

Fund Total and Average $ 3,518,000 1.400 $ 3,499,146 237 1.499 $ 3,488,583 $ 3,513,823
Geo 2012A DSR Account
U.S. Treasury USB 12,000 2.3%4 10/17/2018 11,714 10/10/2019 282 2472 11,764 912796RF8 26693 11,775
Federal National Mtg USBT 1,517,000 1.625 05/25/2016 1,517,000 05/25/2021 875 1.625 1,479,606 3136G3NLS 26333 1,517,000

Fund Total and Average $ 1,529,000 1.631 $ 1,528,714 870 1.632 $ 1,491,370 $ 1,528,775

GRAND TOTALS: $ 27,042,763 2511 $ 26,942,879 1146 2.686 $  26,818,263. $ 26,977,855

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types.

Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method.

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 12/31/2018
Investment #26333 FNMA Callable quarterly
Investment #26369 FNMA Callable quarterly
Investment #26404 FHLMC Callable quarterly

Investment #26644 FFCB Callable anytime starting 7/23/2021
Investment #26679 FHLMC Callable quarterly
Investment #26716 FFCB Callable on 10/4/2019

Investment #26730 FHLMC Callable quarterly starting 6/18/2019
Investment #26732 FHLMC Callable quarterly starting 6/18/2019
Investment #26735 FHLMC Callable quarterly starting 6/20/2019

01/03/2019 1:33 pm



/ Page 1
Northern California Power Agency

) Z.A.u—...-> Treasurer’'s Report

WTST 4R L TP RS AR

12/31/2018
Cap Facilities Debt Service
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity ~ Daysto Equiv
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 479,000 2.335 11/27/2018 476,981 01/3112018 30 2377 478,080 313384BG3A 26725 478,068
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 480,000 2.290 10/17/2018 476,733 02/01/2019 31 2337 479,040 313384BH1 26686 479,053
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 479,000 2280 10/29/2018 476,118 02/01/2019 31 2325 478,042 313384BH1 26708 478,060
Federal Home Loan Mt USBT 480,000 2.160 08/31/2018 475,565 02/01/2019 31 2210 479,040 313396BH5A 26661 479,107
Fund Total and Average $ 1,918,000 2.266 $ 1,905,397 31 2.313 $ 1,914,202 $ 1,914,288
Cap. Fac. Debt Svc Reserve
U.S. Treasury usB 36,000 2.397 10/17/2018 35,142 10/10/2019 282 2.475 35,292 912796RF8 26697 35,324
Federal National Mtg usB 71,000 1.530 07/28/2016 71,000 07/28/2021 939 1.630 68,695 3136G3S97 26358 71,000
Federal Home Loan Mt usB 1,443,000 2.375 02/13/2012 1,447,430 01/13/2022 1,108 2.340 1,437,257 3137EADB2 25845 1,444,355
Fund Total and Average $ 1,550,000 2.337 $ 1,553,572 1081 2.306 $ 1,541,244 $ 1,550,679
GRAND TOTALS: $ 3,468,000 2.298 $ 3,458,969 501 2.310 $  3,455.446. $ 3,464,967

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types.
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method.

Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 12/31/2018
Investment #26358 FNMA Callable quarterly

01/03/2019 1:34 pm



Northern California Power Agency

Page 1

NCPA Treasurer's Report
BRI SAL TR PR R R N
12/31/2018
Capital Dev. Reserve Hydro
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity ~ Daysto Equiv

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value
Local Agency Investm LAIF 8,117,956 2157 07/01/2013 8,117,956 1 2.157 8,117,956 SYS70028 70028 8,117,956
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 60,325 0002  07/01/2013 60,325 1 0.002 60,325 SYS70031 70031 60,325
Federal National Mtg UBOC 2,000,000 1.350  06/30/2016 2,000,000 123012019 363 1.350 1,973,460 3136G3VH5 26340 2,000,000
Branch Banking & Tru UBOC 500,000 2625  06/13/2018 488,420  01/15/2022 1,110 3.314 490,695 07330NAQS 26618 490,195
Exxon Mobil Corporat UBOC 500,000 2397  06/13/2018 490,350  03/06/2022 1,160 2.946 490,690 30231GAJ1 26621 491,773
US Bank uBOC 550,000 3000  08/10/2018 546607  03/15/2022 1,169 3.182 546,552 91159HHC7 26651 546,976
Public Storage UBOC 500,000 2370  03/14/2018 485,770  09/15/2022 1,353 3.051 482,900 74460DAB5 26546 488,289
Visa Inc. UBOC 500,000 2.800  03/14/2018 494,470 12/14/2022 1,443 3.051 493,725 92826CAC6 26547 495,398
Toyota Motor Credit uBOC 500,000 2700  06/13/2018 489,100 01/11/2023 1,471 3.215 485,660 89236TELS 26619 490,410
Orace Corp. UBOC 500,000 2625  03/14/2018 488715  02/15/2023 1,506 3.121 487,655 68389XBR5 26545 490,544
Boeing Co. uBoC 500,000 25800  03/14/2018 496,070 03/01/2023 1,520 2.971 491,315 097023BW4 26544 496,701
United Parcel Servic UBOC 500,000 2500  06/13/2018 484,900  04/01/2023 1,551 3.182 485,440 911312BK1 26620 486,630
Colgate-Palmolive Co UBOC 550,000 2100  08/09/2018 528,660  05/01/2023 1,581 2.985 529,947 19416QECO 26652 530,440
Federal Home Loan Ba UBOC 1,150,000 3.050  08/08/2018 1,145,113 06/13/2023 1,624 3.144 1,150,529 3130AEEJ5 26649 1,145,513
Federal Home Loan Mt usoc 1,000,000 3250  08/08/2018 1,000,000  06/28/2023 1,639 3.249 1,000,730 3134GSNY7 26650 1,000,000
Federal Home Loan Ba uBoC 1,500,000 3250  10/19/2018 1,500,000  10/19/2023 1,762 3.250 1,510,725 3130AEYR5 26701 1,500,000

Fund Total and Average $ 18,928,281 2.380 $ 18,816,456 733 2.521 $ 18,799,304 $ 18,831,150
Hydro Initial Facilities
Federal Farm Credit UsB 2,437,000 1250  02/02/2016 2,450,501  01/22/2019 21 1.060 2,435,635 3133EFVQ7 26300 2,437,265
Federal Home Loan Ba USB 1,683,000 2380  11/27/2018 1,669,648  03/27/2019 85 2.432 1,673,491 313384DP1 26718 1,673,542

Fund Total and Average $ 4,120,000 1.710 $ 4,120,149 47 1.619 $ 4,109,126 $ 4,110,807
Hydro Debt Service
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,803,000 2.050  07/31/2018 1,787,086  01/02/2019 1 2.096 1,799,454 313384ABSA 26636 1,802,897
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,802,000 2125  08/31/2018 1,788,810  01/02/2019 1 2170 1,798,455 313384AB5SA 26658 1,801,894
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,796,000 2220  10/17/2018 1,787,472 01/02/2019 1 2.261 1,792,467 313384ABSA 26683 1,795,889
Federal National Mtg USBT 1,795,000 2220  10/29/2018 1,787,805  01/02/2019 1 2.259 1,795,000 313588AB1A 26705 1,794,889

Fund Total and Average $ 7,196,000 2.154 $ 7,151,173 1 2.197 $ 7,185,376 $ 7,195,569
Hydro 2018A Debt Service
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,036,000 2050  07/31/2018 1,026,856  01/02/2019 1 2.09 1,033,962 313384ABSA 26637 1,035,941
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,035,000 2125  08/31/2018 1,027,424 01/02/2019 1 2.170 1,032,964 313384AB5A 26659 1,034,939
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 1,032,000 2220  10/17/2018 1,027,100  01/02/2019 1 2.261 1,029,970 313384ABSA 26684 1,031,936
Federal National Mtg USBT 1,031,000 2220 10/29/2018 1,026,867  01/02/2019 1 2.259 1,031,000 313588AB1A 26706 1,030,936

01/03/2012 1:34 pm



Northern California Power Agency

Page 2

CPA Treasurer's Report
BRERTRGEN JAL RN PR VPR
12/31/2018
Hydro 2018A Debt Service
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity ~ Daysto Equiv
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP ! Carrying Value
Fund Total and Average $ 4,134,000 2.154 $ 4,108,247 1 2197 $ 4,127,896 $ 4,133,752
Hydro 2018B Debt Service
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 115,000 2.050 07/31/2018 113,985 01/02/2019 1 2.096 114,774 313384ABSA 26638 114,993
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 123,000 2125 08/31/2018 122,100 01/02/2019 1 2.170 122,758 313384AB5SA 26660 122,993
Federal Home Loan Ba USBT 115,000 2220 10/17/2018 114,454 01/02/2019 1 2.261 114,774 313384AB5SA 26685 114,993
Federal National Mtg USBT 114,000 2.220 10/29/2018 113,543 01/02/2019 1 2.259 114,000 313588AB1A 26707 113,993
Fund Total and Average $ 467,000 2153 $ 464,082 1 2.197 $ 466,306 $ 466,972
Hydro Debt Service Resrv 2010A
U.S. Treasury USB 52,000 1.625 02/27/2018 51,780 06/30/2019 180 1.945 51,764 912828WS5 26537 51,919
Federal Home Loan Ba USB 135,000 4.375  07/28/2017 142,601 07/01/2019 181 1.400 136,166 3133XU3G6 26451 136,974
Federal Home Loan Ba use 103,000 2.440 10/17/2018 101,206 07/01/2019 181 2.508 101,723 313384HP7A 26694 101,736
Federal Farm Credit uss 5,528,000 1.750 08/28/2015 5,546,187 08/04/2020 581 1.680 5,456,523 3133EESZ9 26243 5,533,868
Fund Total and Average $ 5,818,000 1.823 $ 5841774 561 1.690 $ 5,746,178 $ 5,824,497
Hydro 2012A Rebate Account
U.S. Treasury usB 19,000 2225 10/17/2018 18,810 0372812019 86 2.278 18,894 912796PX1 26695 18,899
Federal Home Loan Mt usBe 689,000 1.875 04/28/2017 691,391 08/09/2021 951 1.790 677,673 3134G93A3 26432 690,455
Fund Total and Average $ 708,000 1.884 $ 710,201 928 1.803 $ 696,567 $ 709,354
Hydro Special Reserve
Local Agency Investm LAIF 0 0.377 07/01/2013 0 1 0.377 0 SYS70000 70003 0
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 0 0.002 07/01/2013 0 1 0.002 0 S8SYS70016 70016 0
Federal Home Loan Mt UBOC 1,500,000 3.000 12/18/2018 1,500,000 12/18/2020 717 3.000 1,501,545 3134GSF34 26731 1,500,000
Fund Total and Average $ 1,500,000 3.000 $ 1,500,000 717 3.000 $ 1,501,545 $ 1,500,000
Hydro 2012 Cost of Issuance
US Bank usB 0 0.040 07/01/2013 0 1 0.040 0 SYS79061 79061 [}
Fund Total and Average 3$ 0 - $ 0 i s P $ 0 $ 0
Hydro 2012 DSRA
U.S. Treasury UsB 51,000 2225 10/17/2018 50,489 03/28/2019 86 2.278 50,714 912796PX1 26696 50,729
Federal Farm Credit usB 100,000 1.750 08/28/2015 100,329 08/04/2020 581 1.680 98,707 3133EE5Z9 26244 100,106
01/03/2018 1:34 pm



Page 3
Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

12/31/2018
Hydro 2012 DSRA
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity Days to Equiv
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value CUSIP investment # Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury USsB 146,000 2.250 02/2712018 145,992 02/15/2021 776 2.251 145,207 9128283X86 26539 145,995
Federal National Mtg USB 94,000 1.530 07/28/2016 94,000 0712812021 939 1.530 90,949 3136G3S97 26359 94,000
Federal Home Loan Mt usB 3,928,000 2375 02/09/2012 3,926,232 01/13/2022 1,108 2.380 3,912,367 3137EADB2 26852 3,927,460
Fund Total and Average $ 4,319,000 2336 $ 4,317,042 1069 2.340 $ 4,297,944 $ 4,318,290
GRAND TOTALS: $ 47,190,281 2204 $ 47,029,124 502 2.246 $ 46,930,242, $ 47,090,391

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types.
Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method.

Current Market Value is based on prices from T /C dian St ts or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 12/31/2018

Investment #26340 FNMA Callable quarterly
Investment #26359 FNMA Callable quarterly

Investment #26649 FHLB Callable on 6/13/2019
Investment #26651 usB Callable on 2/15/2022
Investment #26701 FHLB Callable until 10/19/2020

Investment #26731 FHLMC Callable quarterly starting 6/18/2019

01/03/2019 1:34 pm



Northern California Power Agency

Page 1

SINCPA Treasurer's Report
ML RTUEEN AL SR AR WER (3P0
12/31/2018
LEC GHG Auction Acct
o Bond*
Interest Purch Pur Maturity Days to Equiv
Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value  CUSIP Investment # Carrying Value
Local Agency Investm 73,264 2.157 07/01/2013 73,264 1 2157 73,264 SYS70046 70048 73,264
Fund Total and Average $ 73,264 2157 $ 73,264 1 2.157 $ 73,264 $ 73,264
LEC Issue#1 2010A DS Fund
US Bank Trust USB 4,268,106 0.600 07/01/2013 4,268,108 1 0.600 4,268,106 SYS79003 79003 4,268,106
Fund Total and Average $ 4,268,108 0.600 $ 4,268,106 1 0.600 $ 4,268,106 $ 4,268,106
LEC Issue #1 2010B DS Fund
US Bank Trust usB 754,516 0.600 07/01/2013 754,516 1 0.600 754,516 SYS79004 79004 754,516
Fund Total and Average $ 754,516 0.600 $ 764,616 1 0.600 $ 754,516 $ 754,516
LEC Issue #2 2010A DS Fund
US Bank Trust usB 2,889,323 0.600 07/01/12013 2,889,323 1 0.600 2,889,323 SYS79011 79011 2,889,323
Fund Total and Average $ 2,889,323 0.600 $ 2,889,323 1 0.600 $ 2,889,323 $ 2,889,323
LEC Issue #2 2010B DS Fund
US Bank Trust usB 362,561 0.600 07/01/2013 362,561 1 0.600 362,561 SYS79012 79012 362,561
Fund Total and Average $ 362,561 0.600 $ 362,561 1 0.600 $ 362,561 $ 362,561
LEC Issue #1 2010 DSR Fund
US Bank Trust usBe 81,147 0.600 07/01/2013 81,147 1 0.600 81,147 SYS79005 79005 81,147
U.S. Treasury usB 82,000 2214 10/17/2018 81,041 04/25/2019 114 2271 81,381 912796QC6 26698 81,425
U.S. Treasury usB 85,000 1.625 02/27/2018 84,641 06/30/2019 180 1.945 84,615 912828WS5 26538 84,867
Federal Farm Credit usB 4,360,000 1.660 06/08/2016 4,360,000 05/25/2021 875 1.659 4,268,571 3133EGBZ7 26337 4,360,000
Federal Home Loan Mt uss 150,000 1.125 07/28/2017 146,648 08/12/2021 954 1.699 144,872 3137EAECS 26454 147,830
Federal Home Loan Ba USB 4,100,000 2125 08/2812017 4,168,308 06/10/2022 1,256 1.760 4,030,546 313379Q69 26463 4,149,147
Fund Total and Average $ 8,868,147 1.863 $ 8,921,783 1032 1.708 $ 8,691,132 $ 85904416
LEC Iss#1 2010B BABS Subs Resv
US Bank Trust usB 36,337 0.600 07/01/2013 36,337 1 0.600 36,337 SYS79006 79006 36,337
U.S. Treasury UsB 38,000 1.823 02/27/2018 37,349 01/31/2019 30 1.872 37,930 912796PP8 26534 37,942

01/03/2019 1:35 pm



Northern California Power Agency

Page 2

SINCP Treasurer's Report
g 1 S S0 4 40
12/31/2018
LEC Iss#1 2010B BABS Subs Resv
Bond*
Interest Purchase Purchased Maturity  Daysto Equiv

Issuer Trustee / Custodian Stated Value Rate Date Price Date Maturity Yield Market Value  CUSIP [l Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury UsB 37,000 2214 10/17/2018 36,567 04/25/2019 114 227 36,721 912796QC6 26699 36,740
Federal Home Loan Ba use 2,145,000 3.375 07/28/2017 2,255,146 06/12/2020 528 1.540 2,170,547 313370E38 26455 2,200,499

Fund Total and Average $ 2,256,337 3.287 $ 2,365,399 505 1.542 $ 2,281,535 $ 2,311,518
LEC Issue #2 2010B DSR BABS
US Bank Trust USB 377 0.600 07/01/2013 377 1 0.600 377 SYS79013 79013 377
U.S. Treasury usB 25,000 1.823 02/27/2018 24,572 01/31/2019 30 1.872 24,954 912796PP8 26535 24,962
U.S. Treasury USB 23,000 2214 10/17/2018 22,731 04/25/2019 114 2271 22,826 912796QC6 26700 22,839
Federal Home Loan Ba USB 1,025,000 4375 07/28/2017 1,082,708 07/01/2019 181 1.400 1,033,866 3133XU3G6E 26456 1,039,989

Fund Total and Average $ 1,073,377 4.270 $ 1,130,388 176 1.429 $ 1,082,023 $ 1,088,167
LEC O & M Reserve
Local Agency Investm 1,723,705 2.157 07/01/2013 1,723,705 1 2.157 1,723,705 SYS70047 70047 1,723,705
Union Bank of Califo UBOC 94,640 0.002 07/18/2013 94,640 1 0.002 94,640 SYS70041 70041 94,640
Federal National Mtg UBOC 2,933,000 1.875 08/28/2015 2,998,142 02/19/2019 49 1.220 M.owo.ﬂ,_n‘ 3135G0ZA4 26248 2,935,499
Federal Home Loan Ba use 3,615,000 1.540 06/30/2017 3,613,952 06/05/2020 521 1.550 3,564,101 3130ABJQO 26440 3,614,489
Federal National Mtg UBOC 3,000,000 1.300 06/30/2016 3,000,000 06/30/2020 546 1.300 2,943,120 3136G3UJ2 26341 3,000,000

Fund Total and Average $ 11,366,345 1.644 $ 11,430,439 323 1.478 $ 11,256,278 $ 11,368,333

GRAND TOTALS: $ 31,901,976 1.644 $ 32,195,779 444 1.319 $ 31,658,738. $ 32,020,204

*Bond Equivalent Yield to Maturity is shown based on a 365 day year to provide a basis for comparison between all types.

Investments with less than 6 months to maturity use an approximate method, all others use an exact method.
Current Market Value is based on prices from Trustee/ Custodian Statements or bid prices from the Wall Street Journal as of 12/31/2018

Investment #26337 FFCB Callable anytime

01/03/2019

1:35 pm



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT:

Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

4

If other, please specify

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth &:,)\;Q\_METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [] City of Ukiah [J
San F'a“"i;‘;;iﬁaTV Are2 O Cityof PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [l City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

SR: 115:19



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of 3 Dell Servers (hard drives removed and
sent to headquarters for destruction), 4 KWh meters, 2 GE Static Breaker Back-up Relays and
empty meter boxes, 3 power supplies, 1 AC power supply for CCTV camera, 3 Avigllon
Encoders for CCTV system, and 1 MDAR Digital Distance Relay. All items have been deemed
to have no value and/or obsolete and have been disposed.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy the above listed items have been disposed of due to being
obsolete and having no value to the Agency.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct fiscal impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California

Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submltted

mOWARD

General Manager

Attachments: Declarations of Surplus
Receipt of disposal

SR: xxx:19



A

/ ’
/ HORYHERR CALIFORNIA POWER ABENCY

‘Date: 112118
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS
SUPPLIES, MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT
] | [ DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED VALUE NCPA Property
Q1Y | umr {including All Applicable COND** e "t ; or Project # SiTE
R Model #’s, LCNs & ViNs) ymNIT TOTAL B LOCATION

I 3 U Dell Servers - hard drives removed S 0.00 Hydro Murphys

2 (hard drives will be sent to HQ 1o be shredded)

3 — S I

i ] o [

|
5. T ' | -
S } S
6. | i
7.“][ : - l
| . I o S -

8 ¢ i

JUSTIFICATION FOR SURPLUS/DISPOSAL:
Servers were replaced by newer equipment needed to support upgraded physical security system.
A
T ~ { g RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION:
. i ; Pz YN
PREPARED Bv:%) rrmna it Yijin A e NEGOTIATED (Privatey SALE _
v / ) PUBLICSALE: _  _SEALEDBIDS _ _ AUCTION
? i ORG. DISPOSAL: SCRAP/RECYCLE VALUE _ v/ _ NO VALUE - TRASH/JUNK
2 >/ . -
i IR &

APPROVED BY:

ZASST. GEN. MANAGER)

AUTHORIZATION f f i 1

TO PROCEED: ___ K I~ (

DATE: f{/@{,/{&

YGENFR 1T MANAGER)

DISPOSITION JUSTIFICATION:

Recurremend recycling as eWaste.

** CONDITION: EXCELLENT (B3, GOOD (G), AVERAGE (A), POOR (P), SCRAP (S)

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROLLER

ATTACHMENT 1



477 Bret Harte Drive

e Loy Murphys, CA 95247
INCPA

., B phone  (209) 728-1387
/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (209) 726-1391

web www.ncpa.com

Disposal of Surplus Property
Date: l’l‘?ﬂ -l 8

This notice confirms that Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following
items:

e Dell Servers

At the following place:

Rock Creek Landfill + Qecui/cfé’,

Delivery Acknowledgment:

; //"{/.f
Delivered By~ c@(’/(/vwwf’

Printed Name: Steven f%rﬁl Sh
Date: /Z/Z,:Zf///g




/NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date; 1111418
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS
SUPPLIES, MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT
| DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED VALUE NCPA Property
QTY | um* {Including All Appticable COND* ——————— i 2 or Project # SITE
Model #°s, LCNs & VINs) UNIT TOTAL LOCATION
L 4 ea kWh Meter A J Hydro Murphys
- N S -

2 2 ea GE Static Breaker Backup Relays F62BF A Hydro Murphys

3 2 ea Empty meter boxes Hydro Murphys

4.
N 4 e . o -

5 : I

\ 1
6 \Y i
7. | B -
[\
' ! s =S
JUSTIFICATION FOR SURPLUS/DISFOSAL: h o
Units have been upgraded and are no longer needed on the project.
. } RECOMMENDED DISPOSITY
PREPARED BY: AT A s S NEGOTIATED (Priuge) SALE
¢ PUBLIC SALK SEALED BIDS ﬂ AU
ORG. 850 DISPOSAL: SCRAPRECYCLE VALUE N() VALUE - TRASH/AJUNK

APPROVED Bi’ _;/ 4 o ¥ ., - CODE: DISPOSITION JUSTIFICATION:

(ASST. GEN. MANAGER)

ALTHOR!Z»\T!ON
TO PROCEED:

(GENE]IAL MANAGER}

pATE:_ (1 /b%/*g

Recommend offering to other utilities and disposal if thera are no interested parties.

** CONDITION: EXCELLENT (E), GOOD (G}, AVERAGE (A), POOR (P), SCRAP (8]

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROULER

ATTACHMENT



477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys, CA 95247

9 : N C P A phore  (209) 728-1387

/ HORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (209) 728-1391

web www.nepa.com

Disposal of Surplus Property
Date: 122718

This notice confirms that Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following
items:

¢ kKWh Meters (4)
¢ GE Static Breaker Backup Relays (2)
¢ Empty meter boxes (2)

At the following place:

{2%}2 creelp /&mc@’/ / o @575é,_,

Delivery Acknowledgment:

]

[ 7

f F /
Delivcrcwygg A= #J{'/

/

Printed Name: S/avei Po}ﬂz ,S)q_ .

Date: IZ?-/ 2 ?//6
/




L

NORTHEAN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENLY Date: 11114118
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS
SUPPLIES, MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT

DESCRIPTION | ESTIMATED VALUE NCPA Property
QTY | UM* (Including All Applicable. COND** | s e or Project # SITE
Model #'s, LCNs & VINs) ) UNIT  TOTAL | LoCATION
I 3 ea Power Supplies P ea * 0.00 Hydro Murphys
z 1 ea RLH AC Power Supply for CCTV camera P ea 0.00 ! Hydro Murphys:
3 3 ea Avigilon Encoders 4-port for CCTV system E ea 0.00 Hydro Murphys:
Tﬁ S I '} =
. ‘
Ay . . ST S T e e I
|
' - __ _ S L i

7. T e e e e e b — — - —

|
[ i R

N N S D B RU————

JUSTIFICATION FOR SURPLUS/DISPOSAL:
Units have been upgraded. These units-are no longer compatible with the upgraded hardware: instalied.

T . ' »~ | RECOMMENDED DISPOSITI
PREPARED BY: - twmmencl 11 /itt1 A Npmenes NEGOTIATED (Piste) SALE
p PUBLIC SAL SEALED BIDS AUFTZION
}, / ORG. S50 DBISPOSAL: SCRAP/RECYCLE VALUE NO VALUE - TRASH/JUNK
APPROVED BY{. Ao T2 CopE: DISPOSTTION JUSTIFICATION:
ﬂASST GEN. MANA GER)
$g1;}§(())lél!:z€g‘mv ‘%:\_\ oatgs (1 /2\(0 /, These units no longer have value and its recommended they be junked.

\ (GENEk AL MANAGFR)
** CONDITION: EXCELLENT (), GOOD (G|, AVERAGE (A). POOR (P), SCRAP (S)

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROLLER'

ATTACHMENT 1



477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys, CA 95247

§ EN C PA phone  (209) 728-1387

NORTHERN CALIFORMIA POWER AGENCY fax (209) 728-1391

web www.nepa.com

Disposal of Surplus Property

Date: fZ//Z?{'/ o
This notice confirms that Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following

items:

* Power Supplies
o RILH AC Power Supply
» Avigilon Encoders

At the following place:

Rock. Creek. Landfill + Recycle
Delivery Acknowledgment:
/ 7
Delivered By: &/ pear A2
PSR - ‘//’5/ / )
Printed Name: %ﬁmﬂ Wc’;y// ¢

Date: [ Z,’%« Z//(é’




BRI, RuEdes
3 p

NORTHERN EALIFOANIA POWER ABENCY

Date:  11/14i18
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS
SUPPLIES, MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT
DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED VALUE NCPA Property
QTY | UM* (Including All Applicable ‘COND** e or Project # SITE
R _ Model #'s, LCNs & VINs) L _UNIT TOTAL o LOCATION,
= 1 ea MDAR Digital Distance Relay A Hydro Murphys
3 . _— SSees. S -
{ 3-_ 1 ) )
3 / \
4, /
T , \ R e g - .
ru ) e _i = B
2 A e | | -
‘ \ _— | o
= . ‘

Uriit has been upgraded and is no longer used on the Hydro project.

\

7 y / /Vﬁb- RECOMMENDED DISPOSITIQN:
PREPARED BY: "~ - W/mw«a_ﬁﬂ e : L NEGOTIATED (Pgiuage) SALE

K P PUBLIC SAL | SEALED BIDS AU N

Kie . ORG. 650 DISPOSAL: SCRAP/RECYCLE VALUE _ﬁwemwm-mummwk
APPROVED BY: [ ;/_ P oo £ T CODE: DISPOSITION JUSTIFICATION:

¥ (ASST.GEN. MANAGER)
AUTHORIZATION e .l " s . . .
TO PROCEED: <2 ’ A (Z [ %"‘-}MTE: 7 /2.9’,; / 7% Recommend listing for public sale and/or disposal if there are o interested parties.

P

" (GENERAL MANAGER).

** CONDITION: EXCELLENT (E), GOOD (G), AVERAGE (A}, POOR (P). SCRAP (§)

ORIGINAL TO TREASURER-CONTROLLER

ATTACHMENT 1



477 Bret Harte Drive
Murphys. CA 95247

4 NCP A phone  (209) 728-1387

H F AR ¥
WORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENC fax (209) 728-1391

web WWW.NCPa.com

Disposal of Surplus Property
Date: }2'17“18

This notice confirms that Northern California Power Agency has disposed of the following
items:

e MDAR Digital Distance Relay

At the following place:

Rock Creek. landfillt J?c“a{c/e/

Delivery Acknowledgment:

Delivered Byc-<r~ =7

Printed Name: M{ S/ oo

Date: /Z;/ 25// g




& PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

|5

SUBJECT: Schneider Electric USA, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement
for electrical related services; Applicable to the foliowing projects: All NCPA
Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Assistant General Manager N/A

Department: Combustion Turbines

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

FROM: Ken Speer é,s METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [
San FranciscoBay Area [ City of Palo Alto [
City of Biggs [l City of Redding [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville []
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o O o 0O

SR: 104:19




Schneider Electric USA, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-01 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Schneider Electric USA, Inc. for electrical related
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000.00 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Electrical related services are required from time to time related to project support at facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000.00 to be used out
of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has similar agreements in place with 3D
Technical Services, Electrical Maintenance Consultants, Hart High Voltage and Eaton
Corporation and seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services are needed.
Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost
and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 7, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 104:19



Schneider Electric USA, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

SR: 104:19



RESOLUTION 19-01

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SCHNEIDER
ELECTRIC USA, INC.

(reference Staff Report 104:19)

WHEREAS, electrical related services are periodically required at the facilities owned and/or operated
by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Schneider Electric USA, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Schneider
Electric USA, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Schneider Electric USA, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $2,000,000 for electrical related services, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Schneider Electric USA, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at Boston One Campus, 800 Federal Street, Andover, MA
01810 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of ,
2018 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

13

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018



agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT
TO EXCEED TWO MILLION dollars ($2,000,000.00) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

=  Work performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

2.4  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 2 of 25



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1

4.2.2

423

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $5,000,000 per
occurrence/$5,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering commercial General
Liability. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 3 of 25



4.3

4.4

4.5

Professional Liability Insurance. (Required for all Contractors providing
engineering, architectural, design, and similar services requiring special licensing
from the State of California.) Contractor shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Contractor's profession performing work in connection
with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Contractor's errors and omissions. . Such insurance shall be on a “claims-
made” basis, subject to the following conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the
policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of this Agreement; (2) the policy
shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after completion of the Services
and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be provided during this
period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services, coverage is
canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement,
Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five
(5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, provide
evidence of coverage during this period.

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Regquirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, if applicable, including the Agency as an
additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work
performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in amount, or cancellation, of the policies referenced in Section
4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. Not Applicable.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, including the
specific Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the
Work is to be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 4 of 25



4.6

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope Applicable to Work by Design Professionals. Contractor shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against claims asserted by third
parties that arise out of, pertain to or relate injury to persons or tangible personal
or real property, to the extent they arise out of or in connection to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Contractor in its performance of Work
under this Agreement. Contractor shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense
and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or
relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such obligations
to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent
that such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or
willful misconduct of the Agency.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION TO THE CONTRARY, EXCEPT WITH
RESPECT TO THIRD PARTY INDEMNIFICATION CLAIMS OR TO THE
EXTENT BASED ON CONTRACTOR'S GROSS NEGLIGENCE, NEITHER
PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR CONSEQUENTIAL,
INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES (INCLUDING
LOST TIME, PROFITS, REVENUE OR DATA) OF ANY KIND RELATED IN
ANY MANNER WITH THIS CONTRACT. REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF
ACTION, OR THE THEORY OF RECOVERY EVEN IF CONTRACTOR HAS
BEEN APPRISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, THE TOTAL
CUMULATIVE LIABILITY OF CONTRACTOR, ITS SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS OF ANY TIER WITH RESPECT TO THIS CONTRACT OR
ANYTHING DONE IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, WHETHER IN CONTRACT,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 5 of 25



5.3

Section 6.

IN TORT (EXCLUDING CONTRACTOR’S GROSS NEGLIGENCE OR WILFUL
MISCONDUCT OR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS) OR OTHERWISE, SHALL NOT
EXCEED $5,000,000.

Transfer of Title. Not Applicable.
STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 6 of 25



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Neither
Agency nor Contractor may assign this Agreement or any interest therein without
the prior written approval of the other Party. Contractor shall not subcontract any
portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to
the subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D. Not Applicable

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 7 of 25



permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

7.4 Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

7.5 Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

7.6 Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmiess from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 8 of 25



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination, together with the
costs Contractor actually incurs in canceling subcontracts or supply contracts
entered into with respect to the terminated Agreement; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency
any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. Al obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product previously paid for by Agency and prepared
by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 9 of 25



Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder and that have been
paid for by the Agency, shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby
agrees to deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the
Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in
writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-parties to this Agreement any
data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents.

9.2 Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

9.4  Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (¢) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 10 of 25



Section 10.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 11 of 25



10.2

10.3

Section 11.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

1.1

11.2

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law

- or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in

design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 12 of 256



1.3

Section 12.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

12.1

12.2

12.3

124

12.5

12.6

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 13 of 25



12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

131

13.2

13.3

134

13.5

13.6

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern Califomnia Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 14 of 25



in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Attention: Ed Stadelman

6611 Preston Avenue, Suite A

Livermore, CA 94551
Edwin.Stadelman@schneider-electric.com (preferred method)
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101

Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 15 of 25



13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13114 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101

Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 16 of 25



13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA, INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, EDWIN STADELMAN,

General Manager Director West Region — US Service Sales
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 17 of 25



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Schneider Electric USA, Inc. (“Contractor”) shall provide electrical services as requested by the
Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or SCPPA members. Design
and engineering services under this Agreement may be performed by an affiliate entity such that
the affiliated entity is duly Icensed to perform engineering in the jurisdicaiton where the srvices
are offered and the affiliated entity is specifically identified on the Purchase Order.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Engineering Services
* Studies — Arc Flash, Short Circuit and Coordination
* Solutions for OSHA and NFPA 70E Compliance, including Arc Flash Mitigation
Solutions
* Power System Design and Upgrades
* Power System Assessment Services
* Power System Analytical Studies

New Equipment Services

* Start-Up and Commissioning
* Spare Parts
* Extended Warranty
» Advantage Service Plans — Multi Year Service Plans
* Engineering Analysis

» Time-current Coordination Analysis

» Short Circuit Analysis

» Arc Flash Analysis
* Training Services

Maintenance and Testing Services
* Preventive Maintenance and Testing
* Predictive Maintenance Solutions — Design and Installation
» Infrared Windows
» Wireless Temperature Monitoring System (WTMS)
» Optical Arc Flash Mitigation
» Partial Discharge Monitoring
* Advantage Service Plans
* Additional Services
» Circuit Breaker Testing
» D.C. High Potential Testing
» Grounding System Testing
» Relay and Metering Testing and Calibration
» Rotating Equipment
» Variable Frequency Drive and Soft-start Work

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 18 of 25



» UPS and Battery Maintenance

Modernization and Upgrade Solutions
* Switchgear Modernization Solutions
* Motor Control Center Upgrades
* Additional Services

On-demand and Emergency Services
- Rapid response - 24/7
- Temporary Generator Connection
- Emergency Action Plan
- In case of emergency, call: 844-362-6387

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 19 of 25



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 20 of 25



Class or Title Straight Overtime Premium Hourly —~Emergency

In-shop Technician or Senior Technician $140 $210 $280 2X Applicable Rate

Field Service Representative $205 8305 $410 2X Applicable Rate

Project Manager, Power System Engineer, £240 $360 5480 2X Applicable Rate

Or Application Engineer

Power Consultant or Principal Engineer 8270 5400 $540 2X Applicable Rate
Work Classifications

Following are examples of work performed by Class/Title (including, but not limited to):
« In-shop Technician {or Senior Technician): C-5 Breaker Reconditioning

«  Field Service Engineer/Representative: Equipment Startup, Breaker Replacements, Equipment
Reconditioning, Testing

«  Project Manager/Power System Engineer/Application Engineer: System Studies, Arc Flash Analysis,
Electrical System Design, Project Management

s Power Gonsultant or Principal Engineer. Large/Complex Project System Design
Rates

Hourly rates apply to travel time, work time and any stand-by time. Travel time is calculated starting at the
departure from the service engineer’s location or factory to and from the job.

» All Services’ rates are quoted in U.S. dollars.
+ Rates are not valid unless accompanied by a formal quotation.
+ There is a $500 minimum charge for all equipment orders.

+ The minimum billing for services performed on a single order will be eight (8) hours charged
at the applicable rate

» Schneider Electric Services reserves the right to apply cancellation charges for cancelled services,
including time and expenses incurred at the applicable rates for the scheduled service.
Cancellation charges shall include time and expenses incurred at applicable rates, charges incurred from
third parties as a result of such termination, and equipment re-stocking charges equal to Schneider Electric
usual and customary restocking charges to its distributors. A $1,000 minimum charge will apply to any
services cancelled within 48 hours of the date service was scheduled to commence.

Straight Time Rates — Any 8-hour period between the hours of 06:00 and 18:00 local time, Monday-Friday.

‘ — Work, travel and/or stand-by rates in excess of 8 hours but not exceeding 12 hours outside the
normal (straight time) working hours {holidays excluded).

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 21 of 25



— Work, travel, andfor stand-by on Sundays and holidays and all time in excess of 12 hours on
other days until there is an 8-hour break in the work schedule.

Emergency Rates — Two times (2X) any applicable rate. Applies to all unscheduled work* or work done under
unusual circumstances causing Schneider Electric Services to interrupt their existing schedules. (*Unscheduled
work is work not previously scheduled at least three (3) working days prior to the date required for work to
commence, unless agreed to in writing.)

» 2X straight time 8-hour period is between 06:00 and 18:00, Monday-Friday

+ 2X overtime for work in excess of 8 hours Monday-Friday and Saturday

s 2X premium of Sundays and holidays

Expenses

Iravel - All travel and living expenses will be invoiced at cost plus 156%, except for airfare which will be subject to
a 15% admin charge to a maximum of $75.00.

- — Small tools not normally required or carried by Schneider Electric
Services will be invoiced at cost. Spetialized fest equipment will be invoiced at current rental rates, when
required.

Material Mark-Up — Outsourced material will have a mark-up of 25% for scheduled work and 35% for
unscheduled work. (*Unscheduled work is work not previously scheduled at least three (3) working days prior to
the date required for work to commence, uniess agreed to in writing.)

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 22 of 25



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit) (Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of
Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 23 of 25



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 24 of 25



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In.consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

it has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this document,
from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or
subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract
Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-101
Northern California Power Agency and Schneider Electric USA, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 25 of 25



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2019
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: Irani Engineering, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement for
injection well related consulting services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speerﬁ) METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [X Cityof Lodi [] City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Franci;g:iga_l)!r :r::; O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [J]  City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 105:19



Irani Engineering, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-02 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Irani Engineering, Inc. for injection well related
consulting services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Injection well related conuslting services are required from time to time related to project support
at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 to be used out of
the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has a similar agreement in place with
Utility System Efficiencies and seeks bids from multiple qualified providers whenever services
are needed. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 7, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 105:19



Irani Engineering, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

4

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manhager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Irani Engineering, Inc.

SR: 105:19



RESOLUTION 19-02

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH IRANI
ENGINEERING, INC.

(reference Staff Report #105:19)

WHEREAS, injection well related consulting services are periodically required at the facilities owned
and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Irani Engineering, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Irani
Engineering, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities, in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
Irani Engineering, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,000,000 for injection well related consulting services, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA
Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
IRANI ENGINEERING, INC.

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Irani Engineering, Inc., a California
corporation with its office located at 35131 Beach Road, Capistrano Beach, CA 92624
(“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of ,20
(“"Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) year from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA") or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018 Page 1 of 16



period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested
Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its
Exhibits.

Section2. ¥ COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT
TO EXCEED TWO MILLION dollars ($2,000,000.00) for the Services, which shall include all
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

* The beginning and ending dates of the billing period,;

= Services performed;

* The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and lrani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 2 of 16



2.4  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

Section3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Services.

Section4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 3 of 16



4.3

44

mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and one million dollars ($1,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shalil
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides
services to Agency members, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant
to this Agreement, Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 4 of 16



policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims that
arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful
misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of Services under this
Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate
to such claims, whether directly or indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to
defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Agency shall not apply to the extent
that such Liabilities are caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or
willful misconduct of the Agency.

Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 5 of 16



insofar as the results of Consuitant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitiement to any
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 6 of 16



was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required

6.4
Exhibit C.
Section7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.
7.1
Agreement.
7.2
work hereunder.
7.3
to practice their respective professions.
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.
8.1

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 7 of 16



8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 8 of 16



inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

94 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 9 of 16



Section 10.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 10 of 16



10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Irani Engineering, Inc.
Attention: Saeed Irani

35131 Beach Road
Capistrano Beach, CA 92624

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 11 of 16



10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 12 of 16



10.13

10.14

10.15

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Consultant provide Services to an Agency member, SCCPA
and/or a SCPPA member (collectively for the purposes of this section only
"Member”) pursuant to section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may
be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested
Services relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY IRANI ENGINEERING, INC.

Date

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, SAEED IRANI,
General Manager President

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 13 of 16



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
Irani Engineering, Inc. (“Consultant”) shall provide injection well related consulting services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or
SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

¢ Injection Well Consulting

¢ Injection Well Maintenance Supervision

¢ Injection Well Acidizing/Cleaning Supervision

e Surveys
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 14 of 16



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount as set

forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an
estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

WELLSITE SUPERVISION:

Location Supervisor : Drilling $1,600.00 per day
Workover $1,500.00 per day

ENGINEERING & CONSULTING- HOURLY RATES: $185.00 per hour

WELLSITE COMMUNICATIONS:

Dedicated Cellular Phone & Computer & internet $50.00 per day

TRAVEL EXPENSES:

Meals per diem (day rate minimum) $50.00 per day

Mileage $2.00 per mile

Lodging $ at Cost, if required

Other Travel (airfare, rental cars, taxis, incidentals) $ at Cost

OTHER SERVICES & FEES:

3 Party Vendor Charges $ at Cost plus 15%

Miscellaneous Office (copies, express mail, phone) $ at Cost

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 15 of 16



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

I, ARDESHIR (SAEED) IRANI
(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

Irani Engineering, Inc.
(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-031
Northern California Power Agency and Irani Engineering, inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 16 of 16



A PUBLIC AGENTY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: ABB, Inc. - Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for generator
inspection, testing, troubleshooting, and winding; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA

Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

I

FROM: Ken Speer ((3 METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Hydroelectric

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [J
San e tranat 0 CityofPaloAlto O
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [
City of Healdsburg [1  City of SantaClara [

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 106:19



ABB Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-03 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ABB, Inc. (formerly GE International) for generator
inspection, testing, troubleshooting and winding services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$10,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

In July 2018, ABB completed the acquisition of GE’s Industrial Solutions division which includes
the generator rewind personnel and knowledge formerly wielded by GE. ABB has renamed this
division Electrification Products Industrial Solutions (EPIS). GE (now ABB-EPIS) offers support
to power plant operators through emergency services, maintenance and overhaul programs and
other asset monitoring services. ABB-EPIS, has acquired very experienced players in the field.
NCPA has personal experience with GE’s (now ABB-EPIS) innovation solutions being used by
CTs to provide synchronous generator testing modeling services and at the GEO to install
control equipment at the Bear Canyon Pump Station. Most notably, in June 2017 when NCPA'’s
Hydroelectric facility experienced a stator ground fault in its Collierville Unit 2 Generator, GE
helped get the facility back online in record time when even the original equipment manufacturer
was unresponsive to requests for assistance. GE mobilized an onsite crew to bypass the
problem and was able to get the unit back to production for summer generation - saving
thousands by reducing plant down time.

To date, NCPA has been using small General Service Agreements painstakingly negotiated
each time services are needed at each individual facility. The emergency repair at Hydro
highlighted the need for an agreement that preempts having to negotiate a contract in an
emergency situation with much less favorable terms and that extends to all facilities. NCPA has
had a successful relationship with GE (now ABB-EPIS) through their reliable service and
solutions-oriented teams. Authorization of this Multi-Task General Services Agreement would
allow NCPA and its members to continue being able to call on them for emergency and general
maintenance services, as needed, to maintain generation assets under the most favorable
terms and conditions able to be negotiated.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $10,000,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures, including approved delegated authority levels, which means that any purchase
order exceeding $250,000 will require approval by the Commission.

SELECTION PROCESS:
This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA

procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place enabling agreements with
Andritz Hydro and Siemens for similar services and seeks bids from as many qualified providers

SR: 106:19



ABB Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 3

as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on September 5, 2018,
and was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on September 10, 2018, and was approved.

Respectfully submltted

DY S. OWARD
eneral Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with ABB, Inc.

SR: 106:19



RESOLUTION 19-03

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY APPROVING
A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ABB, INC.

(reference Staff Report #106:19)

WHEREAS, inspection, testing, troubleshooting, and winding services for generators and electrical
equipment is required from time to time at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, the Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members, in order to maintain their generating assets;
and

WHEREAS, the expertise for this type of maintenance and emergency services is not regularly required,
and is therefore not staffed in-house; and

WHEREAS, ABB Inc. acquired GE Industrial Solutions division in July 2018 and the division is now
operating as ABB-EPIS, which has a generator division able to mobilize when needed, and which has appropriate
industry knowledge and experience; and

WHEREAS, NCPA has had prior agreements with GE Industrial Solutions (now ABB-EPIS) for support
services; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
ABB, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $10,000,000 over five years for generator inspection, testing, troubleshooting, and repair services
related to generator operations, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



ANEpA,
MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
ABB INC.

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (“Agency”) and ABB, Inc., a corporation with its office located at 305 Gregson Drive, Cary, NC
27511 (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 201_
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. Agency may direct Contractor to remove from carrying out any part of the Work
any of Contractor’s personnel where the person (1) is incompetent or negligent in the
performance of their duties; or (2) is engaged in activities which are contrary or detrimental
to the interests of Agency Contractor shall, immediately comply upon receiving written
notice from Agency of such direction, and provide a suitable replacement for the person
removed.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or
SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. If Contractor does not respond in writing within

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1



Section 2.

seven days of the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order that Contractor will
perform the Requested Work on the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Order,
then Contractor shall be deemed to have declined to perform the Work set forth in the
Purchase Order. If Contractor agrees in writing to perform the Requested Work, the
Contractor also agrees to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the
Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO

EXCEED ten million dollars ($10,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and
other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but
is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency'’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency’s
reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Payment. Unless a longer period is provided in Contractor’s written quotation, Agency
shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for Work performed in
conformance with this Agreement, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the

requirements above to pay Contractor. For each calendar month, that payment is late
for Work performed in conformance with this Agreement, Agency shall pay a late
payment charge computed at the rate of 1.5% per month on the overdue balance, or the
maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 2 of 26



2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state and
local taxes (other than sales, use or value-added tax, fees, duties and surcharges {“Agency
Taxes"}), based on net income, gross income or gross receipts, and all employment taxes,
incurred under this Agreement. For Agency Taxes which are to be paid by the Agency for a
Purchase Order, Contractor shall so indicate in writing when responding to a Purchase Order,
as well as indicating a good- faith estimate of the not-to-exceed amount of such taxes.

24  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator.

2.5  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers' Compensation. |f Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of one million
dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial or Comprehensive General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial or
comprehensive general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any
action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage
which may arise out of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a limit
of $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial or
comprehensive general coverage shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial
General Liability form CG 0001 (current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering
comprehensive General Liability. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the
coverage.

4,22 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Revd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 3 of 26



43

4.4
4.5

4.6

4.7

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

423

liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident. This insurance shall provide contractual liability
covering all motor vehicles, and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be
excluded from general liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Intentionally Omitted.

Intentionally Omitted.

All Policies Requirements.

4,51

4.5.2

453

4,54

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) an ACORD (or equivalent) Cerificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions
contained herein and (2) “blanket” additional insured policy endorsements to the
general, automobile and if used, Umbrella liability insurance policies referenced in
Section 4.2, adding the Agency (and if used by Agency members, SCPPA and/or
SCPPA members) Agency members, SCPPA and SCPPA members as an
additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work
performed pursuant to this Agreement.

Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any material reduction in
scope or amount, cancellation or modification adverse to Agency of the policies
referenced in Section 4.

Intentionally Omitted.

Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance
and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be
performed.

Intentionally Omitted.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all

equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Page 4 of 26



provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by
the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and Contractor's employees are and remain covered by
any and all workers' compensation insurance required by applicable law during this
Agreement.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section

5.2  Scope. Contractor agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify Agency, Agency
members, and each of their officers, Commissioners and employees from and against any third
party claim, injury, liability, loss, cost and/or expense or damage, including all costs and reasonable
attorney’s fees in providing a defense to any claim arising therefrom, for which Agency or Agency
Members shall become liable arising from Contractor's negligence or willful misconduct, with
respect to or in any way connected with the Work performed by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. For purposes of Contractor’s indemnity obligation, no part of the products Contractor
supplies under this Agreement or Site is considered third party property.

5.3  Transfer of Title/Risk of Loss. Title to products and risk of loss shall pass to Agency
upon delivery DDP.

Section 6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 5 of 26



6.2

6.3

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor’s failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees and ensure its agents, or subcontractors
providing Work under this Agreement secure workers’ compensation insurance for their
employees. .

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency,. Agency may not assign this
Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written approval of Contractor.
Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and
provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior
written approval of the Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency,
Contractor shall supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work
and shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not
relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with respect to the
Work and Contractor is obligated o ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any
Work shall be fully insured to the same extent as set forth under Section 4..

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.
Revd 5/4/16

Page 6 of 26



6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Enerqgy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it
executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar
documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

7.4
7.2

73

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of Califomia shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of industrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages eamed in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Revd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 7 of 26



Section 8.

8.1

indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of
California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination.

8.1.1 Agency may terminate this Agreement for cause if Contractor (i) becomes
Insolvent/Bankrupt, or (i) commits a material breach of this Agreement. However, before
Agency can terminate this Agreement, Agency shall first give written notice of the alleged
material breach and Contractor shall have thirty calendar days in which to cure the alleged
breach.

8.1.2 Contractor may terminate this Agreement for cause if Agency (i) becomes
Insolvent/Bankrupt, or (i) commits a material breach of this Agreement, including, but not
limited to, failing to make any payment when due for such Work that has been satisfactorily
performed and in conformance with the Agreement. However, before Contractor can
terminate this Agreement, Contractor shall first give written notice of the alleged material
breach and Agency shall have thirty calendar days in which to cure the alleged breach

8.2 Payment upon Termination of Agreement.

8.2.1 If Agency terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1, (i) Contractor shall
reimburse Agency the difference between that portion of the Agreement price allocable to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 8 of 26



8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

the terminated scope and the actual amounts reasonably incurred by Agency to complete
that scope, and (ii) Agency shall pay to Contractor the portion of the Agreement price
allocable to Work performed in conformance with the Agreement before the effective date
of termination. The amount due for Work performed in conformance with the Agreement
shall be determined in accordance with the milestone schedule (for completed milestones)
and rates set forth in this Agreement (for work toward milestones not yet achieved and
where there is no milestone schedule), as applicable or, where there are no milestones
and/or rates in this Agreement, at Contractor’s then-current standard time and material
rates, subject to the limitation of section 8.2.1 (i) hereof. Agency, however, may condition
payment of such compensation upon Contractor first delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.4.4 hereof).

8.2.2 If Contractor terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.1, Agency shall pay to
Contractor the portion of the Agreement price allocable to Work performed in conformance
with the Agreement before the effective date of termination. The amount due for Work
performed in conformance with the Agreement shall be determined in accordance with the
milestone schedule (for completed milestones) and rates set forth in this Agreement (for
work toward milestones not yet achieved and where there is no milestone schedule), as
applicable or, where there are no milestones and/or rates in this Agreement, at
Contractor’s then-current standard time and material rates, subject to the limitation of
section 8.2.1 (i) hereof. Agency, however, may condition payment of such compensation
upon Contractor first delivering to Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced
in Section 9.4.4 hereof).

8.2.3 Either Agency or Contractor may terminate a Purchase Order upon twenty (20) days
advance written notice if there is an excusable event (as described herein) lasting longer than
one hundred and twenty (120) days. In such case, Agency shall make payment to Contractor
amounts consistent with the entirety of Section 8.2.1

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Intellectual Property. Each party shall retain ownership of all Confidential Information and
intellectual property it had prior to this Agreement. The Parties expressly agree that this
Agreement does not include any developed or customized products. To the extent the Parties
become aware of the need to create developed or customized Products or Services, the Parties
agree to enter into a separate joint development agreement as an amendment to this Agreement

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 9 of 26



9.2  Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for one (1) a minimum of three (3) years, or
for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor
under a particular Purchase Order.

9.3  Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment to the Contractor under a particular Purchase Order.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.42 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential Information to the
other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

9.43 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 10 of 26



Section 10.

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection
with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

9.44 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party’'s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project
site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will, be responsible for any such equipment, supplies
or materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 11 of 26



10.3

Section 11.

solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability
therefor. Contractor shall assume risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned
and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project site. All
materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Barring an emergency situation, the parties anticipate
Contractor will not be using Agency equipment. Agency may provide cranes, operated by
Agency or other agency contractors.

WARRANTY.

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Nature of Work. Contractor warrants that products shall be delivered free from defects in
material, workmanship and title and that services shall be performed in a competent,
diligent manner in accordance with any mutually agreed specifications. The warranty for
products shall expire one (1) year from first use or thirty-six months from delivery,
whichever is longer, except that software is warrantied for ninety (90) days from
installation and usability . The warranty for services shall expire one (1) year after
completion of the service. Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. If during the term of the applicable warranty period following
completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or
provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to warranty defects in material
and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's in
conformance with this Agreement. If despite Contractor’s reasonable efforts, a non-
conforming product cannot be repaired or replaced, or non-conforming services cannot be
re-performed, Contractor shall refund or credit monies paid by Agency for such non-
conforming products and services.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency warranties and
extended warranties, assignable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the
Work.

Access for Warranty Work. Agency shall bear the costs of access for Contractor's
remedial warranty efforts (including removal and replacement of systems, structures or
other parts of Agency’s facility), de-installation, decontamination, re-installation and
transportation of defective products to Contractor and back to Agency. In the event of a
defect or Contractor’s remedial warranty efforts (including removal and replacement of
systems, structures or other parts of Agency’s facility), de-installation, decontamination,
re-installation and transportation of defective products to Contractor and back to Agency,,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 12 of 26



Agency shall provide clear access to the defective work at the site. For purposes of this
section, “access” shall mean an opportunity or ability to enter, approach, or pass to and
from defective work. “Access” shall not include any uncovering, disassembly or
reassembly of parts or hardware required for Contractor to perform Contractor's warranty
obligations to the extent that such uncovering, disassembly or reassembly of parts or
hardware was within Contractor’s original scope of work. If any uncovering, disassembly
or reassembly of parts or hardware is necessary for Contractor to perform its warranty
obligations, Contractor shall reimburse Agency for any costs or expenses related to such
uncovering, disassembly or reassembly or parts or hardware if such uncovering,
disassembly or reassembly of parts or hardware was within Contractor’s original scope of
work.

115 Warranty Conditions. The warranties and remedies are conditioned upon (a) proper
storage, installation, use, operation, and maintenance of products provided by Contractor
in writing , (b) Agency keeping accurate and complete records of operation and
maintenance during the warranty period and providing Contractor access to those records,
and (c) modification or repair of products or services only as authorized by Contractor in
writing. Failure to meet any such conditions renders the warranty null and void.
Contractor is not responsible for normal wear and tear.

11.6  Exclusive Warranty. This Article 11 provides the exclusive remedies for all claims based on failure
of or defect in products or services, regardless of when the failure or defect arises, and whether a
claim, however described, is based on contract, warranty, indemnity, tort/extra-contractual liability
(including negligence), strict liability or otherwise. The warranties provided in this Article 11 are
exclusive and are in lieu of all other warranties, conditions and guarantees whether written, oral,
implied or statutory. NO IMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTY, OR WARRANTY OR
CONDITION OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE APPLIES.

Section 12.  HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4.

121  Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

12.2  Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 13 of 26



12.3

12.4

12,5

12,6

12,7
12.8

12.9

12.10

1211

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12. '

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Intentionally omitted.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to Section 1.4
hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency under Sections 12.1,
12.2,12.4,12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

Contractor has no responsibility or liability for the pre-existing condition of Agency’s
equipment or the Site. Prior to Contractor starting any work at Site, Agency will provide
documentation that identifies the presence and condition of any Hazardous Materials
existing in or about Agency’s equipment or the Site that Contractor may encounter while
performing under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.
Revd 5/4/16

2650956.1

Page 14 of 26



12.12

Section 13

If Contractor encounters hazardous conditions in Agency'’s equipment or at the Site that
require special handling or disposal, Contractor is not obligated to continue work affected
by the hazardous conditions. In such an event, Agency shall eliminate the hazardous
conditions in accordance with applicable laws and regulations so that Contractor's work
under the Agreement may safely proceed, and Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable
adjustment of the price and schedule to compensate for any increase in Contractor’s cost
of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, as mutually agreed upon by
the Parties.. Agency shall properly store, transport and dispose of all Hazardous Materials
introduced, produced or generated by Agency or its contractors in the course of
Contractor's work at the Site The term Hazardous Materials, as used herein, is any toxic
or hazardous substance, hazardous material, dangerous or hazardous waste, dangerous
good, radioactive material, petroleum or petroleum-derived products or by-products, or any
other chemical, substance, material or emission, that is regulated, listed or controlled
pursuant to any national, state, provincial, or local law, statute, ordinance, directive,
regulation or other legal requirement of the United States (‘U.S.”).

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

131

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1

Page 15 of 26



13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et segq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency'’s representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

ABB, Inc.

Attention: David Lanni, EPIS
2018 Powers Ferry Road

SE Parkwood Point

Atlanta, GA 30339

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16

Page 16 of 26



13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 Subject to applicable state law, and notwithstanding the foregoing, each
party shall have the right at any time, at its option and where legally
available, to immediately commence an action or proceeding in a court of
competent jurisdiction, subject to the terms of this Agreement including
Section 13.2, to seek a restraining order, injunction, or similar order to
enforce the confidentiality provisions set forth in Article 9 or to seek

interim or conservatory measures. .

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a
Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. In the case of any
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Contractor’s Proposal, the
Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 17 of 26



13.15

Section 14.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signatory third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member.

EXCUSABLE EVENTS.

14.1

14.2

Section 15.

Contractor shall not be liable or considered in breach of its obligations under this Agreement to the
extent that Contractor's performance is delayed or prevented, directly or indirectly, by any cause
beyond its reasonable control, or by armed conflict, acts or threats of terrorism, epidemics, strikes
or other labor disturbances, or acts or omissions of any governmental authority or of the Agency or
Agency’s contractors or suppliers, to the extent that Contractor could not have reasonably foreseen

or anticipated the event as set forth herein..

If Contractor believes such cause or excusable event has occurred, Contractor shall give written
notice thereof to Agency, including the triggering event, the length of the anticipated delay, and
Contractor’s efforts to minimize the delay. The parties will each evaluate and then mutually agree

in writing the extent to which Contract's schedule or performance may be adjusted.
CHANGES.

15.1

15.2

Each party may at any time propose changes in the schedule or scope of Work.
Contractor is not obligated to proceed with any change until both parties agree upon such
change in writing. The written change documentation will describe the changes in scope
and schedule, and the resulting changes in price and other provisions, as agreed.

The scope, Purchase Order price, schedule, and other provisions will be equitably
adjusted to reflect additional costs or obligations incurred by Contractor resulting from a
change, after Contractor’s proposal date, in Agency’s site-specific requirements or
procedures, or in industry specifications, codes, standards, applicable laws or
regulations. However, no adjustment will be made on account of a general change in
Contractor's manufacturing or repair facilities resulting from a change in laws or
regulations applicable to such facilities. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, pricing
for additional Work arising from such changes shall be as set forth in Exhibit B.

Section 16.  LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY,

16.1  The total liability of Contractor for all claims of any kind arising from or related to the
formation, performance or breach of this Agreement, or any products or services, shall be
(i) two times the amount of the Purchase Order for Purchase Orders of $50,000 or more
or (ii) the greater of two times the amount of the Purchase Order or $50,000 for Purchase
Orders under $50,000.

16.2 Contractor shall not be liable for loss of profit or revenues, loss of use of equipment or
systems, interruption of business, cost of replacement power, cost of capital, downtime
costs, increased operating costs , any special, consequential, incidental, indirect, or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 18 of 26



16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

punitive damages, or claims of Agency’s members for any of the foregoing types of
damages.

All Contractor liability shall end upon expiration of the applicable warranty period,
provided that Agency may continue to enforce a claim for which it has given written notice
prior to that date , as applicable under this Agreement, before expiration of any statute of
limitations or other legal time limitation but in no event later than one year after expiration
of such warranty period.

Contractor shall not provide advice or assistance that is not required for the work scope
under this Agreement.

If Agency is supplying products or services to a third party, or using products or services
at a facility owned by a third party, Agency shall require that the third party agree, for the
benefit of and enforceable by Contractor, to be bound by all the limitations included in this
Article 16, by requiring the third party to execute the Agency’s Support Services Program
Agreement or similar agreement.

For purposes of this Article 16, the term “Contractor” means Contractor, its affiliates,
subcontractors and suppliers of any tier, and their respective employees. The limitations in
this Article 16 shall apply regardless of whether a claim is based in contract, warranty,
indemnity, tort/extra-contractual liability (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise,
and shall prevail over any conflicting terms, except to the extent that such terms further
restrict Contractor’s liability.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY ABB INC.

Date Date

RANDY HOWARD, General Manager DAVID LANNI, Electrification Products
(EPIS) Global Commercial Leader,
Lifecycle Solutions

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052

Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 19 of 26



Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 20 of 26



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

ABB Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide the following services as requested by the Northern
California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency, its
Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members, including:

Generator Ground Fault Detection
Generator Inspection

Generator Testing

Generator Troubleshooting

Generator Winding Cleaning

Other maintenance services, as necessary

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 _
2650956.1 Page 21 of 26



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of
expenses is as follows:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

AbD

Commercial Rates - effective: July, 2018

8-Hour Daily Rates U.5. bollac

Service Description Weekday Saturday Sunday/
Field Services Holiday
Field Engineer §2155 $3.118  $4074
ized Field Engineer_$2619 3815 53998
Service Center
Service Technician S1691 $2482  $3.146

Service Tech Work Leader 51771 $2542 53306
Service Center Specialist 52,147 $3,106 54,058

IR Camera §75, $:
Vibration Test Set 125,
Online Motor Test Set
Offline Motor Test Set $250/day, $1,000/week

i Current Sa 350,

Test Set 500, 2,000,

Powear Factor Test Set $500/day, $2,000/week
Vacuum Ov Processor 52,500/day

Sewesummlamremmsdmmmm
bsedonmuvd g -

*» ' 10 the Sum
sevices may inchide analysis, adjustment, programming, and
other similar services, They do not include supervision or
agents or other

of p s emp
contractors and do not inciude design effort.
Field Engirieer
Mmu\dudehmihﬁm, commissioning, repair,
senvice, maintenance, and upgrade work associated with:
Madium voltage motars, & generators
P:ralleﬁ‘cSwimear

Med‘nrnmuedma

Legacy drive products, inciuding: DC/AC2000,
DC/DV/AC300, Innovation, Siltron & Valutrol

Legacy control systems including: Series 5 & Series 6

* Spaciaity power system studies, including. Harmonic,
Transient $witching & Grounding

Shipboard and offshore work, with a minimum 14-hour /
day bitling. Piatform work requires a pay differential.

» e s 0 90

-

€ I
Seme ich ienced in the i
test, installation, seMce and repair of one or more of the
following equipment types:
* Transk : ical, Fiuid & LTC)
Moators, Drives & Controls Equipment
Switchgear
Mechanical
Hydro (Electrical, Mechanical & Controis)

Service Center Work Leader: Provides orrsite and in shop,
hands on leadership of ABB craftsmen on 2 per shift basis.

Service Center Specialist. Provides overall coordination and
tachnical leadership on-site and in shop of service craftsmen
and Work Leaders.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650056.1

ABBs’ field service engineers and consulting experts are on call tc
provide a wide range of service and repairs on both ABB and non-ABE
equipment and engineered systems in Industrial and Balance-Of-Plan
Power Plant Systems.

For more information contast your socat ABB office or call our 24x7 austomer service center at 888-434-7378 ¢
540-387-8617

{ € Fluid & LTC)

Power Delvery Equipment

Wotors, mwmw

Disur Logic Controls
Rehumo?mss Jonkrol and ion Systems

Marine Electrical Systems

Power System Studies

* a0 80 00

1. Work greater than 8 hours per day is bitted per howr. Overtime  Double Time

Overtima applies to billabla weekday hours 9-12. Double Time applies to: Biklable weekday hours greater
than 12, Saturddy hours greater than 8, Sundays and holidays.

2. Preparation, travet, and report writing time will be charged at the applicatia rate {i.e., daily rates, overtime
and double time) on 2 Tound Wi basis with point of departure based on the location of the ABS

s office/service camer.
a Y travel v "4
Overnight stay $160 per day

Air Travel / Rental Car charges Cost + 20%

NotesmnmiYidemmapﬂymmhmdlmm
4. U.S.A, will be bifled at a cost plus 20% minimum, or consult

mmm!ﬂmmfuawwaemme

fabor and equip quired t0 support ABB will be provided at cost + 355,

o

Aﬂmmmtisfcn shipping poiny, seller’s dock, with freight prepaid and charged 3% of material price {a
mmmmusmomsmmm Seller reserves the right 1o select the method of

T provided for ail miessspmﬁedbymeaemmlssmnnhwvsww
any 3 P i G ing is in addition and shatl be for the account
of the Buyer.
7. Consultwith bcal ABBoffice rges for other special tooling and/for test equipment

armum,kesorvnmnmybeinmwmmmes Minimum daily billing of 8 hours for all
services provided induding standby ime. A minimum order of $500.00 shall apply for a paris/material only
order,

8. Alrates and are hased on ABB"
of sa%e {Form ES 104 Rev 4). mmmummmmmmmsqmonsmmfa
PCB sarvices, off shore o confined locations.

9. Phone Support ks 2 service provided on the phone by 2 Field Engineer for limited hardware and saftware
troubleshooting services.

10. Empl g by the ‘will be provided as foliows:
Qustom grug screen of hackground theck $100
IWiCCarg 5250
BOISET « HUET £1.500

Notes: All travel 1ime 1o complete the screanings will be billed at the applicable hourly rate as set forthin 1
above plus expanses. All other speciaity training witl be billed at cost « 20%.
11 Altmzwwn&msmmwﬂbemedumamauemmyumasmtmnhnbweplns

12, Amlmzm«wmaemm:ueswaMduﬁafmdimmnm:mm
wfied by the Alttime: service, 3
Mmmmmmmwuwnmmmmasthlm however
the 1,35 muttiplier 2ppliad 10 work with 1255 than 24hrs notice is waived.

"msmmmmmsmmmmmmv\alm«ammuﬂmmaiombn
that & not subject 10 2 Locah i which is an & frate that may be assessed for remote,
immmwdmmm mm&!m&os&dwmn?remamwm
focation.

GS-VEN-2017-052

Page 22 of 26



Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 23 of 26



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 24 of 26



EXHIBITD
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in
conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background investigations in
conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 25 of 26



EXHIBITE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1) Itis an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform

Covered Work.
DATED: Name of Employer
(Authorized Officer & Title)
(Address)
2890414.5
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-052
Northern California Power Agency and ABB Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 26 of 26



/

A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

ADRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA,

and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer 74 I

Department. Geothermal

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager NA

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o o o

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o 0o o o O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o 0O

SR: 107:19



Puliman Heating & Cooling — 5-Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-04 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc. for heating,
ventilation, and air-conditioning (“HVAC”) services with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000
over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Heating, ventilation, air-conditioning (“HVAC”) and other necessary services are required from
time to time at facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place agreements with Indoor
Environmental Services and ACCO Engineered Systems for similar services and seeks bids from
as many qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 7, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 107:19



Pullman Heating & Cooling — 5-Year MTGSA
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

General Manager
Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

SR: 107:19



RESOLUTION 19-04

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PULLMAN
HEATING & COOLING, INC.

(reference Staff Report #107:19)

WHEREAS, heating, ventilation, air-conditioning (‘HVAC”) and other necessary maintenance services
are required from time to time at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc., is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Pullman Heating
& Cooling, Inc., to provide such services as needed at all NCPA Generation facility locations, Member,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Member facilities, in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for heating, ventilation, air-conditioning (‘HVAC”)
and other necessary maintenance services, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



.‘f‘

y
r 4
/INCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
PULLMAN HEATING & COOLING, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 20630 Honey Hill Drive, Hidden Valley, CA 95467
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2019
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

13

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000) for the Work, which shall include
all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

=  Work performed;

» The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency'’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 2 of 21



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days

after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall

maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21

4.2.2

4.2.3

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 3 of 21



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally Omitted

4.4  Pollution Insurance. Intentionally Omitted

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 4 of 21



Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Intentionally Omitted

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 5 of 21



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 6 of 21



Section 7.

741

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 7 of 21



Section 8.

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 8 of 21



Section 9.

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 9 of 21



Section 10.

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 10 of 21



10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

1.1

11.2

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 11 of 21



11.3

Section 12.

obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

12.5

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. |t is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 12 of 21



12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 13 of 21



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Jacob Pullman

P.O. Box 484

Middletown, CA 95461

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 14 of 21



of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 15 of 21



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PULLMAN HEATING & COOLING, INC.

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager JACOB PULLMAN, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 16 of 21



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc., (“Contractor”) shall provide the heating, ventilation and air-
conditioning (“HVAC”) services, and any miscellaneous maintenance, including, but not limited
to the following, as requested by Agency at any facilities owned or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA members:

1. Servicing of heat exchangers, which includes but is not limited to maintaining proper

fluid levels, adjusting of fluid flows, and adjusting and replacing of heating strips as
needed;

Compressor servicing and replacement;
Removal of ice on units as needed;

Replacing filter and belts; and

Servicing Bear Canyon station swamp coolers

aOrON

All services identified above shall be promptly provided by Contractor to Agency as directed by
Agency and in accordance with all Agency specifications.

All services will be billed according to Time & Material (T&M) Rates.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

GS-VEN-2018-164

Page 17 of 21



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc., Hourly Rates:
Journeyman Level Worker: $120 per hour
Apprentice: $ 95 per hour

Helper: $ 80 per hour

Prices are subject to change with the giving of 30 days’ advance written notice to Agency.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 18 of 21



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 19 of 21



EXHIBIT D — NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 20 of 21



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

{(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-164
Northern California Power Agency and Pullman Heating & Cooling, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 21 of 21



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised

Version 22 of Appendix B

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

If other, please specify

FROM: Robert Caracristi 12\ ¢~ METHOD OF SELECTION:
Manager, Information
Services and Power N/A
Settlements
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Power Settlements
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [J Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake X
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc X City of Ukiah
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto X Plumas-Sierra REC X
City of Biggs City of Redding [J Port of Oakland
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg X  City of Santa Clara X Other [

SR: 112:19

4



Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 22 of Appendix B
January 9, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 19-09 implementing a revised Version 22 of
Appendix B to the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA), which details the
allocation of California Independent System Operator (CAISO) charges and payments to NCPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

A revised Version 22 of Appendix B to the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA)
was developed to incorporate changes to six existing settlements charge codes as well as the
addition of several new charge codes. These changes are principally related to the CAISO’s
implementation of its yearlong initiative to increase efficiencies of the Congestion Revenue
Rights (CRR) auctions. As background, CRRs are a financial instrument provided by the CAISO
as a means for market participants to hedge against the unpredictable variability of congestion
costs in the CAISO day ahead market. Under the CAISO’s existing structure, CRR entitlements
are fully funded, which provides payment to CRR holders based on the full notional value of their
respective CRRs. A problem with this design is that in recent years, the CAISO has increasingly
paid out more money to CRR holders than it collects through the day ahead market, resulting in
CRR revenue insufficiency. This places the financial burden for all CRR shortfalls on load serving
entities, including NCPA members, who are financially responsible for the CRR shortfall amounts
in proportion to their respective gross measured demand (i.e. loads plus exports). For 2017
alone, CRR shortfalls in excess of $100 million were allocated to measured demand. With the
CAISO’s new CRR design reflected in this Version 22 of Appendix B, CRR holders receive
payment for their CRR entitlements only to the extent the CAISO collects sufficient revenue
through the day ahead market congestion charges and CRR charges.

Version 22 of Appendix B also introduces several new scenarios to the CAISO’s existing
Capacity Procurement Mechanism (CPM) allocation process, on a post-implementation basis, to
account for circumstances where CAISO market participants, such as NCPA, are allocated
charges associated with capacity resource deficiency events in response to CAISO procurement
of backstop capacity in order to maintain grid reliability. Lastly, Version 22 of Appendix B
includes minor edits for improved clarity regarding the use of resources used in the allocation of
payments and charges to pool members for CAISO invoice deviation interest amounts.

The Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement (PMASA) dated October 1,
2014, sets forth the terms and conditions under which NCPA provides contracted services to
participants. The PMASA includes the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA),
which defines the guidelines through which NCPA provides scheduling coordination services to
members who are signatories to the PMASA. Included within the SCPA are several appendices
that detail the multiple protocols and procedures associated with NCPA’s participation in the
CAISO markets with respect to, among other things, the scheduling, dispatch and financial
settlements of members’ loads and supply resources. Pursuant to the SCPA, these appendices
may be modified, subject to Commission approval, to conform to changes in scheduling
protocols and CAISO market settlement rules.

The proposed updates to Appendix B are technical in nature as summarized in the table below.

A clean and redline version of both Appendix B are each available for review on the NCPA
Connect extranet website (connect.ncpa.com).

SR: 112:19



Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 22 of Appendix B

January 9, 2019
Page 3

Appendix B to the SCPA Change Summary Table

Appendix B Section

Change Action

Description

Charge Code 6700 for
Congestion Revenue
Rights (CRR) Daily
Settlement

Page 106 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Modified existing charge code
6700 in Appendix B section to
reflect CRR settlement as a
daily, scaled settlement amount
on a constraint-by-constraint
basis.

Due to this new CRR
settlement method, staff has
revised the existing allocation
to represent a melded, load-
based allocation ratio to Pool
Members referred to as ‘CRR
Shares’.

CRR Shares are calculated and
updated each month to reflect
changes in monthly and
quarterly CRR Awards as well
as revised Pool loads.

This change to charge code
6700 is effective 1/1/2019.

. CRR Shares represent the
CRR Allocation weighted, composite
ratio resulting from (1) the percentage
of each Pool Member's City Load to
the corresponding hourly Peak Pool
Load; and, (2) the percentage of each
Pool Member’s Forecasted City Load
to the corresponding Forecasted Peak
Pool Load; and where the weights
applied to each Pool Member’s
percentage are the respective
proportions of each (1) quarterly CRR
Awards from the annual allocation;
and (2) monthly CRR Awards from the
monthly allocations to the total CRR
Awards for the applicable periods.

. Annual CRR Shares are
calculated based on the hourly Peak
Load that occurred for each
corresponding quarter, two years prior
to the CRR Allocation Year (year-2).
.. Monthly CRR Shares are
calculated based on the forecast for
the applicable Operating Month.

Charge Code 6701
CRR Monthly True-Up

Page 109 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Added new charge code 6701
effective 1/1/2019 for monthly
re-settiement of CRRs to
include any daily surplus
revenues not previously netted
in the daily CRR settlements
charge code 6700.

The CAISO’s charge code 6701
settles with CRR Holders at the end of
the trading month. It includes any
surplus distribution to recover CRR
deficits in some days, if any, with
funds coming from constraint-specific
congestion revenue surpluses, if any,
in other days of the same trading
month.

As described in Appendix B, CC 6701
monthly true-up amounts will be
allocated to Pool Members based on
the same use of ‘CRR Shares’
described above in Charge Code
6700.

Charge Code 6706
CRR Balancing Account
Monthly True-Up

Added new charge code 6706
effective 1/1/2019, which will
allocate any excess surplus

The CAISO will settle any excess
surplus from the CRR congestion fund
at the end of the month, after CRR

SR: 112:19




Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 22 of Appendix B

January 9, 2019
Page 4

Appendix B Section

Change Action

Description

Page 110 of redlined
version of Appendix B

CRR amounts to Pool
Members’ ESP Measured
Demand less any CLAP
Demand.

surplus distribution payments have
been made to CRR Holders under
charge code 6701.

This excess surplus is allocated to
monthly Measured Demand excluding
the valid and balanced portion of
Transmission Ownership Rights
(TOR) Self Schedules.

Charge Code 6790
CRR Daily Balancing

Page 111 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Made minor modification to
existing charge code 6790 to
indicate the resolution of the
data is sourced from daily,
rather than hourly, estimates.

This change is effective
1/1/2019.

Charge Code 6790 is an existing CRR
daily balancing account used to
allocate any daily deficit or surplus
amounts to measured demand (i.e.
loads plus exports) less demand
served by Transmission Ownership
Rights (TOR) or Existing Transmission
Contracts (ETC).

Charge Code 4562
CRR Grid Management
Charge (GMC) services
charge

Page 144 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Modified existing charge code
to utilize same CC 6700
allocation basis to Pool
Members.

This change is effective
1/1/2019.

Charge Code 4562 is assessed by the
CAISO for the CRR services that it
provides to participants. Appendix B
has been updated to reflect allocation
of the GMC CRR services fee to Pool
Members based on the same ‘CRR
Shares’ used to settle daily CRR in
Charge Code 6700.

Charge Code 7896
Capacity Procurement
Mechanism (CPM)
Allocation

Page 202 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Modified existing charge code
to add several new scenarios to
account for charges assessed
by CAISO associated with
collective or resource adequacy
resource capacity deficiencies.

This charge code applies
retroactively to operating month
January 2018.

Charge code 7896 has been updated
to allocate any applicable resource
adequacy deficiencies to Pool
Members’ respective contribution to
the deficiency.

Charge Code 7896 has also been
updated to allocate any collective
deficiencies assessed by the CAISO
to Pool Members' respective
proportion of hourly coincident peak
demand.

Coincident Peak Demand is the
quantity submitted to the CPUC in the
annual Resource Adequacy process.

SR: 112:19




Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 22 of Appendix B

January 9, 2019

Page 5
Appendix B Section Change Action Description
Charge Code 7989 Made minor refinement to Refined the description of the Pool

Invoice Deviation
Interest Distribution

Page 126 of redlined
version of Appendix B

existing charge code 7989 to
clarify pool allocation basis.

Allocation basis to clarify that invoice
deviation interest amounts allocated to
pool members will be calculated
based on each member’s respective
generation entitiement shares and city
measured demand quantities, where
applicable.

Charge Code 7999
Invoice Deviation
Interest Allocation

Page 128 of redlined
version of Appendix B

Made minor refinement to
existing charge code 7999 to
clarify pool allocation basis.

Refined the description of the Pool
Allocation basis to clarify that invoice
deviation interest amounts allocated to
pool members will be calculated
based on each member’s respective
generation entitlement shares and city
measured demand quantities, where
applicable.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No significant costs will be incurred to implement the changes to the SCPA Appendices and
funds are available in the NCPA budget to support the work associated with these contract

updates.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019. The ten
members present at the meeting unanimously recommended Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,
oA S H

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment: Resolution No. 19-09

SR: 112:19




RESOLUTION 19-09

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
SCHEDULING COORDINATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT -
VERSION 22 APPENDIX B REVISION

(reference Staff Report #112:19)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (“SCPA”)
dated October 1, 2014, sets forth the terms and conditions under which NCPA supplies Scheduling
Coordination Services to members; and

WHEREAS, the SCPA contains multiple appendices that detail the protocols and procedures
through which NCPA participates in the California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”) markets through
the CAISO’s bid-to-bill process cycle that includes, among other things, the submission of energy and
capacity bids into the CAISO, and the resulting scheduling, dispatch and allocation of financial settlements
associated with members’ loads and supply resources; and

WHEREAS, the appendices of the SCPA contain the terms and conditions for allocating the
numerous CAISO charges and credits to the members in an equitable manner, the scheduling details
applicable to the agreement, and various other technical and administrative provisions; and

WHEREAS, as required from time to time the SCPA participants recommend revision and updates
to the administrative and technical provisions contained in Appendix B to the SCPA to accurately reflect the
evolving terms and conditions related to services from the CAISO; and

WHEREAS, to ensure the accuracy of cost allocations it is necessary to make changes and updates
to the estimate and allocation formulas in Appendix B as outlined in the Appendix B Change Summary Table
of the Staff Report; and

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2019 the Facilities Committee reviewed the proposed changes to Version
22 of Appendix B to the SCPA and recommended Commission approval; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in
the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency acting by and through the Parties to the NCPA Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement
approves revised Version 22 of Appendix B to the SCPA effective January 1, 2019 for changes associated
with the CAISO initiative to increase efficiencies to the Congestion Revenue Rights auctions, and effective
retroactive January 1, 2018 for changes associated with the CAISO Capacity Procurement Mechanism
allocation, as described in Staff Report #112:19, and authorizes NCPA staff under the direction of the NCPA
General Manager to implement the provisions thereto.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following
vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 19-09 -2-



A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2019
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: January 17, 2019

SUBJECT: 2019 Geothermal Plant 1 Units 1 & 2 Overhaul; Applicable to the following project:
NCPA Geothermal Facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Ken Speer /S METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager Competitive Pricing Process

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [ Cityof Lodi X City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [X
San F’a"ciz‘;:iga%’r:;:; 0  CityofPaloAlto [0  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs City of Redding [ Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley X City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Healdsburg X City of Santa Clara Other

If other, please specify Turlock

SR: 108:19



2019 Geothermal Plant 1 Units 1 & 2 Overhaul
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-05 authorizing the Geothermal Plant #1 Overhaul Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, enter into
agreements, and issue purchase orders necessary for the project in accordance with NCPA
Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost
not to exceed $4,800,000.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA'’s Geothermal Facility has a six year overhaul schedule for each of its power plants. Units
#1 and #2 of Plant #1 are due for overhauls in the spring of 2019. During the overhaul, NCPA
will perform preventative maintenance work on all of the primary pumps, motors, and ancillary
equipment which cannot be worked on while the unit is operating. In addition, NCPA will be
completing projects to improve performance in the gas removal and ball cleaning systems.
NCPA will be hiring a number of contractors to perform the overhauls and projects.

Listed below is a summary of the work to be performed as a part of the Plant #1, Units #1 and
#2, overhauls:

1. Overhaul of the main steam turbines of both Units #1 and #2.

Inspect the Unit #2 generator (10 year inspection cycle).

Unit #1 was inspected done in 2013.

Overhaul of the electrical breakers.

Upgrade of the Siemens T-3000 Control System software

Install new transformers in Units #1 and #2

Inspection of the unit relays

Overhaul of the large pumps and motors

Replace the Unit #1 and #2 steam ejectors with lower pressure steam ejectors.
Replace Unit #1 and #2 ball cleaning systems with new systems.

10 Clean and repair as necessary equipment in the Stretford gas processing facility.
11. Clean the condenser tubes and cooling tower.

12. Complete all required WECC and NERC testing

©CoNOOO AW

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the overhauls and projects is $4,800,000. Budgeted and encumbered funds for
the overhauls and projects were authorized in the FY 2019 budget and are available in the
Generation Services accounts in the following amounts.

Project Amount
Unit #1 Overhaul $1,160,000
Unit #2 Overhaul $1,740,000
Plant #1 Steam Ejector Upgrade $375,000
Ball Cleaning System Replacement $426,250
Total $3,701,250

SR: 108:19



2019 Geothermal Plant 1 Units 1 & 2 Overhaul
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Additional funding in the amount of $1,098,750 will be funded from the existing FY 2019 budget
by reprioritizing lower priority work in the budget to fund this project. Project costs will not
exceed $4,800,000. Cost allocation will be based on project participation percentages.

SELECTION PROCESS:

All of the work associated with the overhauls and projects will be solicited and awarded by
the General Manager in accordance with NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1, 2, 3, 4, and 11 from the provisions of
the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the
CEQA Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on
September 27, 2013 for this class of work and was filed in Sonoma County. No environmental
review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and

was recommended for Commission approval as a Discussion/Action ltem.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. LJOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
o Resolution

SR: 108:19



RESOLUTION 19-05

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE 2019 GEOTHERMAL PLANT #1 OVERHAUL PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #108:19)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) owns, operates, and maintains on behalf of
participating members a Geothermal facility consisting of two power plants with containment areas and a
steam field (Geothermal Generating Project); and

WHEREAS, the power plants are on a six year overhaul maintenance schedule and Units #1 and #2 of
Plant 1 of the Geothermal Generating Project are due for overhauls to perform preventative maintenance; and

WHEREAS, during the Plant #1 Overhaul Project, various contractors will be needed to perform
overhaul of the main steam turbine and generator, electrical breakers, large pumps and motors, ball cleaning
system, steam ejectors, and to perform inspections, cleaning, testing, and ancillary work at an estimated cost
not to exceed $4,800,000; and

WHEREAS, NCPA has budgeted funds totaling $3,701,250, in the Generating Services account of the
Geothermal Generating Project sufficient to pay for the Plant #1 Overhaul Project; and

WHEREAS, NCPA has sufficient funds in the FY 2019 budget to cover the project costs and will
reallocate $1,098,750 to cover the total project costs of $4,800,000; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1, 2, 3, 4, and 11 from the provisions
of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA
Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013 for this
class of work and was filed in Sonoma County and no environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the Geothermal Plant #1 Overhaul Project and delegates authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute contracts, and approve purchase orders for the project in accordance with
NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to
exceed project cost of $4,800,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Lodi Energy Center 2019 Spring Outage Project

January 17, 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

2\

FROM: Ken Speer (f

Assistant General Manager
Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

If other, please describe:

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X X 0O 0O

X

B

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

X

O 0o 0O X

X

City of Shasta Lake

O

City of Ukiah X

Plumas-Sierra REC

X

Port of Oakland

o O

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X

Azusa, CDWR

Modesto, PWRPA

SR: 109:19




Lodi Energy Center 2019 Spring Outage
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-06 authorizing the 2019 LEC Spring Outage Project and delegating
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to
issue purchase orders for the outage in accordance with NCPA Purchasing Policies and
Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost not to exceed
$2,276,000.

BACKGROUND:

The Lodi Energy Center has an outage scheduled for April 1-30 for work related to the 2019
Spring Outage. During the outage, the LEC team will complete preventative maintenance work
on equipment that cannot be worked on while the unit is operating without affecting the output of
the facility. NCPA will hire a number of contractors to perform work during the 2019 Spring
Outage.

Listed below is a summary of the work to be performed as a part of the 2019 Spring Outage:

1. Gas Turbine
a. Air Filters
b. Generator Service Bulletins
c. Inlet Paint
d. Insulation

2. Steam Turbine
a. Condensate Drains
b. Heating Blanket Parts
c. Condenser Erosion
d. Superheater

3. Water Treatment
a. General Maintenance
b. Water Box

4. Electrical Systems
a. GSU Testing

5. HRSG/ Steam
a. Penetration Seals
b. Stack Probe / RATA
c. High Energy Pipe Survey
d. Hot Spots

6. Balance of Plant
a. Injection Well Tubing
b. Service Water Pipe
¢. Smoke Detectors

7. Incidentals

Crane

Toilets

Trailers / Guard

Forklift / Manlift

Scaffold

Confined Space

000 OTD

SR: 109:19



Lodi Energy Center 2019 Spring Outage
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Two items merit special attention:

The first is the injection well. The well is designed with a double layer of protection to prevent
waste water from being released into the drinking water layer of the aquifer. During this year’s
mechanical integrity testing, a problem was found with the first layer of protection that needs to
be corrected.

The second is the stack probe. LEC exhaust gases become extremely stratified. This means
that in some areas, emissions readings will be high and other areas will be low. LEC’s current
stack probe only measures emissions in a single location. The stack testers measure in 16
locations and average. LEC previously received a Notice of Violation for a failed test as a result
of this. The solution is to install an Averaging Probe. This probe style has many holes in it to
allow for grabbing samples across the stack area.

FISCAL IMPACT:

2018 Spring Outage Anticipated Cost
Gas Turbine $210,000
Steam Turbine $273,000
Water Treatment $110,000
Electrical Systems $60,000
HRSG / Steam $295,000
Balance of Plant $250,000
Injection Well $500,000
Stack Probe $150,000
Incidentals $228,000
Contingency $200,000
TOTAL $2,276,000
Funding Sources
Source Amount
Maintenance Reserve $849,940
Routine O&M Budget $866,000
Transmission Line Reallocation $560,060
Total $2,276,000

The budgetary funds to complete the 2019 Spring Outage include $849,940 of pre-collected
funds in the Maintenance Reserve (Account # 265-009-005-610-044-002). Additional funds in
the amount of $866,000 were anticipated in the Routine O&M budget. Three project items
totaling $560,000 were not anticipated. These include the injection well and stack averaging
probe. LEC has additional funds of $1,644,202 set aside in an account of for the transmission
line upgrade project. The transmission line upgrade project is complete. Staff recommends that
$560,060 of these funds be utilized to support the April 2019 outage for these extra items.

SELECTION PROCESS:

All of the work will be awarded according to approved NCPA procurement policies.

SR: 109:19



Lodi Energy Center 2019 Spring Outage
January 17, 2019
Page 4

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA
Guidelines. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27,
2013 for this class of work and was filed in San Joaquin County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant Committee

on December 10, 2018, and was recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

ey 8 15

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
¢ Resolution

SR: 109:19



RESOLUTION 19-06

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY APPROVING THE
LODI ENERGY CENTER 2019 SPRING OUTAGE PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #109:19)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains the Lodi Energy
Center facility on behalf of the project participants; and

WHEREAS, the Lodi Energy Center has an outage scheduled for April 1-30, 2019 for work related to the
2019 Spring Outage; and

WHEREAS, during the outage, the LEC team will complete preventative maintenance work on
equipment that cannot be worked on while the unit is operating without affecting the output of the facility.
NCPA will hire a number of contractors to perform work during the 2019 Spring Outage; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 and 2 from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 (b) and 15302 (c) of the CEQA Guidelines. A
Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013 for this class of work
and was filed in San Joaquin County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the 2019 LEC Spring Outage Project and delegates authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, execute agreements, and issue purchase orders for the outage in accordance with
NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost not to
exceed $2,276,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

January 17, 2019

F>-

SUBJECT: NCPA CT2 Maintenance Work Project including use of Maintenance Reserve to
fund work. Applicable to the following project: NCPA CT2 facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Ken Speer \49

Assistant General Manager

Division: Generation Services

Department: Combustion Turbines

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X O

O o o O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

X

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o O O o o o

SR: 110:19



CT2 Maintenance Work
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-07 authorizing the NCPA CT2 Maintenance Work Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and issue purchase orders for the Project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, and approving the use of
Maintenance Reserve Funds for this project, for a total not to exceed cost of $363,000.

BACKGROUND:

CT2 was built with a General Electric LM5000 gas turbine engine. This engine was sold in
extremely low volumes and General Electric stopped support for this machine many years ago.
Several aftermarket shops continued to support the machine, but as the numbers dwindled, it
has become increasingly difficult for shops to continue to support the machine.

Recognizing the limited life of the machine, NCPA responded by reducing budgets to only
perform necessary maintenance, forgoing upgrades and enhancements.

During the course of the year during outages and while conducting normal preventive
maintenance activities, there are certain large expenditure items that have been discovered.
The costs to conduct the needed maintenance for these items exceeds the normal maintenance
budget. NCPA has considered the limited life left in the machine when establishing
recommendations and each of these items is discussed below with a recommendation for each.

Gas Compressor: CT2 is equipped with three gas compressors, each capable of supplying
100% of the need. Gas compressor “B” is currently out of service due to a balance weight
problem. The estimated cost to overhaul this compressor is $30,000. Because there are two
other gas compressors to operate CT2, NCPA is recommending that Gas Compressor “B”
remain out of service.

Chiller: During operations of CT2, the chiller that is used to cool the incoming air into the gas
turbine has failed and is in need of an overhaul. The cost to overhaul the chiller is $50,000.With
the loss of the chiller, the unit is derated about 5 MW. The capacity value from this unit is worth
about $48/KW-Yr or $240,000 per year for the 5 MW derate. Overhauling the chiller has a very
fast payback and NCPA recommends this service be performed.

Expansion Joint: The expansion joint is a large rubber gasket that joints the main body of the
boiler with the exhaust stack. It is normal for these to fail with age and CT2's is no different. The
current expansion joint is filled with holes that are slowly growing larger. Some patching has
been done for the most severe areas, but patches tend to be short lived. It is important to keep
this seal tight for personnel protection to keep all the hot gases flowing out the normal exhaust
stack. NCPA recommends this be replaced at a cost of $150,000.

Chemical Pumps: The CT2 chemical pumps are used to inject chemicals into the boiler. These
are high pressure pumps to overcome the high operating pressures in the boiler. Boiler
chemicals are critical to safe operation of boilers. The normal process for maintenance on
chemical pumps it to purchase an overhaul kit and rebuild them onsite. The manufacturer has
stopped selling overhaul kits for the pumps that CT2 has installed. The pumps are failing and
must be replaced. NCPA recommend replacing the pumps at a cost of $80,000.

SR: 110:19



‘CT2 Maintenance Work
January 17, 2019
Page 3

Penetration Seals: Just as the expansion joint is failing, the boiler has penetration seals that
contain exhaust gases inside the boiler everywhere a pipe penetrates the boiler casing. Many of
these have been replaced already, but there are more that are failing. These seals protect
employees from hot exhaust gases as well as prevent fugitive emissions for gases that have not
yet been process by the catalyst. NCPA recommends these seals be replaced at a cost of
$50,000.

Boiler cold end deposits: During normal operation of a boiler with an emissions catalyst fed by
ammonia, it is normal for ammonia deposits to develop on the cold end of the boiler. CT2 has
heavy buildup. There are currently no operational issues noted as a result of this buildup. NCPA
is monitoring for effects such as corrosion, imbalanced flow and emissions control problems as
well as heating problems. While no problems exist at the moment, that may change in the
future. The cost to perform this cleaning is $250,000. At this time, NCPA is recommending
deferral of this work.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost of these activities is $330,000 with a $33,000 contingency. CT2 has a current
maintenance reserve balance of $513,000, which staff have recommended should be used for
these maintenance activities. Purchase orders will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

All of the work will be bid according to NCPA procurement procedures. Bids will be awarded to
the responsive, responsible bidder.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines for routine
operation, repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing structures or facilities not
expanding existing uses at NCPA power plants. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the
NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, by Resolution 13-97 (SR 215:13 for reference) for
this class of work and was filed in Alameda County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and
was recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 110:19



CT2 Maintenance Work
January 17, 2019
Page 4

Respectfully submitted,

%Mc\ﬁ [+

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 110:19



RESOLUTION 19-07

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FOR RECOMMENDED
CT2 MAINTENANCE WORK PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #110:19)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains the CT2 facility on
behalf of the project participants; and

WHEREAS, during various outages and while conducting normal preventative maintenance work,
NCPA staff has identified certain large expenditure maintenance items to be completed on the machine; and

WHEREAS, staff is now recommending a number of these maintenance items to be completed in order
to ensure continued operation of the unit; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines for routine operation, repair,
maintenance, or minor alteration of existing structures or facilities not expanding existing uses at NCPA power
plants. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, by Resolution
13-97 (SR 215:13 for reference) for this class of work and was filed in Alameda County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the NCPA CT2 Maintenance Work Project and delegates authority to the General Manager or his
designee to award bids, enter into agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the recommended Project in
accordance with NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, and
approving the use of Maintenance Reserve Funds for this project, which shall not exceed $363,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _____ day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:
Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



/ j
/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: January 9, 2019

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT:

January 17, 2019

3

CT1 Alameda Turbine Maintenance Project; Applicable to the following projects:

NCPA CT1 Facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

If other, please specify

FROM: Ken Speer '6 METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General Manager Competitive Pricing Process
Division: Generation Services
Department:. Combustion Turbines
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc City of Ukiah
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [X
City of Biggs City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley X City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg X City of Santa Clara X Other [

SR: 111:19



CT1 Alameda Turbine Maintenance
January 17, 2019
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 19-08 authorizing the CT1 Alameda Turbine Maintenance Project and
delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, enter into
agreements, and issue purchase orders for the Project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total cost not to
exceed $1,500,000, and to increase the CT1 FY19 budget, with an estimated return to service
date of February 13, 2019.

BACKGROUND:

During normal operations of a combustion turbine, when the unit is shut down, the shaft must
slowly rotate to prevent a bow from forming, causing rubs and sticking points. The CT1 projects
employ a ratcheting system that rotates the combustion turbine on shutdown. If for some reason
the ratchet doesn’t operate within 45 minutes of shutdown, the machine must sit idle for 48
hours to cool naturally.

During operations in June of 2018, Lodi CT began having problems with the ratcheting system
where it would randomly fail to rotate the combustion turbine on shutdown. When this occurred,
the unit had to sit idle for the 48 hour cool down. This problem continued to randomly occur
throughout the summer and fall. Plant staff attempted to troubleshoot the problem, but were
unable to identify the cause.

In December of 2018, after the second run for the day, the unit failed to rotate on shutdown.
However, this time, after the 48 hour cool down, it would not rotate as it had in the past. A
special type of borescope inspection was ordered and it revealed rubs on the rotor due to
clearance problems between the stationary and rotating parts of the combustion turbine. Ethos
had overhauled the unit in May of 2016. NCPA had previously submitted a warranty claim to
Ethos due to damage found during a routine inspection.

Ethos was contacted to disassemble the machine to make the necessary repairs under a
warranty claim. Upon disassembly, Ethos has accepted responsibility for most of the work under
the warranty claim. Discussions with Ethos are ongoing as to whether or not some of the parts
need to be replaced. Staff continues to pursue replacement of these parts as a warranty claim.

Upon inspection of the unit for the warranty work, the exhaust flex seal has been found to be
failing. This component is completely unrelated to any work that Ethos has performed. In the 33
years of operation of this machine, it has never been disassembled enough to get at this part to
replace it. If this machine is reassembled without replacing this component, it will fall out very
soon. This is the same problem that Alameda experienced last January. Because the machine
has been partially disassembled under warranty, it is less expensive now to replace this
component. However, to replace this component, the rotor has to be removed. Also, while the
rotor is out, that will provide an opportunity to perform minor repairs to the compressor blades.

Staff is recommending the unit be completely disassembled to replace the flex seal and to
complete minor repairs to the compressor section.

SR: 111:19



CT1 Alameda Turbine Maintenance
January 17, 2019
Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost to perform the necessary work is $1,500,000. The funds for this are not budgeted and
budget supplement will need to be approved to fund this work. It is estimated that the unit will be
out of service until February 13, 2019.

SELECTION PROCESS:

Ethos was selected to perform the work because they were already on-site performing warranty
work.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

These activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines for routine
operation, repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing structures or facilities not
expanding existing uses at NCPA power plants. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the
NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, by Resolution 13-97 (SR 215:13 for reference) for
this class of work and was filed in Alameda County.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 3, 2019, and
was recommended for Commission approval as a Discussion/Action ltem.

Respectfully submitted,

A
RAN ?::}owARD (éﬂ/\

General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 111:19



RESOLUTION 19-08

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
FOR RECOMMENDED CT1 ALAMEDA TURBINE MAINTENANCE PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #111:19)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains the CT1 Lodi
facility on behalf of the project participants; and

WHEREAS, during routine operations and borescope inspections, numerous issues have been
identified with various elements and parts of the combustion turbine which will require corrective maintenance;
and

WHEREAS, NCPA staff is now recommending maintenance of the identified items to be completed in
order to ensure continued operation of the unit; and

WHEREAS, these activities are categorically exempt under Class 1 from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines for routine operation, repair,
maintenance, or minor alteration of existing structures or facilities not expanding existing uses at NCPA power
plants. A Notice of Exemption was approved by the NCPA Commission on September 27, 2013, by Resolution
13-97 (SR 215:13 for reference) for this class of work and was filed in Alameda County; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the CT1 Alameda Turbine Maintenance Project and delegates authority to the General Manager or
his designee to award bids, enter into agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the Project in accordance
with NCPA Purchasing Policies and Procedures without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to
exceed project cost of $1,500,000, and to increase the CT1 FY19 budget.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2019 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



	Draft_Minutes_112918
	Item_10_November_2018_Financial_Report_(Unaudited)
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_Month_Ended_Nov_30_2018
	Item_12_December_2018_Financial_Report_(Unaudied)
	Item_13_Treasurers_Report_Month_Ended_Dec_31_2018
	Item_14_Sale_or_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_15_Schneider_Electric_USA_Five_Year_GSA
	Item_16_Irani_Engineering_Five_Year_MTCSA
	Item_17_ABB_Inc_Five_Year_GSA
	Item_18_Pullman_Heating_&_Cooling_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_19_Scheduling_Coordination_Program_Agreement_Appendix_B
	Item_20_2019_Geo_Plant_1&2_Overhaul
	Item_21_Lodi_Energy_Center_2019_Spring_Outage_Project
	Item_22_NCPA_CT2_Maintenance_Work_Project
	Item_23_CT1_Alameda_Turbine_Maintenance_Project

